4600017300 2022-0584

THE STATE OF TEXAS	§	SOLICITATION NO.
	§	ORDINANCE #
COUNTY OF HARRIS	§	CONTRACT #

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES

ARTICLE 1. PARTIES

THIS AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES (this "Agreement") is made on the date countersigned by the City Controller between the CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS (the "City"), a home-rule city of the State of Texas principally situated in Harris County and DEWBERRY ENGINEERS INC., a New York corporation ("Contractor").

1.01 **ADDRESS**:

1.01.1 The initial addresses of the Parties, which one Party may change by giving written notice to the other Party, are as follows:

<u>City</u>		<u>Contractor</u>
Deputy Director Office of Emergency Management 5320 N. Shepherd Drive Houston, Texas 77091		Ted Van Kirk, PE Executive Vice President Dewberry Engineers Inc. 8401 Arlington Boulevard Fairfax, VA 22031
		With a copy to: Dewberry Engineers Inc. 8401 Arlington Boulevard Fairfax, VA 22031 Attn: Notices

The Parties agree as follows:

1.02 **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.02.1 This Agreement consists of the following sections:

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No. ARTICLE 1. PARTIES......1 ADDRESS....... 1.02 TABLE OF CONTENTS 1.03 PARTS INCORPORATED......4 CONTROLLING PARTS 4 1.04 1.05 DEFINITIONS......4 1.06 ARTICLE 2. DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR......6 2.01 2.02 2.03 REPORTS......6 2.04 2.05 2.06 2.07 INDEMNIFICATION7 2.08 INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE - PATENT, COPYRIGHT, TRADEMARK AND TRADE SECRET INFRINGEMENT8 2.09 SUBCONTRACTOR'S INDEMNITY 2.10 INDEMNIFICATION PROCEDURES8 2.11 INSURANCE9 2.12 PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS......11 2.13 2.14. USE AND OWNERSHIP OF DATA AND WORK PRODUCTS.......11 CONFIDENTIALITY......12 2.15 2 16 2.17 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS......13 2.18 SECTION 3 REGULATIONS14 COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 2.19 ORDINANCE......14 2.20 NON-DISCRIMINATION 14 2.21 2.22 MWBE COMPLIANCE......14 2.23 DRUG ABUSE DETECTION AND DETERRENCE16 2.24 **PAY OR PLAY**......17 2.25 2.26 ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS18 2.27 2.28 2.29 ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY FOR HUMAN TRAFFICKING AND

0.00	RELATED ACTIVITIES	
2.30	PRESERVATION OF CONTRACTING INFORMATION	
ARTICLE 3.	DUTIES OF CITY	20
3.01	PAYMENT TERMS	20
3.02	TAXES	20
3.03	METHOD OF PAYMENT	21
3.04	LIMIT OF APPROPRIATION	21
3.05	ACCESS TO SITE	22
3.06	ACCESS TO DATA	22
3.07	NO QUANTITY GUARANTEE	23
ARTICLE 4.	TERM AND TERMINATION	23
4.01	AGREEMENT TERM	23
4.02	NOTICE TO PROCEED	_
4.03	RENEWALS	
4.04	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE BY CITY	
4.05	TERMINATION FOR CAUSE BY CITY	
4.06	EFFECTS OF TERMINATION	
	MISCELLANEOUS	
5.01	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	
5.02	FORCE MAJEURE	
5.03	SEVERABILITY	-
5.04	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	
5.05	WRITTEN AMENDMENT	_
5.06	GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE	
5.07	NOTICES	
5.08	CAPTIONS	
5.09	NON-WAIVER	
5.10	INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS	
5.11	ENFORCEMENT	
5.12	AMBIGUITIES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
5.13	SURVIVAL	
5.14	PUBLICITY	
5.15	RISK OF LOSS	
5.16	PARTIES IN INTEREST	
5.17	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	
5.18	BUSINESS STRUCTURE AND ASSIGNMENTS	
5.19	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
5.20	REMEDIES CUMULATIVE	
5.21	CONTRACTOR DEBT	
5.22	FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS	
5.23	FLOW-THROUGH PROVISIONS	31

5.24 CONTRACT WORK AND SAFETY STANDARDS31

EXHIBITS		
Α	Definitions	
В	Scope of Services	
B-1	Sample Task Order	
B-2	Task Order Instructions	
B-3	Fee Schedule	
С	Drug Policy Compliance Agreement	
D	Contractor's Certification of No Safety Impact Positions	
E	Drug Policy Compliance Declaration	
F	Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and	
	Other Responsibility Matters – Primary Covered	
	Transactions	
G	Anti-Lobbying Certification	
Н	Hurricane Harvey CDBG-DR Requirements Non-Exclusive	
	List of Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Rules	
H-1	Federal Contract Requirements	
I	Equal Opportunity Clause	
J	Title VI: Non-Discrimination	
K and K-1	GLO Harvey Contract	

1.03 **PARTS INCORPORATED**

1.03.1 The above-described sections and exhibits are incorporated into this Agreement.

1.04 **CONTROLLING PARTS**

1.04.1 If a conflict between the sections or exhibits arises, the sections control over the exhibits.

1.05 **DEFINITIONS**

1.05.1 Certain terms used in this Agreement are defined in Exhibit "A".

ATTEST/SEAL (if a corporation):

1.06 **SIGNATURES**

1.06.1 The Parties have executed this Agreement in multiple copies, each of which is an original. Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of such Party's obligations hereunder have been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding on such Party and enforceable in accordance with its terms. The Parties hereby agree that each Party may sign and deliver this Agreement electronically or by electronic means and that an electronic transmittal of a signature, including but not limited to, a scanned signature page, will be as good, binding, and effective as an original signature.

CONTRACTOR:

WITNESS (if not a corporation): **DEWBERRY ENGINEERS INC.**, a New York corporation DS ted Van kirk By: Name: Title: Name: Executive Vice President Title: Federal Tax ID Number: ___ CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS ATTEST/SEAL: Signed by: DS Pat Jefferson-Daniel City Secretary Mayor COUNTERS APPROVED: DocuSigned by: Thomas Muroz Deputy Director, Office of Emergency City Controller Management Chamelle Clark APPROVED: COUNTERSIGNATURE DATE: 7/25/2022 Jerry adams Chief Procurement Officer APPROVED: APPROVED AS TO FORM: DocuSigned by: Steven Woods keith W. Byram Director, Housing and Community Sr. Assistant City Attorney Development Department L.D. File No. 0292200073001

ARTICLE 2. DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR

2.01 **SCOPE OF SERVICES**

2.01.1 In consideration of the payments specified in this Agreement, Contractor shall provide all supervision, labor, material, and supplies necessary to perform the services described in Exhibit "B".

2.02 **COORDINATE PERFORMANCE**

2.02.1 Contractor shall coordinate its performance with the Director and other persons that the Director designates. Contractor shall promptly inform the Director and other person(s) of all significant events relating to the performance of this Agreement.

2.03 TIME EXTENSIONS

- 2.03.1 In addition to the authority of the Director to extend this Agreement pursuant to the terms of Section 4.03.1 hereinbelow, if Contractor requests an extension of time to complete its performance, then the Director, in consultation with the CPO, may, in his or her sole discretion, extend the time so long as the extension does not exceed 90 days. The extension must be in writing but does not require amendment of this Agreement. Contractor is not entitled to damages for delay(s) regardless of the cause of the delay(s).
- 2.03.2 If the Director requests an extension of time to complete Contractor's performance, then the CPO may, upon consultation with the Director involved, extend the time so long as the extension does not exceed 90 calendar days. The extension must be in writing but does not require amendment of this Agreement. Contractor is not entitled to damages for delay(s) regardless of the cause of the delay(s).

2.04. **REPORTS**

2.04.1 Contractor shall submit all reports and progress updates required by the Director, the City of Houston Housing and Community Development Department (HCDD) and CPO.

2.05 **PAYMENT OF SUBCONTRACTORS**

- 2.05.1 In accordance with the Texas Prompt Payment Act, Contractor shall make timely payments to all persons and entities supplying labor, materials, or equipment, or services by, through, or under Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.
- 2.05.2 CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY THE CITY FROM ANY CLAIMS OR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO MAKE THESE PAYMENTS REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE FAILURE TO PAY IS CAUSED BY, OR CONTRIBUTED TO, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT), OR GROSS NEGLIGENCE, (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT), STRICT LIABILITY, INTENTIONAL ACTS, OR OTHER CONDUCT OR LIABILITY OF THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL

REPRESENTATIVES.

2.05.3 Failure of Contractor to pay its employees and subcontractors as required by law shall constitute a default under this Agreement, for which Contractor shall be liable for Contractor's performance, if Contractor fails to cure the default as provided under this Agreement.

2.06 RELEASE

2.06.1 CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL RELEASE THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY THE "CITY") FROM ALL LIABILITY FOR INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY SUSTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR HEREBY COVENANTS AND AGREES NOT TO SUE THE CITY FOR ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR CAUSES OF ACTION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY RELATED TO ITS RELEASE UNDER THIS SECTION. FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, THIS COVENANT NOT TO SUE DOES NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS FOR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

2.07 INDEMNIFICATION

- 2.07.1 CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY, THE "CITY") HARMLESS FOR ALL CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITIES, FINES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES, COURT COSTS, AND ALL OTHER DEFENSE COSTS) FOR INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY SUSTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE CAUSED BY:
 - 2.07.1.1 CONTRACTOR'S AND/OR ITS EMPLOYEES'. AGENTS', CONTRACTORS', OFFICERS'. DIRECTORS'. SUBCONTRACTORS' (COLLECTIVELY IN NUMBERED SUBPARAGRAPHS 2.07.1.1 THROUGH 2.07.1.3, "CONTRACTOR") ACTUAL OR ALLEGED NEGLIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL ACTS OR **OMISSIONS:**
 - 2.07.1.2 THE CITY'S AND CONTRACTOR'S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS IMMUNE FROM LIABILITY OR NOT; AND
 - 2.07.1.3 THE CITY'S AND CONTRACTOR'S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY LIABILITY, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS IMMUNE FROM LIABILITY OR NOT.
- 2.07.2 CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY HARMLESS DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT AND FOR FOUR YEARS AFTER THE AGREEMENT TERMINATES. CONTRACTOR'S INDEMNIFICATION IS LIMITED TO \$500,000 PER OCCURRENCE.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT INDEMNIFY THE CITY FOR THE CITY'S SOLE NEGLIGENCE.

2.08 <u>INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE – PATENT, COPYRIGHT, TRADEMARK, AND TRADE SECRET INFRINGEMENT</u>

- 2.08.1 CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL RELEASE AND DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY THE "CITY") FROM ALL CLAIMS OR CAUSES OF ACTION BROUGHT AGAINST THE CITY BY ANY PARTY, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR, ALLEGING THAT THE CITY'S USE OF ANY EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, PROCESS, OR DOCUMENTS CONTRACTOR FURNISHES DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT INFRINGES ON A PATENT, COPYRIGHT, OR TRADEMARK, OR MISAPPROPRIATES A TRADE SECRET. CONTRACTOR SHALL PAY ALL COSTS (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES, COURT COSTS, AND ALL OTHER DEFENSE COSTS) AND DAMAGES AWARDED.
- 2.08.2 CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT SETTLE ANY CLAIM ON TERMS WHICH PREVENT THE CITY FROM USING THE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, PROCESS, AND DOCUMENTS WITHOUT THE CITY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.
- 2.08.3 WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER BEING NOTIFIED OF THE CLAIM, CONTRACTOR SHALL, AT ITS OWN EXPENSE, EITHER (1) OBTAIN FOR THE CITY THE RIGHT TO CONTINUE USING THE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, PROCESS, AND DOCUMENTS OR, (2) IF BOTH PARTIES AGREE, REPLACE OR MODIFY THEM WITH COMPATIBLE AND FUNCTIONALLY EQUIVALENT PRODUCTS. IF NONE OF THESE ALTERNATIVES IS REASONABLY AVAILABLE, THE CITY MAY RETURN THE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, OR DOCUMENTS, OR DISCONTINUE THE PROCESS, AND CONTRACTOR SHALL REFUND THE PURCHASE PRICE.

2.09 SUBCONTRACTOR'S INDEMNITY

2.09.1 CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE ALL OF ITS SUBCONTRACTORS (AND THEIR SUBCONTRACTORS) TO RELEASE AND INDEMNIFY THE CITY TO THE SAME EXTENT AND IN SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME FORM AS ITS RELEASE AND INDEMNITY TO THE CITY.

2.10 <u>INDEMNIFICATION PROCEDURES</u>

- 2.10.1 <u>Notice of Claims</u>. If the City or Contractor receives notice of any claim or circumstances which could give rise to an indemnified loss, the receiving Party shall give written notice to the other Party within 30 days. The notice must include the following:
 - 2.10.1.1 a description of the indemnification event in reasonable detail;
 - 2.10.1.2 the basis on which indemnification may be due; and

- 2.10.1.3 the anticipated amount of the indemnified loss.
- 2.10.1.4 This notice does not estop or prevent the City from later asserting a different basis for indemnification or a different amount of indemnified loss than that indicated in the initial notice. If the City does not provide this notice within the 30-day period, it does not waive any right to indemnification except to the extent that Contractor is prejudiced, suffers loss, or incurs expense because of the delay.

2.10.2 <u>Defense of Claims</u>

- 2.10.2.1 <u>Assumption of Defense</u>. Contractor may assume the defense of the claim at its own expense with counsel chosen by it that is reasonably satisfactory to the City Attorney. Contractor shall then control the defense and any negotiations to settle the claim, subject to the City Attorney's consent or agreement to the settlement, which consent or agreement shall not unreasonably be withheld. Within 10 days after receiving written notice of the indemnification request, Contractor must advise the City as to whether or not it will defend the claim. If Contractor does not assume the defense, the City shall assume and control the defense, and all defense expenses constitute an indemnification loss.
- 2.10.2.2 <u>Continued Participation</u>. If Contractor elects to defend the claim, the City may retain separate counsel to participate in (but not control) the defense and to participate in (but not control) any settlement negotiations.

2.11 **INSURANCE**

2.11.1 **Risks and Limits of Liability**. Contractor shall maintain the following insurance coverages in the following amounts:

COVERAGE	<u>LIMIT OF LIABILITY</u>
Workers' Compensation	Statutory for Workers' Compensation
Employer's Liability	 Bodily Injury by Accident \$500,000 (each accident) Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 (policy limit) Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 (each employee)
Commercial General Liability: Bodily and Personal Injury; Products and Completed Operations Coverage	Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Combined Limits of \$1,000,000 each Occurrence, and \$2,000,000 aggregate
Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 combined single limit for: (i) Any Auto; or (ii) All Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Autos
Professional Liability (if applicable)	\$1,000,000 per occurrence; \$2,000,000 aggregate
Excess Liability Coverage, or Umbrella Coverage, for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000

Aggregate Limits are per 12-month policy period unless otherwise indicated.

- 2.11.2 Insurance Coverage. At all times during the term of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals, Contractor shall provide and maintain insurance coverage that meets the Agreement requirements. Prior to beginning performance under the Agreement, at any time upon the Director's request, or each time coverage is renewed or updated, Contractor shall furnish to the Director current certificates of insurance, endorsements, all policies, or other policy documents evidencing adequate coverage, as necessary. Contractor shall be responsible for and pay: (i) all premiums; and (ii) any claims or losses to the extent of any deductible amounts. Contractor waives any claim it may have for premiums or deductibles against the City, its officers, agents, or employees. Contractor shall also require all subcontractors or consultants whose subcontracts exceed \$100,000 to provide proof of insurance coverage meeting all requirements stated above except amount. The amount must be commensurate with the amount of the subcontract, but no less than \$500,000 per claim.
- 2.11.3 Form of insurance. The form of the insurance shall be approved by the Director and the City Attorney; such approval (or lack thereof) shall never: (i) excuse non-compliance with the terms of this Section; or (ii) waive or estop the City from asserting its rights to terminate this Agreement. The policy issuer shall: (i) have a Certificate of Authority to transact insurance business in Texas; or (ii) be an eligible non-admitted insurer in the State of Texas and have a Best's rating of at least B+, and a Best's Financial Size Category of Class VI or better, according to the most current Best's Key Rating Guide.
- 2.11.4 Required Coverage. The City shall be an Additional Insured under this Agreement, and all policies, except Professional Liability and Worker's Compensation, shall explicitly name the City as an Additional Insured. The City shall enjoy the same coverage as the Named Insured without regard to other Agreement provisions. Contractor waives any claim or right of subrogation to recover against the City, its officers, agents, or employees, and each of Contractor's insurance policies except professional liability must contain coverage waiving such claim. Each policy, except Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability, must also contain an endorsement that the policy is primary to any other insurance available to the Additional Insured with respect to claims arising under this Agreement. If professional liability coverage is written on a "claims made" basis, Contractor shall also provide proof of renewal each year for two years after substantial completion of the project, or in the alternative: evidence of extended reporting period coverage for a period of two years after substantial completion, or a project liability policy for the project covered by this Agreement with a duration of two years after substantial completion. All certificates of insurance submitted by Contractor shall be accompanied by endorsements for: (i) Additional Insured coverage in favor of the City for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies; and (ii) Waivers of Subrogation in favor of the City for Commercial General

Liability, Automobile Liability and Workers' Compensation/Employers' Liability policies. The Director will consider all other forms on a case-by-case basis.

- 2.11.5 Notice. CONTRACTOR SHALL GIVE 30 DAYS' ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE DIRECTOR IF ANY OF ITS INSURANCE POLICIES ARE CANCELED OR NON-RENEWED. Within the 30-day period, Contractor shall provide other suitable policies in order to maintain the required coverage. If Contractor does not comply with this requirement, the Director, at his or her sole discretion, may immediately suspend Contractor from any further performance under this Agreement and begin procedures to terminate for default.
- 2.11.6 **Other Insurance**. If requested by the Director, Contractor shall furnish adequate evidence of Social Security and Unemployment Compensation Insurance, to the extent applicable to Contractor's operations under this Agreement.

2.12 **PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS**

2.12.1 Contractor's performance in conjunction with this Agreement shall be in a manner consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercises by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances (the "Standard of Care").

2.13 **WARRANTIES**

2.13.1 Contractor shall perform all work in a good and workmanlike manner, meeting the standards of quality prevailing in Harris County, Texas for work of this kind. Contractor shall perform all work using trained and skilled persons having substantial experience performing the work required under this Agreement.

2.14 USE AND OWNERSHIP OF DATA AND WORK PRODUCTS

- 2.14.1 The City may use and shall be permitted to use all City Data, Contractor Data, and Work Products.
- 2.14.2 Contractor warrants that it owns the copyright to Contractor Data.
- 2.14.3 Contractor conveys and assigns to the City its entire interest and full ownership worldwide in and to all Work Products and all Proprietary Rights therein.
- 2.14.4 Contractor shall not claim or exercise any Proprietary Rights in or to the Work Products. If requested by the Director, Contractor shall place a conspicuous notation on any Work Products indicating that the City owns the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein.
- 2.14.5 Contractor's assignment of its interest in the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein to the City does not constitute a mere license or franchise to the City.

- 2.14.6 Contractor shall execute all documents required by the Director to further evidence Contractor's assignment and the City's ownership of the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein. Contractor shall reasonably cooperate with City in registering, creating, and enforcing the City's ownership of the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein.
- 2.14.7 All Work Products are "works made for hire."
- 2.14.8 Contractor shall deliver to the Director all or any part of the original City Data, Contractor Data, Work Products, and/or all other files and materials that Contractor produces or gathers during its performance under this Agreement, in the format and on the media specified by Director, within five Business Days after written request from Director or after this Agreement terminates or otherwise expires.
- 2.14.9 Contractor may retain copies of the Work Products for its archives. Contractor shall not otherwise use, sell, license, or market the Work Products.
- 2.14.10 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the City is, will be, and shall remain at all times the sole owner of all City Documents and all Work Products. Contractor expressly acknowledges that the City has all right, title, or other ownership interest in all City Documents and all Work Products. Contractor shall not possess or assert any lien or other right against any City Documents or Work Products.

2.15 **CONFIDENTIALITY**

- 2.15.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Receiving Party shall:
 - 2.15.1.1 Hold all Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party in confidence;
 - 2.15.1.2 Protect all Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party with at least the same degree of care by which it protects its own Confidential Information, and in accordance with any applicable laws or regulations;
 - 2.15.1.3 Not use, reproduce, or copy any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party except as necessary for purposes of performing any duties or exercising any rights under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement unless the Disclosing Party otherwise agrees in writing;
 - 2.15.1.4 Not disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party to any person or entity except the Receiving Party's agents, Contractors, employees, and representatives with a need to know for purposes of performing any duties or exercising any rights under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement unless the Disclosing Party otherwise agrees in writing;
 - 2.15.1.5 Not remove any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party from the continental United States;
 - 2.15.1.6 Return or destroy all Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party and any copies of such Confidential Information upon request of the Disclosing Party and, in any event, when no longer needed or permitted

- for use under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement; and
- 2.15.1.7 Advise its agents, Contractors, employees, and representatives of their obligations with respect to the Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party.
- 2.15.2 No Receiving Party shall have any obligation under this Section (Confidentiality) as to any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party that:
 - 2.15.2.1 Was previously known to it free and clear of any obligation to keep it confidential;
 - 2.15.2.2 Except as otherwise provided under this Agreement, is disclosed to third parties by the Disclosing Party without restriction;
 - 2.15.2.3 Is or becomes publicly available by other than unauthorized disclosure;
 - 2.15.2.4 Is independently developed by it; or
 - 2.15.2.5 Is disclosed in response to requests made under the Texas Public Information Act or a court order. However, the Receiving Party ordered to disclose the Confidential Information shall: (i) give the Disclosing Party of the Confidential Information prompt written notice of all such requests as soon as reasonably possible, and (ii) reasonably cooperate with the Disclosing Party's efforts to obtain a protective order protecting the Confidential Information from disclosure.
 - 2.15.2.6 No Receiving Party shall be liable for the inadvertent or accidental disclosure of Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party, if the disclosure occurs despite the exercise of a reasonable degree of care, which is at least as great as the care the Receiving Party normally takes to protect its own Confidential Information of a similar nature.
 - 2.15.2.7 Contractor shall obtain written agreements from its agents, employees, Contractors, and subcontractors that bind them to the terms of this Section (Confidentiality).

2.16 **LICENSES AND PERMITS**

2.16.1 Contractor shall obtain, maintain, and pay for all licenses, permits, and certificates including all professional licenses required by any statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation for the performance under this Agreement. Contractor shall immediately notify the Director of any suspension, revocation, or other detrimental action against its license.

2.17 **COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS**

2.17.1 Contractor shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and the City Charter and Code of Ordinances in its performance under this Agreement. Contractor, and its Subcontractors, if any, acknowledges that it is subject to and shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,

regulations, rules, and policies applicable to the Hurricane Harvey Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery ("CDBG-DR17") program including, without limitation, Non-Exclusive List of Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Rules listed in **EXHIBIT H**, which include the federal regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 570 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200.

2.18 **SECTION 3 REGULATIONS**

2.18.1 The work to be performed under this Agreement is on a project assisted under a program providing federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 170u, "Section 3") and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135 apply to the Agreement. Under Section 3, to the greatest extent feasible, for any contract award in excess of \$100,000, the Contractor shall give opportunities for training and employment to lower-income residents of the City and shall award contracts for work in connection with the project to business concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the City.

2.19 COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ORDINANCE

2.19.1 Contractor shall comply with City's Equal Employment Opportunity Ordinance as set out in in Section 15-17 of the Code of Ordinances.

2.20 **CONFLICTS OF INTEREST**

- 2.20.1 Contractor shall comply with all conflicts of interest laws and regulations applicable to this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly disclose in writing to the City all actual or potential conflicts of interest relative to the performance of this Agreement.
- 2.20.2 If an actual or potential conflict arises between the City's interests and the interests of other clients Contractor represents, Contractor shall immediately notify the Director promptly in writing. If the Director consents to Contractor's continued representation of the other clients, he or she shall notify Contractor in writing. If the Director does not issue written consent within 3 business days after receipt of Contractor's notice, Contractor shall immediately terminate its representation of the other client whose interests are or may be in conflict with those of the City.

2.21 **NON-DISCRIMINATION**

2.20.1 Contractor shall comply with the applicable non-discrimination provisions required by the United States of America, including but not limited to the provisions of 49 CFR Part 21. These provisions are inclusive of any amendments which may be made to such regulations. Further, Contractor shall include the summary of the provisions of 49 CFR Part 21, as may be amended, in subcontracts it enters into under this Agreement. This summary is set forth in **Exhibit J**.

2.22 MWBE COMPLIANCE

2.22.1 Contractor shall comply with the City's Minority and Women Business Enterprise

("MWBE") programs as set out in Chapter 15, Article V of the City of Houston Code of Ordinances. Contractor shall make good faith efforts to award subcontracts or supply agreements in at least **24**% of the value of this Agreement to MWBEs. Contractor acknowledges that it has reviewed the requirements for good faith efforts on file with the City's Office of Business Opportunities ("OBO") and will comply with them.

2.22.2 Contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts with MWBE subcontractors and suppliers contain the following terms:

[Name of MWBE subcontractor] shall not delegate or subcontract more than 50% of the work under this subcontract to any other subcontractor or supplier without the express written consent of the City of Houston's Office of Business Opportunity Director (the "Director").

[Name of MWBE subcontractor] shall permit representatives of the City of Houston, at all reasonable times, to perform: (i) audits of the books and records of the subcontractor; and (ii) inspections of all places where work is to be undertaken in connection with this subcontract. Subcontractor shall keep such books and records available for such purpose for at least 4 years after the end of its performance under this subcontract. Nothing in this provision shall affect the time for bringing a cause of action nor the applicable statute of limitations.

Within five Business Days of execution of this subcontract, Contractor and Subcontractor shall designate in writing to the Director an agent for receiving any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to Chapter 15 of the Houston City Code of Ordinances, along with the street and mailing address and phone number of such agent.

Any controversy between the Parties involving the construction or application of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this subcontract may be submitted to the Director. The Director may prescribe procedures to provide dispute resolution by neutrals in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 15 of the Houston City Code of Ordinances.

2.22.3 Contractor shall adhere to and comply with 2 CFR § 200.321 if subcontracts are to be let under this Agreement. The Contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, is required to take the following affirmative steps to ensure that small business firms, minority business firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible pursuant to 2 CFR Section § 200.321. Affirmative steps must include: (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

2.22.4 Contractor must clearly document the communication and outreach to the certified business. Documentation may include mail logs, phone logs, or similar records documenting the use of the above identified sources of information about MWSBE firms, the efforts to contact them, and other efforts to meet the above requirements.

2.23. DRUG ABUSE DETECTION AND DETERRENCE

- 2.23.1 It is the policy of the City to achieve a drug-free workforce and workplace. The manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, sale, or use of illegal drugs or alcohol by contractors while on City Premises is prohibited. Contractor shall comply with all the requirements and procedures set forth in the Mayor's Drug Abuse Detection and Deterrence Procedures for Contractors, Executive Order No. 1-31 (the "Executive Order"), which is incorporated into this Agreement and is on file in the City Secretary's Office.
- 2.23.2 Before the City signs this Agreement, Contractor shall file with the Contract Compliance Officer for Drug Testing ("CCODT"):
 - 2.23.2.1 a copy of its drug-free workplace policy;
 - 2.23.2.2 the Drug Policy Compliance Agreement substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit "C", together with a written designation of all safety impact positions; and
 - 2.23.2.3 if applicable (e.g., no safety impact positions), the Certification of No Safety Impact Positions, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit "D".
- 2.23.3 If Contractor files a written designation of safety impact positions with its Drug Policy Compliance Agreement, it also shall file every 6 months during the performance of this Agreement or on completion of this Agreement if performance is less than 6 months, a Drug Policy Compliance Declaration in a form substantially similar to Exhibit "E". Contractor shall submit the Drug Policy Compliance Declaration to the CCODT within 30 days of the expiration of each 6-month period of performance and within 30 days of completion of this Agreement. The first 6-month period begins to run on the date the City issues its Notice to Proceed or, if no Notice to Proceed is issued, on the first day Contractor begins work under this Agreement.
- 2.23.4 Contractor also shall file updated designations of safety impact positions with the CCODT if additional safety impact positions are added to Contractor's employee work force.
- 2.23.5 Contractor shall require that its subcontractors comply with the Executive Order, and Contractor shall secure and maintain the required documents for City inspection.

2.24. **CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE**

2.24.1 Contractor shall make citizen satisfaction a priority in providing services under this Agreement. Contractor shall train its employees to be a customer service-oriented

and to positively and politely interact with citizens when performing contract services. Contractor's employees shall be clean, courteous, efficient, and neat in appearance and committed to offering the highest quality of service to the public. If, in the Director's opinion, Contractor is not interacting in a positive and polite manner with citizens, he or she shall direct Contractor to take all remedial steps to conform to these standards.

2.25. **PAY OR PLAY**

2.25.1 The requirements and terms of the City of Houston Pay or Play program, as set out in Executive Order 1-7, as revised from time to time, are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes. Contractor has reviewed Executive Order No. 1-7, as revised, and shall comply with its terms and conditions.

2.26 ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION

- 2.26.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Section 2.26, Contractor shall not submit an invoice or request for payment (each, a "Request for Payment") and Contractor shall not be entitled to payment and the City shall have no duty to pay Contractor unless the Director accepts the services and other Deliverables specified in Exhibit "B" and such Request for Payment is issued in conjunction with the issuance of a Task Order in accordance with this Section 2.26.
- 2.26.2 Contractor shall provide written notice to the Director upon completion or delivery of the services or Deliverables specified in Exhibit "B" and in a Task Order issued by the City. On or before the twentieth (20th) Business Day after the date the Director receives Contractor's written notice of completion or delivery, the Director shall provide written notice to Contractor stating whether the Director has accepted or rejected the services or Deliverables along with the reason(s) for any rejection. Failure of the Director to provide written notice of acceptance or rejection of any services or Deliverables on or before the 20th Business Day from his receipt of the Contractor's written notice of completion or delivery does not constitute acceptance or approval of the services or Deliverables by the Director or the City. If the Director fails to provide a written notice of acceptance or rejection by the 20th Business Day from the Director's receipt of Contractor's written notice of completion or delivery, Contractor may submit a Request for Payment for the services or Deliverables and such Request for Payment shall be subject to the Director's review, verification, and approval or dispute processes specified in the Payment Terms in Section 3.01 of this Agreement.
- 2.26.3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or elsewhere, the Director may, in his sole discretion, approve in writing a partial acceptance of the services and other Deliverables set forth in Exhibit "B", if any, and in a Task Order issued by the City.
- 2.26.4 If the Director rejects any services or Deliverables, in whole or part, Contractor shall have fifteen (15) Business Days after the Director sends written notification of rejection to correct or otherwise replace such services or Deliverables as necessary to conform to the Director's rejection notice. Contractor's corrections or replacements for rejected services or Deliverables shall be provided at no additional cost to the City. Contractor shall provide written notice to the Director

- upon completion of any such correction(s) or replacement(s) after the receipt of which the Director shall continue to either accept or reject (as provided under this Section) and Contractor shall continue to make any necessary correction(s) or replacement(s) (as provided under this Section) until the Director either accepts in writing all previously rejected services or Deliverable or issues a written final rejection notice in accordance with Section 2.26.5 of this Agreement.
- 2.26.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if the Director does not accept any services or Deliverables after two or more attempted correction(s) or replacement(s) of such services or Deliverables by Contractor, the Director may, in his reasonable discretion, issue a written final rejection notice to Contractor for such services and other Deliverables and the City shall have no obligation to pay any amount whatsoever related to those services or Deliverables that are the subject of the final rejection notice. The Director may, at any time after a final rejection notification has been issued, declare a default and elect to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, as provided in Section 4.05 of this Agreement.
- 2.26.6 The City reserves all other available rights and remedies at law or in equity, including without limitation all rights and remedies and rights under Article 2 of the Texas Business and Commerce Code.

2.27. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS

- 2.27.1 Additional Products and Services. Subject to the allocation of funds, the CPO may add similar equipment, supplies, services, or locations, within the scope of this Agreement, to the list of equipment, supplies, services, or locations to be performed or provided by giving written notification to Contractor. For purposes of this Section, the "Effective Date" means the date specified in the notification from the CPO. As of the Effective Date, each item added is subject to this Agreement, as if it had originally been a part, but the charge for each item starts to accrue only on the Effective Date. In the event the additional equipment, supplies, services, or locations are not identical to the items(s) already under this Agreement, the charges therefor will then be Contractor's normal and customary charges or rates for the equipment, supplies, services, or locations classified in the Fees and Costs (Exhibit "F").
- 2.27.2 Exclusion of Products and Services. If a deliverable or service that is subject to this Agreement is deleted, lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged, sold, replaced, or otherwise disposed of, the CPO may exclude it from the operation of this Agreement by notifying Contractor in writing. The notice takes effect immediately on its receipt by Contractor. More than one notice may be given. When a notice is received, Contractor shall delete the charge for the excluded deliverable or service from the sum(s) otherwise due under this Agreement.
- 2.27.3 The total charges for additions and deletions to this Agreement must never exceed 25% of the original contract amount unless:
 - 2.27.3.1 The additions are exempt from the competitive bidding or proposal requirements set forth in Tex. Local Govt. Code Chapter 252; or
 - 2.27.3.2 The City acquires the additions from Contractor through a competitive

bid or competitive proposal.

2.28 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL

2.28.1 Contractor certifies that Contractor is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement not to engage in, the boycott of Israel as defined by Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2.29 <u>ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY FOR HUMAN TRAFFICKING AND RELATED</u> ACTIVITIES

2.29.1 The requirements and terms of the City of Houston's Zero Tolerance Policy for Human Trafficking and Related Activities, as set forth in Executive Order 1-56, as revised from time to time, are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes. Contractor has reviewed Executive Order 1-56, as revised, and shall comply with its terms and conditions as they are set out at the time of the Countersignature Date. Contractor shall notify the CPO, City Attorney, and the Director of any information regarding possible violation by Contractor or its subcontractors providing services or goods under this Agreement within 7 days of Contractor becoming aware of or having a reasonable belief that such violations may have occurred, have occurred, or are reasonably likely to occur.

2.30 PRESERVATION OF CONTRACTING INFORMATION

- 2.30.1 The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, may apply to this Agreement and the Contractor agrees that this Agreement can be terminated if the Contractor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. If the requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, apply to this Agreement, then for the duration of this Agreement (including the initial term, any renewal terms, and any extensions), Contractor shall preserve all Contracting Information, as defined by Section 552.003 of the Texas Government Code, related to this Agreement as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the City pursuant to federal or state law or regulation, city ordinance or city policy, which record retention requirements include but are not limited to those set forth in Chapters 201 and 205 of the Texas Local Government Code and Texas Administrative Code Title 13, Chapter 7. Within five business days after receiving a request from the Director, Contractor shall provide any Contracting Information related to this Agreement that is in the custody or possession of Contractor. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall, at the Director's election, either (a) provide, at no cost to the City, all Contracting Information related to this Agreement that is in the custody or possession of Contractor, or (b) preserve the Contracting Information related to this Agreement as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the City pursuant to federal or state law or regulation. city ordinance or City policy.
- 2.30.2 If Contractor fails to comply with any one or more of the requirements of this Section, <u>Preservation of Contracting Information</u>, or Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, then, in accordance with and pursuant to the processes and procedures set forth in Sections 552.373 and 552.374 of the Texas Government Code, the Director shall provide notice to the Contractor and may

terminate this Agreement. To effect final termination, the Director must notify Contractor in writing with a copy of the notice to the CPO. After receiving the notice, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all services under this Agreement, and promptly cancel all orders or subcontracts chargeable to this Agreement.

2.31 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF ENERGY COMPANIES

2.31.1 Contractor certifies that Contract is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement not to engage in, the boycott of energy companies as defined by Section 809.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2.32 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF FIREARM ENTITIES OR FIREARM TRADE ASSOCIATIONS

2.32.1 Contractor certifies that Contractor does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association, or will not discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association for the duration of this Agreement, as defined by Section 2274.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2.33 CERTIFICATION OF NO BUSINESS WITH FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATIONS

2.33.1 For purposes of Section 2252.152 of the Code, Contractor certifies that at the time of this Agreement neither Contractor nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Contractor, is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Account under Sections 2252.153 or 2270.0201 of the Code as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or to a foreign terrorist organization.

ARTICLE 3. DUTIES OF CITY

3.01 **PAYMENT TERMS**

3.01.1 The City shall pay Contractor for the services actually performed under each Task Order in connection with this Agreement in accordance with the rates reflected in the applicable Task Order, which rates must be: (1) less than or equal to the rate schedule set forth in Exhibit "B-2" or otherwise in conformance with the alternative billing arrangements, if any, as set forth in Exhibit "B-2". City's payments to Contractor for services are subject to the allocation of funds and all fees and expenses may only be paid from the Allocated Funds, as provided in below, unless the Director agrees, in writing, to expand the scope of the Services and simultaneously provide additional funding for the expanded scope.

3.02 **TAXES**

3.02.1 The City is exempt from payment of Federal Excise and Transportation Tax and Texas Limited Sales and Use Tax. Contractor's invoices to the City must not contain assessments of any of these taxes. The Director will furnish the City's exemption certificate and federal tax identification number to Contractor if requested.

3.03 **METHOD OF PAYMENT**

- 3.03.1 Upon the Director's written acceptance and approval of the services specified in a Task Order, or upon the Director's failure to provide a written notification of acceptance or rejection of services specified in a Task Order in accordance with Section 2.26 of this Agreement, Contractor may submit a Request for Payment to the Director. No Request for Payment, nor the cumulative sum of all Requests for Payment, shall exceed the hourly rates or maximum budget for each line item set forth in the applicable Task Order.
- 3.03.2 Subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement, the City shall pay Contractor on the basis of Requests for Payment submitted by Contractor and approved by the Director showing (1) a description of the services performed during the period covered by the Request for Payment and (2) the amount the Contractor requests for payment. Requests for Payment must state the specific services performed or Deliverables delivered and the corresponding prices for each item as indicated in the Scope of Services or in the applicable Task Order. If applicable, for hourly rates for items billable as a time and materials payment in accordance with the Fee Schedule, Contractor must provide detailed timesheets which shall include the name of Contractor's or subcontractor's staff person, date services were performed by each staffer, the amount of time spent performing the services per day by each staffer, and a detailed description of the services performed by each staffer on each day which description and services must correspond to a specific and discrete Deliverable or subtask in the Scope of Services including Exhibit "B", if any, and/or as set forth in the applicable task order. The City shall make payments to Contractor at its address for notices within 30 days of receipt of an approved invoice. All fees due to Contractor under this Agreement shall only be payable from certain Allocated Funds, as provided below.
- 3.03.3 If the City disputes any item in an invoice Contractor submits for any reason, including lack of supporting documentation, the Director shall temporarily delete the disputed item and pay the remainder of the invoice. The Director shall promptly notify Contractor of the dispute and request remedial action. After any dispute is settled, Contractor shall include the disputed amount on a subsequent regularly scheduled invoice or on a special invoice for the disputed item only.

3.04 **LIMIT OF APPROPRIATION**

- 3.04.1 The City's duty to pay money to Contractor under this Agreement is limited in its entirety by the provisions of this Section.
- 3.04.2 Contractor understands that the City's obligation for payment under this Agreement, if any, is limited to CDBG-DR17 funds received by the City from the Texas General Land Office ("GLO") in accordance with the applicable GLO Harvey Contract for the performance of services under this Agreement. HCDD shall perform the day-to-day administration and oversight of the CDBG-DR17 funds. Unless adequate CDBG-DR17 funds are received, the City shall have no obligation to pay Contractor. Contractor must look to these designated funds only and to no other funds for the City's payment under this Agreement, and that the City is permanently excused from making payments due under this Agreement if, for whatever reason, there is a lack of CDBG-DR17 funds.

- 3.04.3 In order to comply with Article II, Sections 19 and 19a of the City's Charter and Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution, the City has appropriated and allocated the sum of **Seven Hundred Thousand and no/100 dollars** (\$700,000.00) to pay money due under this Agreement (the "Original Allocation"). To the extent that City Council has approved additional funding, the executive and legislative officers of the City, in their discretion, may allocate supplemental funds (each a "Supplemental Allocation" and collectively, the "Supplemental Allocations") for this Agreement, but they are not obligated to do so. Therefore, the Parties have agreed to the following procedures and remedies:
 - 3.04.2.1 The City has not allocated supplemental funds or made a Supplemental Allocation for this Agreement unless the City has issued to Contractor a Service Release Order, or similar form approved by the City Controller, containing the language set out below. When necessary, the Supplemental Allocation shall be approved by motion or ordinance of City Council.

NOTICE OF SUPPLEMENTAL ALLOCATION OF FUNDS

By the signature below, the City Controller certifies that, upon the request of the Director, the supplemental sum set out below has been allocated for the purposes of the Agreement out of funds appropriated for this purpose by the City Council of the City of Houston. This Supplemental Allocation has been charged to such appropriation.

Ď _____

3.04.2.2 The Original Allocation plus all Supplemental Allocations are the "Allocated Funds." The City shall never be obligated to pay any money under this Agreement in excess of the Allocated Funds. Contractor must assure itself that sufficient allocations have been made to pay for services it provides. If Allocated Funds are exhausted, Contractor's only remedy is suspension or termination of its performance under this Agreement, and it has no other remedy in law or in equity against the City and no right to damages of any kind.

3.05 ACCESS TO SITE

3.05.1 Contractor may enter and leave the premises at all reasonable times without charge. Contractor and its employees may use the common areas and roadways of the premises where it is to perform the services together with all facilities, equipment, improvements, and services provided in connection with the premises for common use. This excludes parking for Contractor's personnel. Contractor shall repair any damage caused by it or its employees as a result of its use of the common areas.

3.06 ACCESS TO DATA

- 3.06.1 The City shall, to the extent permitted by law, allow Contractor to access and make copies of documents in the possession or control of the City or available to it that are reasonably necessary for Contractor to perform under this Agreement.
- 3.06.2 The City does not, however, represent that all existing conditions are fully documented, nor is the City obligated to develop new documentation for Contractor's use.
- 3.06.3 For any raw data created, assembled, used, maintained, collected, or stored by Contractor for or on behalf of the City, Contractor shall provide the City either the raw data itself or the ability to extract the raw data in a format mutually agreed upon by both Parties at no additional cost to the City.

3.07 **NO QUANTITY GUARANTEE**

- 3.07.1 This Agreement does not create an exclusive right in Contractor to perform all services concerning the subject of this Agreement. The City may procure and execute contracts with other consulting firms for the same, similar, or additional services as those set forth in this Agreement or any Scope of Services or Change Order.
- 3.07.2 The City makes no express or implied representations, warranties, or guarantees whatsoever, that any particular quantity, type, task area, or dollar amount of services will be procured or purchased from Contractor through this Agreement or any Scope of Services; nor does the City make any express or implied representations, warranties, or guarantees, whatsoever for the amount or value of revenue that Contractor may ultimately derive from or through this Agreement or any Scope of Services.

ARTICLE 4. TERM AND TERMINATION

4.01. **AGREEMENT TERM**

4.01.1 This Agreement is effective on the Countersignature Date and shall and shall expire on December 31, 2023 (the "Initial Term").

4.02 **NOTICE TO PROCEED**

4.02.1 Contractor shall begin performance under this Agreement on the date specified in a Notice to Proceed from the CPO or Director.

4.03. **RENEWALS**

4.03.1 In addition to the Director's authority more particularly set forth in Section 2.03 hereinabove, prior to the expiration of the Initial Term, the Director, in his or her sole discretion, may extend this Agreement for up to one (1) year by written notice to Contractor. The Director may exercise this right to extend this Agreement as many times as necessary so long as such extensions cumulatively do not exceed one (1) year.

4.04. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE BY CITY

- 4.04.1 The Director may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 30 days' written notice to Contractor, with a copy of the notice to the CPO. The City's right to terminate this Agreement for convenience is cumulative of all rights and remedies, which exist now or in the future.
- 4.04.2 On receiving the notice, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all services under this Agreement and cancel all existing orders and subcontracts that are chargeable to this Agreement. As soon as practicable after receiving the termination notice, Contractor shall submit an invoice showing in detail the services performed under this Agreement up to the termination date. The City shall then pay the fees to Contractor for services actually performed, but not already paid for, in the same manner as prescribed in this Agreement unless the fees exceed the allocated funds remaining under this Agreement.
- 4.04.3 RECEIPT OF PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED IS CONTRACTOR'S ONLY REMEDY FOR THE CITY'S TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE, WHICH DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A DEFAULT OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM (OTHER THAN ITS CLAIM FOR PAYMENT AS SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION), IT MAY HAVE NOW OR IN THE FUTURE FOR FINANCIAL LOSSES OR OTHER DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE CITY'S TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.

4.05. **TERMINATION FOR CAUSE BY CITY**

- 4.05.1 If Contractor defaults under this Agreement, the Director may either terminate this Agreement or allow Contractor to cure the default as provided below. The City's right to terminate this Agreement for Contractor's default is cumulative of all rights and remedies which exist now or in the future. Default by Contractor occurs if:
 - 4.05.1.1 Contractor fails to perform any of its duties under this Agreement;
 - 4.05.1.2 Contractor becomes insolvent;
 - 4.05.1.3 all or a substantial part of Contractor's assets are assigned for the benefit of its creditors; or
 - 4.05.1.4 a receiver or trustee is appointed for Contractor.
- 4.05.2 If a default occurs, the Director may, but is not obligated to, deliver a written notice to Contractor (with a copy of the notice to the CPO) describing the default and the termination date. The Director, at his or her sole option, may extend the termination date to a later date. If the Director allows Contractor to cure the default and Contractor does so to the Director's satisfaction before the termination date, then the termination is ineffective. If Contractor does not cure the default before the termination date, then the Director may terminate this Contract on the termination date, at no further obligation of the City.
- 4.05.3 To effect final termination, the Director must notify Contractor in writing, with a copy

of the notice to the CPO. After receiving the notice, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all services under this Agreement and promptly cancel all orders or subcontracts chargeable to this Agreement.

4.06. **EFFECTS OF TERMINATION**

4.06.1 Upon termination, Contractor shall immediately turn over all work in progress and final Deliverables to the Director.

ARTICLE 5. MISCELLANEOUS

5.01 **INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR**

5.01 Contractor shall perform its obligations under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as an employee of the City.

5.02 **FORCE MAJEURE**

- 5.02.1 Timely performance by both Parties is essential to this Agreement. However, neither Party is liable for reasonable delays in performing its obligations under this Agreement to the extent the delay is caused by Force Majeure that directly impacts the City or Contractor. The event of Force Majeure may permit a reasonable delay in performance but does not excuse a Party's obligations to complete performance under this Agreement. Force Majeure means: fires, interruption of utility services, pandemics or epidemics in the City, floods, hurricanes, tornadoes, ice storms and other natural disasters, explosions, war, terrorist acts against the City or Contractor, riots, court orders, and the acts of superior governmental or military authority, and which the affected Party is unable to prevent by the exercise of reasonable diligence. The term does not include any changes in general economic conditions such as inflation, interest rates, economic downturn, or other factors of general application, or an event that merely makes performance more difficult, expensive, or impractical. Force Majeure does not entitle Contractor to extra reimbursable expenses or payment.
- 5.02.2 This relief is not applicable unless the affected Party does the following:
 - 5.02.2.1 uses due diligence to remove the effects of the Force Majeure as quickly as possible and to continue performance notwithstanding the Force Majeure; and
 - 5.02.2.2 provides the other Party with prompt written notice of the cause and its anticipated effect.
- 5.02.3 The Director will review claims that a Force Majeure that directly impacts the City or Contractor has occurred and render a written decision within 14 days.
- 5.02.4 The City may perform contract functions itself or contract them out during periods of Force Majeure. Such performance is not a default or breach of this Agreement by the City.

- 5.02.5 If the Force Majeure continues for more than 7 days from the date performance is affected, the Director may terminate this Agreement by giving 7 days' written notice to Contractor. This termination is not a default or breach of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM IT MAY HAVE FOR FINANCIAL LOSSES OR OTHER DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE TERMINATION EXCEPT FOR AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE AGREEMENT UP TO THE TIME THE WORK IS HALTED DUE TO FORCE MAJEURE.
- 5.02.6 Contractor is not relieved from performing its obligations under this Agreement due to a strike or work slowdown of its employees. Contractor shall employ only fully trained and qualified personnel during a strike.

5.03 **SEVERABILITY**

5.03.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason found to be unenforceable, all other parts remain enforceable unless the result materially prejudices either Party.

5.04 **ENTIRE AGREEMENT**

5.04.1 This Agreement merges the prior negotiations and understandings of the Parties and embodies the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to this subject matter hereof. No other agreements, assurances, conditions, covenants (express or implied), or other terms of any kind exist between the Parties regarding this Agreement.

5.05 WRITTEN AMENDMENT

5.05.1 Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, this Agreement may be amended only by written instrument executed on behalf of the City (by authority of an ordinance adopted by the City Council) and Contractor. The Director is only authorized to perform the functions specifically delegated to him or her in this Agreement.

5.06 **GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE**

5.06.1 This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas and City of Houston. Venue for any disputes relating in any way to this Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris County, Texas.

5.07 **NOTICES**

5.07.1 All notices to either Party to the Agreement must be in writing and must be delivered by hand, facsimile, United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, United States Express Mail, Federal Express, UPS, or any other national overnight express delivery service. The notice must be addressed to the Party to whom the notice is given at its address set out in Article 1 of this Agreement or other address the receiving Party has designated previously by proper notice to the sending Party. Postage or delivery charges must be paid by the Party giving the notice.

5.08 **CAPTIONS**

5.08.1 Captions contained in this Agreement are for reference only and therefore have no effect in construing this Agreement. The captions are not restrictive of the subject matter of any section in this Agreement.

5.09 **NON-WAIVER**

- 5.09.1 If either Party fails to require the other to perform a term of this Agreement, that failure does not prevent the Party from later enforcing that term and all other terms. If either Party waives the other's breach of a term, that waiver does not waive a later breach of this Agreement.
- 5.09.2 An approval by the Director, or by any other employee or agent of the City, of any part of Contractor's performance does not waive compliance with this Agreement or establish a standard of performance other than that required by this Agreement and by law. The Director is not authorized to vary the terms of this Agreement.

5.10 **INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS**

- 5.10.1 City representatives (including without limitation the Director and City Controller), and State, and Federal Government authorized representatives (collectively "Auditing Entities") may perform, or have performed (1) audits of Contractor's books and records, or (2) inspections of all places where work is undertaken in connection with this Agreement. Contractor shall keep its books and records (including without limitation any documentation required under 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart D) available for this purpose for (i) three (3) years after the GLO's closeout of the CDBG-DR17 program that is the subject of the GLO Harvey Contract, (ii) the time period required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 (retention requirements for records) in the event the City receives federal funds for all or a portion of this Agreement, or (iii) seven (7) years after the Agreement terminates, whichever is longer. If the books and records are located outside of Harris County, Texas, Subrecipient agrees to make them available in Harris County, Texas. This Section 5.10 does not affect the applicable statute of limitations.
- 5.10.2 Upon reasonable written notice, not less than twenty-four (24) hours, Auditing Entities have the right to perform or have performed audits and inspections.
- 5.10.3 Audits of Contractor's books, documents, papers, and records, including electronic versions, pertaining to services provided under this Agreement may include, but are not limited to the following Project files:
 - 5.10.3.1 payroll and personnel records, such as salaries, benefits and bonuses;
 - 5.10.3.2 subcontractor agreements, records and invoices;
 - 5.10.3.3 that portion of any accounting or management system or appropriate access to computers or servers on which City information is stored, as necessary and in accordance with Dewberry's rules and regulations; provided, however, that non-City-related information is not included; and
 - 5.10.3.4 all documents or files evidencing costs and underlying expenses relating to Contractor's performance.

- 5.10.4 Contractor shall provide the Auditing Entities, including without limitation, the Director, City Controller, the Texas Department of Emergency Management, the HUD Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, Inspectors General, the GLO, the Texas State Auditor's Office or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of making copies, audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any reasonable means or to copy excerpts any transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- 5.10.5 Contractor shall provide the Auditing Entities, including without limitation, the Director, City Controller, the HUD Administrator, the GLO, Inspector General, the Texas State Auditor's Office or any other authorized representatives of these individuals or entities access to work sites pertaining to the work being completed.
- 5.10.6 If any audit or inspection performed by HUD, GLO, the City or any other local, state or federal entity providing funding to pay for Contractor's services under this Agreement, results in the disallowance, recapture, repayment, refund, return, and/or reimbursement of funds used by the City to pay fees and/or expenses for Contractor's services, based on Contractor's performance under this Agreement, Contractor shall repay, refund, and/or reimburse the City for all of such fees and/or expenses required to be paid by the City or in the case of a City audit, amounts requested or disallowed by the City, as unallowed, unauthorized, or otherwise inconsistent with this Agreement. Contractor shall be given a reasonable opportunity to review and dispute in writing the findings of such audit or inspection. Any adjustments or payments that must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of the Contractor's performance under the Agreement, including invoices or records, shall be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 days) from presentation of the written findings by the City to the Contractor. In no event will Contractor be responsible for disallowed, recaptured, or reimbursed amounts that the City has paid to any party other than Contractor. Each Party shall bear its own costs of any such audit.

5.11 **ENFORCEMENT**

5.11.1 The City Attorney or his or her designee may enforce all legal rights and obligations under this Agreement without further authorization. Contractor shall provide to the City Attorney all documents and records that the City Attorney requests to assist in determining Contractor's compliance with this Agreement, with the exception of those documents made confidential by federal or State law or regulation.

5.12 **AMBIGUITIES**

5.12.1 If any term of this Agreement is ambiguous, it shall not be construed for or against any Party on the basis that the Party did or did not write it.

5.13 **SURVIVAL**

5.13.1 Contractor shall remain obligated to the City under all clauses of this Agreement that expressly or by their nature extend beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the indemnity provisions.

5.14 **PUBLICITY**

5.14.1 Contractor shall make no announcement or release of information concerning this Agreement unless the release has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Director.

5.15 **RISK OF LOSS**

5.15.1 Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, risk of loss or damage for each product passes from Contractor to the City upon Acceptance by the City.

5.16 **PARTIES IN INTEREST**

5.16.1 This agreement does not bestow any rights upon any third party but binds and benefits the City and Contractor only. Except as may be specifically set forth in this Agreement and the GLO Harvey Contract (i) nothing expressed or referred to in this Agreement shall be construed to give any person, body, or legal entity, other than the City and Contractor, any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or with respect to this Agreement or any provision of this Agreement; and (ii) there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement, and this Agreement and all of its provisions are for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and Contractor.

5.17 **SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS**

5.17.1 This Agreement binds and benefits the Parties and their legal successors and permitted assigns; however, this provision does not alter the restrictions on assignment and disposal of assets set out in the following paragraph. This Agreement does not create any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City.

5.18 **BUSINESS STRUCTURE AND ASSIGNMENTS**

- 5.18.1 Contractor shall not assign this Agreement at law or otherwise or dispose of all or substantially all of its assets without the Director's prior written consent. Nothing in this clause, however, prevents the assignment of accounts receivable or the creation of a security interest under Section 9.406 of the Texas Business & Commerce Code. In the case of such an assignment, Contractor shall immediately furnish the Director and CPO with proof of the assignment and the name, telephone number, and address of the Assignee and a clear identification of the fees to be paid to the Assignee.
- 5.18.2 Contractor shall not delegate any portion of its performance under this Agreement without the Director's prior written consent.

5.19 **DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

5.19.1 For purposes of this Section "Project Administrator" means the person the Director designates to monitor the progress of all Parties' performance under this Agreement.

- 5.19.2 Except as may otherwise be provided by law, a dispute that (i) does not involve a question of law; (ii) arises during the performance of this Agreement; and (iii) is not resolved between the Project Administrator and Contractor must be handled as described below:
 - 5.19.2.1 The Project Administrator shall put its decision in writing and mail or otherwise furnish Contractor with a copy. Contractor may abide by the decision or may appeal the decision to the Director.
 - 5.02.2.2 If Contractor desires to appeal a decision of the Project Administrator, Contractor must submit a written appeal to the Director. Contractor must file its written appeal within seven Business Days following receipt of the Project Administrator's original decision. The Director shall provide Contractor with a written response to the appeal within 14 Business Days following its receipt. The decision of the Director is final.

5.20 **REMEDIES CUMULATIVE**

5.20.1 Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, the rights and remedies contained in this Agreement are not exclusive but are cumulative of all rights and remedies that exist now or in the future. Neither Party may terminate its duties under this Agreement except in accordance with its provisions.

5.21 **CONTRACTOR DEBT**

5.21.1 IF CONTRACTOR, AT ANY TIME DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCURS A DEBT, AS THE WORD IS DEFINED IN SECTION 15-122 OF THE HOUSTON CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES, IT SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE CITY CONTROLLER IN WRITING. IF THE CITY CONTROLLER BECOMES AWARE THAT CONTRACTOR HAS INCURRED A DEBT, HE OR SHE SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY CONTRACTOR IN WRITING. IF CONTRACTOR DOES NOT PAY THE DEBT WITHIN 30 DAYS OF EITHER SUCH NOTIFICATION, THE CITY CONTROLLER MAY DEDUCT FUNDS IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE DEBT FROM ANY PAYMENTS OWED TO CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY RECOURSE THEREFOR. CONTRACTOR SHALL FILE A NEW AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP, USING THE FORM DESIGNATED BY CITY, BETWEEN FEBRUARY 1 AND MARCH 1 OF EVERY YEAR DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT.

5.22 **FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS**

5.22.1 The Parties acknowledge that City may seek reimbursement from the HUD for costs incurred under this Agreement. The Contractor shall comply with all Community Development Block Grant ("CDBG"), including CDBG-DR17 and applicable program requirements outlined in Exhibits H and H-1 and made a part hereof. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the Parties acknowledge that the Federal Government is not a party to this Agreement and is therefore not obligated to perform any actions under this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with and shall perform services in compliance with all GLO/HUD requirements outlined in this Agreement and otherwise applicable to the services performed, any subsequent audit by the GLO, HUD, or any other reviewing agency, and

- reimbursement, if any, from the GLO, HUD, or any other federal agency for the costs incurred under this Agreement.
- 5.22.2 Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with the Federal Contract Requirements for the Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control Program which is funded by CDBG programs administered by HUD.

5.23 **FLOW-THROUGH PROVISIONS**

- 5.23.1 The City is a party to the GLO Harvey Contract effective to govern this Agreement in accordance with the provisions set out in Exhibit K and Exhibit K-1 to this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with the applicable terms set out in Exhibit K and Exhibit K-1 as if it were the City, except to the extent this Agreement specifically addresses a topic also covered in Exhibit K and Exhibit K-1, in which case the terms of this Agreement shall apply. In the event Contractor believes a term or condition of the applicable GLO Harvey Contract is inapplicable, Contractor must seek clarification from the Director. The Director, in his sole but reasonable discretion, shall determine which terms are applicable to this Agreement and the services provided thereunder.
- 5.23.2 In the event the City is a recipient or subrecipient of other grant, federal, or state funds or the City otherwise uses restricted funds to pay Contractor for services or expenses provided under this Agreement, Contractor shall agree, in writing, to be bound by the same contract or grant terms and conditions, laws, and regulations as the City, to the extent relevant to Contractor's scope of work, ("Additional Flow Down Provisions"). Contractor's agreement to the Additional Flow Down Provisions must be in writing, signed by the Contractor and Director and approved by the City Attorney. Such written agreement does not require amendment of this Agreement but shall be incorporated into this Agreement as if fully referenced herein. If within a reasonable time after receipt of a written request from the Director (not to exceed 15 business days), the Parties are unable to reach a written agreement on the relevant Additional Flow Down Provisions following good faith negotiations, the Director, at his sole discretion may (i) immediately suspend Contractor from any further performance for all or certain services under this Agreement, or (ii) terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part.

5.24 **CONTRACT WORK AND SAFETY STANDARDS**.

- 5.24.1 Overtime requirements. Neither Contractor or nor any subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work under this Agreement which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- 5.24.2 Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in this section, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, the Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each

individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth this section, in the sum of \$25 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in this section.

- 5.24.3 Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. FEMA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of the Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in this section.
- 5.24.4 Subcontracts. Contractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in this section.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

EXHIBIT "A"

DEFINITIONS

In addition to the words and terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set out below. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words used in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular include the plural. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely permissive.

- 1. "Agreement" means this contract between the Parties, including all exhibits and any written amendments authorized by City Council and Contractor.
- 2. "Business Day" means any calendar day except Saturdays, Sundays and full-day holidays for employees of the City (as designated by City Council).
- 3. "Chief Procurement Officer" ("CPO") means the Chief Procurement Officer of the City of Houston, as set forth in Chapter 15 of the Houston Code of Ordinances.
- 4. "City" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and permitted assigns.
- 5. "City Attorney" means the City Attorney of the City or any person designated by the City Attorney to perform one or more of the duties of the City Attorney under this Agreement.
- 6. "City Data" means and includes any one or more of the following: Confidential Information or information or services to be provided under the Scope of Services described in Exhibit "B" of this Agreement; Documents or information that the City or persons acting on the City's behalf provides, makes available to, or transmits to Contractor on the City's behalf; and Documents or information Contractor receives, obtains, has access to, modifies, creates, develops, analyzes, uses for modeling or other services under this Agreement or otherwise prepares in connection with this Agreement.
- 7. "Confidential Information" means all non-public Documents or information of a Party to this Agreement, including without limitation any such Documents or information that is identified as or would be reasonably understood to be confidential, proprietary, and/or sensitive.
- 8. "Contractor" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and assigns.
- 9. "Contractor Data" means any Confidential Information or information or Documents that the Contractor or persons acting on the Contractor's behalf provides, makes available to, or transmits to the City under this Agreement which is (1) information or non-City Data that Contractor possessed prior to the date of this Agreement, (2) information that Contractor develops independently without use of any of the information provided by the City, and (3) information Contractor rightfully receives from a third party free to make such disclosure without breach of any legal obligation.
- 10. "Countersignature Date" means the date shown as the date countersigned on the signature page of this Agreement.
- 11. "Deliverables" means those items that Contractor is to deliver to the Director pursuant to the Scope of Services assigned to the Contractor under Exhibit "B".

- 12. "Director" means the Deputy Director of the City of Houston Office of Emergency Management or such other person as he or she designates.
- 13. "Disclosing Party" means a Party who discloses, supplies, or provides Confidential Information to another Party or whose Confidential Information is otherwise in the possession, custody, or control of another Party.
- 14. "Documents" means all original and non-identical copy of any written, typed, or printed matter, or electronically stored information, of any kind or description. The word "documents" includes, but is not limited to, the following: agendas, analyses, audio or video recordings, bulletins, charts, circulars, communications (including any interoffice, social media, and other communications), computations, computer programs, copies, correspondence, data, databases, data compilations, data prototypes, designs, diagrams, diskettes, documents, drafts, drawings, electronic mail (email), electronically stored information, exhibits, facsimiles, forms, graphs, guides, images, information, inventions, items, letters, logs, manuals, maps, materials, memoranda, metadata, microfilm, minutes or meeting minutes, models, notes, notations, notebooks, operating manuals, original tracings of all drawings and plans, other graphic matter (however produced or reproduced), pamphlets, photographs (including any digital or film photographs), plans, printouts, policies, procedures, records, recordings (including any audio, video, digital, film, tape, and other recordings), reports, social media communications, software, specifications, tabulations, telegrams, underlying data, works, worksheets, work products, writings, and any other writings or recordings of any type or nature (and any revisions, modifications, or improvements to them).
- 15. "Federal Government" means the United States Federal Government, including, but not limited to any of the agencies or departments that are or may provide funding for the services to be completed under this Agreement, such as the Office of the Comptroller General of the United States, the Government Accountability Office, the Office of the Inspector General, or any authorized representative of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development Department or the United States Government.
- 16. "GLO Harvey Contract" means the subrecipient agreement between the City and the GLO, GLO Contract No. 19-147-001-B489, Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program Projects Non-Research & Development Harvey Round 1 Funding ("2019 Subrecipient Agreement") countersigned by the City Controller on January 4, 2019 and approved by City of Houston Ordinance No. 2019-10 and No. 2019-904, and any amendments thereto, which contract is attached as Exhibit K; and GLO Contract No. 21-134-000-C788, Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program Non-Research & Development Hurricane Harvey Funding ("2021 Subrecipient Agreement") countersigned by the City Controller on February 9, 2021 and approved by City of Houston Ordinance No. 2021-93, and any amendments thereto, which contract is attached as Exhibit K-1. On the date HUD approves the State of Texas Action Plan Amendment 8 (as such plan is described in the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement), the 2019 Subrecipient Agreement shall automatically terminate, and the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement will become effective to govern this Agreement from that date forward.
- 17. "HCDD" means the City of Houston Housing and Community Development Department.
- 18. "Notice to Proceed" means a written communication from the Director or the CPO to Contractor instructing Contractor to begin performance.

- 19. "Party" or "Parties" means one or all of the entities set out in the Preamble who are bound by this Agreement.
- 20. "Proprietary Rights" means copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade secrets, and any other proprietary rights therein, any one or more of which is collectively referred to in this Agreement as Proprietary Rights, but does not include any of the Contractor's terminology and know-how obtained by Contractor prior to initiation of the Work and contained in the Documents.
- 21. "Receiving Party" means a Party who receives, retains, or accepts Confidential Information from another Party or is otherwise in the possession, custody, or control of Confidential Information from another Party.
- 22. "Task Order" means an individual services assignment with a defined scope of services, budget and schedule issued by the Director under this Agreement.
- 23. "Work" is the entire completed project, including all labor, materials, equipment and services provided in connection with planning services under the scope of services of this Agreement.
- 24. "Work Products" means all Documents or Information that the City and/or Contractor creates, develops, modifies, prepares, produces, or writes under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement. "Work Products" does not mean or include software, source code, or object code.

EXHIBIT "B"

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant may provide planning services in support of the Office of Emergency Management. The City shall initiate each Task Order by providing the Consultant(s) with a written task order pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Consultant(s) will submit an electronic, written work plan and budget, including a specified timeframe in which the requirements of each task order are to be completed.

1.0 SCOPE OF WORK

- **1.1** Plan Development
 - 1.1.1 Gather data and conduct analyses on various aspects of a target area or subject as directed by the City, including, but not limited to, demographics, land use, housing characteristics, building stock and built environment, business and employment, transportation and connectivity, urban/regional context, open space, institutions and community facilities, and wayfinding.
 - 1.1.2 Review and assess existing plans, policies/directives, standard operating guides, regulations, and/or Department responsibilities to assess opportunities for policy or implementation improvements, including the incorporation of current national standards (e.g., the Emergency Management Accreditation Program) and best practices nationwide. OEM is pursuing the Emergency Management Accreditation Program designation and expects the consultant to support compliance with the current (2019) EMAP standards.
 - 1.1.3 Assist with goal setting and strategy development
 - **1.1.3.1** Coordinate with other planning partners to align regional and other goals;
 - **1.1.3.2** Identify required stakeholders in the public/private sector that are critical to the implementation of a plan or project;
 - **1.1.3.3** Identify options for community benefit and potential community/institutional and corporate/philanthropic benefits;
 - **1.1.3.4** Create placemaking strategies including ability to provide strategic implementation pilot projects to demonstrate principles included in any planning strategy; and
 - **1.1.3.5** Integrate various plans, strategies, data, and/or input to identify and develop actions, measures of success, goals, and monitoring frameworks for plans, programs, and projects.
 - **1.1.4** Assemble and synthesize work completed for any task and prepare end-product maps, studies, reports, plans, or strategies, as directed by the City.
 - **1.1.5** Incorporate Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) into planning documents.

- Develop and create an emergency management diversity framework designed to better reflect and connect with the diverse communities within Houston and adjacent jurisdictions.
- **1.1.6** Incorporate Disability and Access and Functional Needs (DAFN) into planning documents. Develop a process for integration of DAFN through the entire spectrum of emergency management including review of planning requirements for local, state, county, federal, and nationwide best practices.
- 1.1.7 Evaluate climate risk and disproportionate impact on vulnerable populations to develop a process for assessing and integrating climate risk and adaptation, social vulnerability, and environmental justice to equitably address the impacts of climate risk.
- **1.2** Community and stakeholder outreach and engagement:
 - **1.2.1** Create plans for outreach to and engagement with various targeted segments of the community, including but not limited to faith-based organizations, community organizations, NGLs, and the private sector.
 - **1.2.2** Conduct a participatory stakeholder and community engagement process to obtain input and buy-in from the community on planning areas, mitigation plan update, and/or emergency plan conversion.
 - **1.2.3** Prepare materials and presentations for public distribution, which may include Power Point presentations, web content, display boards, posters/flyers, brochures, and other materials as needed.
 - **1.2.4** Create and conduct a variety of public participation and feedback methods and tools, including surveys, to gather relevant information from the community and/or stakeholders to inform planning documents and program strategies.
 - **1.2.5** Engage a variety of people, including those with limited English proficiency, through various types of activities and outreach methods.
 - **1.2.6** Document events and outreach and provide summary information from engagement activities.
- 1.3 Operational and environmental assessments:
 - **1.3.1** Provide updated or new descriptions of the natural and human-caused hazards affecting each participating jurisdiction, as needed. Analyze how hazards vary across jurisdictions.
 - **1.3.2** Develop a parcel-level inventory of vulnerable structures.
 - **1.3.3** Generate graphics and Geographic Information System (GIS) based maps that will illustrate the extent and location of each hazard, as well as other available information, within the defined planning area.
 - **1.3.4** Utilize FEMA's Hazus, RiskMAP products (and/or other appropriate software)

- to generate level 2 vulnerability assessments for hurricane and flood hazards.
- **1.3.5** Document the analysis and findings in a manner and format that planners, policy makers and community members can easily decipher.
- **1.3.6** Develop a capability assessment analysis to identify and assess participation by department and partner agencies involved.
- **1.3.7** Develop strategies for each specific area and recommendations for planning documents.
- **1.4** Exercise and training development:
 - **1.4.1** Develop Exercise Toolkits and strategic playbooks with scenarios that are designed to help the City identify strengths and weaknesses in areas such as: hazard, incident, and support annexes, collaboration and communication, continuity of operations plans, emergency operations, and facilities.
 - 1.4.2 Analyze and incorporate data from the THIRA (Threat Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment), HIRA (Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment), and Consequence Analysis to develop exercise toolkits. These toolkits will be based on scenarios that are realistic and tied to the vulnerabilities, threats and hazards affecting Houston/region and encompass the Integrated Preparedness Plan. The toolkits will help inform city-wide planning initiatives and facilitate the creation of a Comprehensive Emergency Management Program. Moreover, these tools will be used in the development and delivery of planning, training, exercise, and other professional services. The training specifically, needs to be in compliance with national standards for exercise conduct and evaluation (Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program HSEEP), the PADDIE (Planning, Analysis, Design, Development, Implementation and Evaluation) model and the Emergency Management Accreditation Program (EMAP) in order to adapt and evolve with the current threat landscape.
 - 1.4.3 Provide trainings for stakeholders and community members about emergency planning documents, which may include particular topics related to enhancing the City's capacity to address capability gaps in support of hazard, incident and support annexes.
 - 1.4.4 Engage stakeholder groups within the community, to include disproportionately impacted individuals, service providers, the business community, faith-based organizations, non-profit organizations, and community partners. Train these stakeholder groups on EOC operations and develop activation plans with them prior to an event. These activation plans should articulate what role a particular entity will assume in an incident response, and how the various entities will interface with one another.

2.0 Roles and Responsibilities

The Project Administrator, the person designated by the Deputy Director of the Office of Emergency Management shall monitor the progress of all parties' performance under

this Agreement. The Project Administrator will serve as the primary point of contact between the City and the Contractor.

2.1 Contractor:

- a) Contractor shall perform all services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances (the "Standard of Care").
- b) Contractor agrees that all Deliverables it completes under this Agreement are performed consistent with the Standard of Care.
- c) Contractor shall include Project Administrator, as the primary point of contact between the City and the Contractor, with respect to all communications, discussions, and issues pertaining to the project, unless otherwise directed by the Project Administrator, the Director of the Office of Emergency Management, or the Director of HCDD.
 - i. Contractor shall promptly notify the City of any issues, delays, changes in scope, or additional costs or liabilities by providing written notice to the Project Administrator.

2.2. City:

The City acknowledges that the Contractor's performance of the services under the Agreement and the fees charged are dependent on City's timely and effective completion of the City's duties under the Agreement. As the primary point of contact between the City and the Contractor, the Project Administrator's responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a) The Project Administrator shall provide Contractor with reliable, accurate and complete information. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information furnished by the City. The Contractor shall provide prompt written notice to the City if the Contractor becomes aware of any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in such services or information
- b) The Project Administrator shall serve as the primary liaison between the Contractor and the City's decision makers, subject matter experts, and management to provide timely decisions and approvals.
- c) The Project Administrator shall have skills commensurate with their role with respect to such services to be provided and the overall scope of the project.
- d) The Project Administrator shall monitor and evaluate whether:
 - Contractor performs all services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances; and

- ii. All Deliverables that Contractor completes under this Agreement meet the Standard of Care
- e) If the Project Administrator, in his or her reasonable discretion, determines that the Contractor submits Deliverables that do not meet specifications or standards, fails to complete Deliverables timely, or otherwise fails to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the Project Administrator shall notify Contractor in writing as provided in Article 5.19 and may require Contractor, at its sole expense, to:
 - Enhance or replace substandard Deliverables with Deliverables that do meet or exceed the specifications and standards set forth in the Agreement;
 - ii. Upon expiration of such rights to cure as may be otherwise stated in this Agreement, refund payment for substandard Deliverables and accept the return of such Deliverables; and
 - iii. Take necessary action so that future performance and Deliverables meet the specifications and standards set forth in the Agreement.

3.0 **Invoice and Payment**

All reports, Deliverables, and other critical documentation outlined in this Agreement must be timely submitted via e-mail to the Project Administrator. Funds associated with this Agreement shall be disbursed to the Contractor upon completion and approval by the City of the Deliverables, within the total amounts outlined in the approved Work Plan.

The Contractor shall submit Deliverables at least on a monthly basis or as determined in the Work Plan, including but not limited to monthly progress reports and monthly invoices, to the Project Administrator no later than five (5) business days after the last day of each month. Upon approval by the Project Administrator, HCDD will issue payment.

The Contractor shall submit invoices to the City in accordance with Article 3 of the Agreement. The City shall ensure that all Deliverables, duties, and/or responsibilities outlined and scheduled in this Agreement are completed in conformance with the terms of the Agreement and this Exhibit prior to disbursement of funds. The City may request, in addition to an invoice detailing the work performed, documentation proving completion of the applicable Deliverables, duties, and/or responsibilities.

At a minimum, invoices must:

- a) Be submitted by email to the Project Administrator, Vlad.Ibarra@houstontx.gov and copied to <u>Jessica.Caraway@houstontx.gov</u> or as otherwise specified in writing or potentially designated by the Director;
- b) List the current amount being billed;
- c) List the cumulative deliverables to-date and amount billed previously;

- d) List the balance remaining to be billed; and
- e) Be supported by documentation, as applicable

D. Monthly Reporting

Monthly progress reports are due to the Project Administrator outlining the progress made during the month, identifying any deliverables completed and other milestones met.

E. Change to Work or Change Order

Material changes to Exhibit "B" and task order via an amendment thereto, as appropriate, including but not limited to the following circumstances:

- Potential extension of project period beyond that stipulated in this Agreement
- Substantial change to tasks or deliverables other than that stipulated in this Agreement

Changes may be made only by written agreement between the City and the Contractor. The Project Administrator or Director will have the final decision-making authority. Notwithstanding the preceding, the Project Administrator may approve extensions to Deliverable due dates as originally set forth in the applicable task order.

F. <u>Dispute Resolution</u>

If the Contractor disputes a determination by the Project Administrator under Section B.2.e above, the Contractor may appeal said determination to the Director, as set forth in Article 5.19 of the Agreement.

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SAMPLE TASK ORDER

Agreement Number: Task Order Number:
This Task Order is established between City of Houston ("City") and("Firm"). This Task Order is entered into pursuant to and incorporates by reference all the terms of the Agreement for Professional Planning Services, with the City effective ("Agreement"). In the event the terms of this Task Order are inconsistent or conflict with the Agreement, the Agreement shall control. This Task Order is to be identified from other task orders by the number of this Task Order. The services authorized under this Task Order are described below:
Services to be Performed/Scope of Services or Work
TBD
Deliverables (if any)
TBD
<u>Assumptions</u>
TBD
Personnel and Rates
Personnel Name and Title Rate

Personnel Name and Title	Rate
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$

Reimbursable Expenses, if applicable

TBD

Commencement Date and Termination Date or Termination Provisions

TBD

Estimated Fees

The method of calculating fees under this Task Order shall be (e.g. flat fee, hourly billing, blended rates, fixed rates per phase, etc.). The estimated fees for this Task Order is <u>\$TBD</u>.

Maximum Fee

Firm represents that all of the se expenses, not to exceed \$.00, which is funded by the attac	ched service release order. City
MWBE Goal under this Task Or	<u>der</u> – TBD	
Accepted and Agreed to by: Deputy Director of the Office of Er	mergency Management Date:	
Accepted and Agreed to by:		
By: Name: Title:_	Date:	_

EXHIBIT "B-2"

TASK ORDER INSTRUCTIONS

Steps:

- 1. Office of Emergency Management's Project Administrator completes general information on Task Order Form, which includes:
 - a. City Department Name
 - b. Task Order Description
 - c. Contract No.
 - d. Purchase Order No.
 - e. Project or Task Start and End Dates
 - f. Task Order Cost and applicable fees
- 2. Task Order Approval Form is sent to Consultant.
- 3. Consultant provides detailed proposal to OEM Deputy Director including tasks to be performed, deliverables, personnel to be assigned, schedule for performance of services, price proposal.
- 4. Consultant completes the Task Order Approval Form:
 - a. Project Start and End Dates
 - b. Estimated Task Order Cost and corresponding hourly fees, as set out in Exhibit A- 1 of the Agreement.
 - c. Scope of Services
 - d. Personnel Assigned and number of hours worked
- 5. Consultant signs Task Order and returns it with a proposal to OEM Deputy Director or his representative.
- 6. OEM Department reviews and accepts or rejects proposal.
- 7. If the proposal is accepted, the OEM Deputy Director or his representative provides a copy of the accepted Task Order to the Consultant to commence Task.
- 8. City will make payment to Consultant upon completion of the project or task, or based on the milestones agreed to by both parties and accepted by the OEM Deputy Director or designee.

EXHIBIT "B-3"

FEE SCHEDULE

Role	Hourly Rate
Project Executive/Principal	\$255.00
Editor/Writer	\$120.00
GIS Specialist/Analyst, Senior	\$162.00
GIS Specialist/Analyst	\$119.00
GIS Specialist/Analyst, Junior	\$72.00
Graphic Designer/Technical Specialist	\$118.00
Hazard Mitigation Planner, Senior	\$190.00
Hazard Mitigation Planner	\$128.00
Hazard Mitigation Planner, Junior	\$91.00
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator, Senior	\$190.00
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator	\$139.00
Project Manager	\$213.00
Public Affairs/Communications Specialist	\$93.00
Research Analyst/Specialist	\$82.00
Subject Matter Expert - Disability, Function and Access Needs	\$230.00
Subject Matter Expert - Diversity, Inclusion, and Equity	\$200.00
Subject Matter Expert - Health and Medical	\$230.00
Task Manager	\$185.00
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator, Junior	\$93.00
Overall profit percentage	9%

EXHIBIT "C"

DRUG POLICY COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

I		
(Nam	e)	(Title)
as an owner o	or officer of	(Contractor) (Name of Company)
contracts it m that the Conti to designate	nay enter into with the City of ractor is aware of and by the ti appropriate safety impact pos	spect to its bid, offer or performance of any and all Houston; and that by making this Agreement, I affirm me the contract is awarded will be bound by and agree itions for company employee positions, and to comply City issues a notice to proceed:
1.	testing procedures for the established by the Mayor's	vritten Drug Free Workplace Policy and related drug Contractor that meet the criteria and requirements Amended Policy on Drug Detection and Deterrence e Mayor's Drug Detection and Deterrence Procedures Order No. 1-31).
2.		urine samples consistent with Health and Human and a HHS certified drug testing laboratory to perform
3.	•	of drug tests given and the results; and upon request ovide confirmation of such testing and results.
4.	Submit semi-annual Drug Po	olicy Compliance Declarations.
		ompliance with the Mayor's Drug Policy and Executive e contract with the City of Houston.
declarations : Order No. 1-	and/or documentation in comp	failure to comply with or failure to timely submit bliance with the Mayor's Drug Policy and/or Executive h of the contract with the City and may result in non- City of Houston.
Date		Contractor Name
		Signature

Title

EXHIBIT "D"

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF NO SAFETY IMPACT POSITIONS IN PERFORMANCE OF A CITY CONTRACT

1.	
(Name)	(Title)
as an owner or officer of	(Contractor (Name of Company)
•	or with respect to its bid, and hereby certify that Contractor has ns, as defined in §5.18 of Executive Order No. 1-31, that will
. 9	(Project)
	hat it shall immediately notify the City of Houston Director of act positions are established to provide services in performing
(Date)	(Typed or Printed Name)
	(Signature)
	(Title)

EXHIBIT "E"

DRUG POLICY COMPLIANCE DECLARATION

l,					as	s an owner or
	,	(Print/Type)	(Title)			
officer of authority to i	make the foll	(Contra lowing declarations:	actor) (Name of Co	mpany), nave pe	ersonal knowl	edge and full
-		_				
This reportin	ng period cov	ers the preceding 6	months from	to		,
Initials	Policy me	Drug Free Workplaceets the criteria esta errence (Mayor's Pol	ablished by the May			
Initials	Drug Det	Irug testing procedu tection and Deterren es have been notifie	nce Procedures for	Contractors, Ex		
Initials		n/testing has been (HHS) guidelines.	conducted in com	pliance with fed	deral Health a	and Human
Initials	performin	ate safety impacting on the City of Ho during this reporting	uston contract. Th	•		•
Initials	From	[Start date] to _	[End date]	the following tes	t has occurred	d:
			<u>Random</u>	Reasonable Suspicion	Post <u>Accident</u>	<u>Total</u>
Number E	Employees To	ested				
Number E	Employees P	ositive				
Percent E	Employees Po	ositive				
Initials		oloyee who tested nt with the Mayor's F				ity worksite
Initials		hat falsification or f ed guidelines will be			mely in accor	rdance with
		of perjury that the aft personal knowledg			rmation conta	ined in this
(Date)			(Туре	ed or Printed Nan	ne)	
			(Signa	ature)		
			(Title)	<u> </u>		

EXHIBIT "F"

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

- 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the SUBRECIPIENT (referred to herein as the "prospective participant") is providing the certification set out below.
- 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 3. The prospective participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
- 5. The prospective participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6. The prospective participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- Covered Transaction," without modification, in all covered transactions and in all solicitations for covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge

- and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

<u>CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AN</u> VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION— COVERED TRANSACTIONS

- (1) The prospective participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- (2) Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Contractor Company Name	Contract Number	
Name		
Title		
Signature	Date	

EXHIBIT "G"

ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Subrecipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

- 1) No Federal appropriated funds appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any City contract, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontractors, subgrants, and Agreements under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned Subrecipient, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, Subrecipient understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Contractor Name:	
President:	
Name of Authorized Official:	
Signature:	
Date:	

EXHIBIT "H"

HURRICANE HARVEY CDBG-DR REQUIREMENTS NON-EXCLUSIVE LIST OF APPLICABLE LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND RULES

If applicable to a Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery ("CDBG-DR") funded project, Subrecipient must be in compliance with the following laws, rules, and regulations; and any other state, federal, or local laws, rules, and regulations as may become applicable throughout the term of the Agreement, and Subrecipient acknowledges that this list may not include all such applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

Subrecipient is deemed to have read and understands the requirements of each of the following, if applicable to the Project under this Agreement:

GENERALLY

Texas General Land Office ("GLO") Contract No. 19-147-001-B489 and any amendments thereto ("2019 Subrecipient Agreement");

GLO Contract No. 21-134-000-C788 ("2021 Subrecipient Agreement") On the date the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") approves Action Plan Amendment 8 (as such plan is described in the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement), the City's 2019 Subrecipient Agreement shall automatically terminate and the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement will become effective to govern this Agreement from that date forward;

Continuing Appropriations Act, 2018 and Supplemental Appropriations for Disaster Relief Requirements Act, 2017 (Public Law 115-56);

The Further Additional Supplemental Appropriations for Disaster Relief Requirements Act, 2018 (Public Law 115-123):

The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (12 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq.);

The United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o)(13) (2016) and related provisions governing Public Housing Authority project-based assistance, and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 983 (2016);

Cash Management Improvement Act regulations (31 C.F.R. Part 205);

Community Development Block Grants (24 C.F.R. Part 570);

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200);

The State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery: Hurricane Harvey – Round 1 ("Action Plan"), as amended from time to time (available at: https://recovery.texas.gov/action-

plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html);

The Texas General Land Office Disaster Recovery Implementation Manual (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/local-government/hud-requirements-reports/implementation-manual/index.html);

The Texas General Land Office Hurricane Harvey Disaster Recovery Housing Guidelines, as amended (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/local-government/hud-requirements-reports/housing-guidelines/index.html);

City of Houston CDBG-DR program Guidelines, as amended (available at https://recovery.houstontx.gov/hud-requirements-guidelines/; and State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery: Hurricane Harvey – Round 1 (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/action-plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html).

CIVIL RIGHTS

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C. § 2000d *et seq.*); 24 C.F.R. Part I, "Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Housing and Urban Development - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964";

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq.);

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, "The Fair Housing Act of 1968" (42 U.S.C. § 3601, et seq.), as amended;

Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259, and 24 C.F.R. Part 107, "Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity in Housing under Executive Order 11063"; The failure or refusal of Subrecipient to comply with the requirements of Executive Order 11063 or 24 C.F.R. Part 107 shall be a proper basis for the imposition of sanctions specified in 24 C.F.R. 107.60;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq.); and

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794.) and

"Nondiscrimination Based on Handicap in Federally-Assisted Programs and Activities of the Department of Housing and Urban Development", 24 C.F.R. Part 8.

By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient understands and agrees that the activities funded shall be performed in accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 8; and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 4151, *et seq.*), including the use of a telecommunications device for deaf persons (TDDs) or equally effective communication system.

LABOR STANDARDS

The Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (originally, 40 U.S.C. §§ 276a-276a-5 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3148); 29 C.F.R. Part 5;

The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (originally, 18 U.S.C. § 874 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. § 3145): 29 C.F.R. Part 3;

Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (originally, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327A and 330 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708);

Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (Also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Agreements Subject to the Agreement Work Hours and Safety Standards Act) (29 C.F.R. Part 5); and

Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended; and

Department of Labor Regulations at 29 C.F.R. Parts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7.

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. § 1701u): 24 C.F.R. §§ 135.3(a)(2) and (a)(3);

The Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. § 4212);

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1688); and

Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended.

GRANT AND AUDIT STANDARDS

Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 7501;

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200);

Uniform Grant and Contract Management Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 783) and the Uniform Grant Management Standards, issued by Governor's Office of Budget and Planning; and

Title 1 Texas Administrative Code § 5.167(c).

LEAD-BASED PAINT

Section 302 of the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. § 4831(b)).

HISTORIC PROPERTIES

The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 U.S.C. § 470, et seq.), particularly sections 106 and 110 (16 U.S.C. §§ 470 and 470h-2), except as provided in §58.17

for Section 17 projects;

Executive Order 11593, Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment, May 13, 1971 (36 FR 8921), 3 C.F.R., 1971-1975 Comp., p. 559, particularly section 2(c);

Federal historic preservation regulations as follows: 36 C.F.R. Part 800 with respect to HUD programs; and

The Reservoir Salvage Act of 1960, as amended by the Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. § 469, et seq.), particularly section 3 (16 U.S.C. § 469a-1).

ENVIRONMENTAL LAW AND AUTHORITIES

Environmental Review Procedures for Recipients assuming HUD Environmental Responsibilities (24 C.F.R. Part 58, as amended);

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4347); and

Council for Environmental Quality Regulations for Implementing NEPA (40 C.F.R. Parts 1500-1508).

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND WETLAND PROTECTION

Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26951), 3 C.F.R., 1977 Comp., p. 117, as interpreted in HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 55, particularly Section 2(a) of the Order (For an explanation of the relationship between the decision-making process in 24 C.F.R. Part 55 and this part, see § 55.10.); and

Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26961), 3 C.F.R., 1977 Comp., p. 121 particularly Sections 2 and 5.

COASTAL ZONE MANAGEMENT

The Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. § 1451, et seq.), as amended, particularly sections 307(c) and (d) (16 U.S.C. § 1456(c) and (d)).

SOLE SOURCE AQUIFERS

The Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. §§ 201, 300(f), et seq., and 21 U.S.C. § 349) as amended; particularly section 1424(e)(42 U.S.C. § 300h-3(e)); and

Sole Source Aquifers (Environmental Protection Agency-40 C.F.R. part 149.).

ENDANGERED SPECIES

The Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. § 1531, et seq.) as amended, particularly section 7 (16 U.S.C. § 1536).

WILD AND SCENIC RIVERS

The Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. § 1271, et seq.) as amended, particularly

sections 7(b) and (c) (16 U.S.C. § 1278(b) and (c)).

AIR QUALITY

The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq.) as amended, particularly sections 176(c) and (d) (42 U.S.C. §7506(c) and (d)).

Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans (Environmental Protection Agency-40 C.F.R. Parts 6, 51, and 93).

FARMLAND PROTECTION

Farmland Protection Policy Act of 1981 (7 U.S.C. § 4201, et seq.) particularly sections 1540(b) and 1541 (7 U.S.C. §§ 4201(b) and 4202); and

Farmland Protection Policy (Department of Agriculture-7 C.F.R. part 658).

HUD ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS

Applicable criteria and standards specified in HUD environmental regulations (24 C.F.R. Part 51) (other than the runway clear zone and clear zone notification requirement in 24 C.F.R. § 51.303(a)(3); and

HUD Notice 79-33, Policy Guidance to Address the Problems Posed by Toxic Chemicals and Radioactive Materials, September 10, 1979.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE

Executive Order 12898 of February 11, 1994—Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, (59 FR 7629), 3 C.F.R., 1994 Comp. p. 859.

Environmental Review Procedures for Entities Assuming HUD Environmental Responsibilities (24 C.F.R. Part 58).

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

Use of debarred, suspended, or ineligible Contractors or subrecipients (24 C.F.R. § 570.609);

General HUD Program Requirements; Waivers (24 C.F.R. Part 5);

Suspension and Debarment (2 C.F.R. § 200.213); and

Non-procurement Suspension and Debarment (2 C.F.R. Part 2424).

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Chapter 522, Texas Government Code, the Texas Public Information Act, unless a valid exception exists, and Chapter 2306 of the Texas Government Code.

BROADBAND REQUIREMENTS

Any new construction or substantial rehabilitation, as defined by 24 C.F.R § 5.100, of a buildering with more than four (4) rental units must include installation of broadband infrastructure. For the purposes of this program, broadband service can either be hardwired or wireless, but it must be provided and 25 Mbps down and 3 Mbps up.

ACQUISITION / RELOCATION

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. § 4601, et seq.), 24 C.F.R. Part 42, 24 C.F.R. § 570.606 and 49 C.F.R. Part 24 (URA), as modified by waivers at 83 Fed. Reg. 5844;

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended by 24 C.F.R. § 42 and as modified by waivers at 83 Fed. Reg. 5844;

The Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act of 2009; and

City of Houston Housing and Community Development Department's Residential Anti-Displacement Policy, as the same may be amended (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/files/housing-guidelines-requirements-reports/residential-anti-displacement-and-relocation-assistance-plan.pdf).

FAITH-BASED ACTIVITIES

Executive Order 13279 of December 12, 2002 - Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations, (67 FR 77141).

CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794 *et seq.*) and regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder, including without limitation 24 C.F.R. Part 8;

Fair Housing Act and regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder, including without limitation 24 C.F.R. Part 100;

24 C.F.R. §§ 982-401 (Section 8 Housing Quality Standards for Existing Housing);

The requirements of 24 C.F.R. § 570.614, which applies the standards of the Architectural Barriers Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4151-4157) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 155, 201, 218 and 225) to CDBG-funded activities;

Green Building Standards at 83 Fed. Reg. 5844;

Texas Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Tex. Civ. Stat. Ann. (1994) and the regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder;

Chapter 10, Subsection 60 of the Texas Administrative Code and the regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder; and

City of Houston's Minimum Property Standards, as amended from time to time.

APPRAISAL 49 C.F.R. § 24.2(a)(3) and 49 C.F.R. § 24.103.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EXHIBIT "H-1"

FEDERAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

All references to "Contractor" in this Exhibit shall apply to any contractor, or subcontractor performing work on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to the foregoing Agreement/Contract. The following Federal Contract Requirements will generally apply to all Contractors. Also see 2 CFR Part 200; applicable federal program requirements at 24 CFR Part 570 (CDBG), 24 CFR Part 92 (HOME), 24 CFR Part 574 (HOPWA), 24 CFR Part 576 (Emergency Solutions Grant); and applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to other programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD").

SECTION 1 <u>Public Law 88-352 and Public Law 90-284; Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing;</u> Executive Order 11063

- A. The Contractor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352 42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.) ("Title VI") and with Title 24 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 1, which implements Title VI. In accordance with Title VI, no person in the United States shall, on the basis of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Contractor receives federal financial assistance. The Contractor will immediately take any measures necessary to comply with Title VI. If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance, this clause shall obligate the owner, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, to comply with the requirements and restrictions contained in this clause for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits.
- B. The Contractor shall comply with Public Law 90-284, which refers to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, also known as the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq.), which provides that it is the policy of the United States to provide, within constitutional limitations, for fair housing throughout the United States and prohibits any person from discriminating in the sale of rental of housing, the financing of housing, or the provision of brokerage services, including otherwise making unavailable or denying a dwelling to any person, because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin. In accordance with the Fair Housing Act, the Secretary of HUD requires that grantees administer all programs and activities related to housing and urban development in a manner to affirmatively further the policies of the Fair Housing Act. Furthermore, in accordance with section 104(b)(2) of the Act, for each community receiving a grant, the certification that the grantee will affirmatively further fair housing shall specifically require the grantee to take meaningful actions to further the goals identified in the grantee's AFH conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR §5.150 through 5.180 and take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing.
 - C. Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259 (3 CFR §1959-1963)

Com., p. 652; 3 CFR §1980 Comp., p 307) (Equal Opportunity in Housing), and implementing regulations in 24 CFR Part 107, as applicable.

SECTION 2 Non-Discrimination in Programs and Activities

The Contractor shall comply with the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and implementing federal regulations, **42 U.S.C. §6101 et seq.**, issued pursuant to the Act. Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act, or with respect to an otherwise qualified handicapped individual as provided in Chapter 126 of Title 42 and chapter 5 of Title 47 shall also apply to any Federal program or activity. (Also see 29 U.S.C.A. §794)

SECTION 3 National Flood Insurance Program

- A. If applicable, this Agreement is subject to the requirements of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) for areas identified by HUD as having special flood hazards. The use of any funds provided for acquisition or construction in identified areas shall be subject to the Mandatory Purchase of Flood Insurance requirements of section 102(a) of said act.
- B. Any contract or agreement for the sale, lease, or other transfer of land acquired, cleared, or improved with assistance provided under this Agreement shall contain, if the land is located in an area identified by HUD as having a special flood hazard, provisions which obligate the transferee and its successors or assigns to obtain and maintain, during the life of the project, flood insurance as required under section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended. These provisions shall be required notwithstanding the fact that the construction on the land is not itself funded with funds provided under this Agreement.

SECTION 4 <u>Displacement, Relocation, Acquisition and Replacement of Housing</u>

Contractor understands that projects funded hereunder may be subject to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) (42 U.S.C. §4601-4655), as applicable; and that individuals or businesses that are required to move from real property, permanently or involuntarily as a direct result of rehabilitation, demolition, or acquisition for the project assisted hereunder must be compensated pursuant to the URA.

SECTION 5 Employment and Contracting Opportunities

A. Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11375,11478, 12086, and 12107 (Equal Employment Opportunity)

The Contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion sex, or national origin. Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure applicants are employed, and employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the City setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (3) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the City, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (4) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor set forth at 41 CFR Part 60.
- (5) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (6) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, as amended, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The Contractor will include provisions similar to paragraph 1 through 7 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Labor, issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, so that such provisions will be binding upon subcontractors or vendors. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the City may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: PROVIDED, however, that in the event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the City, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

B. Section 3 of The Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968

- (1) The work to be performed under this Agreement is on a project assisted under a program providing federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, (12 U.S.C. §1701u, "Section 3") and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135 apply to the Agreement. Under Section 3, to the greatest extent feasible, for any contract award in excess of \$100,000, the Contractor shall give opportunities for training and employment to lower-income residents of the City and shall award contracts for work in connection with the project to business concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the City.
- (2) The Contractor will comply with the provisions of Section 3, and all applicable rules and orders of HUD issued thereunder prior to the execution of the Agreement. The Contractor certifies and agrees that there is no contractual or other disability which would prevent compliance with these requirements.
- (3) The Contractor shall send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.
- (4) The Contractor will include or have included a Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project. The Contractor shall, at the direction of the City, take appropriate action pursuant to any subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of this Section 3 clause. The Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 135. The Contractor shall not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has provided the Contractor with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of this Section 3 clause.
- (5) Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, and all applicable rules and orders of HUD issued thereunder prior to the execution of this Agreement shall be a

condition of the federal financial assistance provided to the project. These provisions are binding upon the City, its contractors and subcontractors, their successors and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the City, its contractors and subcontractors, their successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which federal assistance is provided.

(6) The Contractor shall have completed, signed and delivered a Voluntary Compliance Form (provided by the City) to the Director prior to the execution of this Agreement.

SECTION 6 Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act

The Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §4821-4846), the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. §4851-4856), and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 35, Subparts A, B, J, K and R may apply to activities under the Agreement.

SECTION 7 <u>Use Of Debarred, Suspended, Or Ineligible Contractors or Subrecipients</u>

- (a) The Contractor shall not employ, award contracts to, or otherwise engage the services of any contractor or subcontractor during any period of debarment, suspension, or placement in ineligibility status under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 5 or under the authority of the City.
- (b) The Contractor shall not use federal funds for any contract for the construction, alteration or repair of the project funded under this Agreement with any contractor or subcontractor listed on the governmentwide Excluded Parties List System in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR Part 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR Part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." The Excluded Parties List System in SAM contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

SECTION 8 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements

The Contractor shall comply with "Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards" as set forth under 2 CFR Part 200, as applicable.

SECTION 9 Conflict Of Interest

A. In the procurement of supplies, equipment, construction, and services by the City or a subrecipient, the conflict of interest provisions in 2 CFR §200.112, shall apply. In all cases not governed by 2 CFR Part 200, the provisions of this section shall apply. Such cases include, but may not be limited to, the acquisition and disposition of real property and the provision of

assistance by the recipient, by its subrecipients, or to individuals, businesses or other private entities under eligible activities which authorize such assistance (e.g. rehabilitation, preservation, and other improvements of private properties or facilities).

- (i) No persons described in paragraph (ii) (below) who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to federal activities or who are in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to federal assisted activities, may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from, or have any interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter with respect to the federal assisted activity, or with respect to the proceeds of the federal assisted activity.
- (ii) The requirements of paragraph (i) apply to any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the City, of any designated public agency, or subrecipient which receives funds under the federal award.

SECTION 10 Eligibility for Aliens Not lawfully Present in U.S.

Contractor understands that aliens not lawfully present in the U.S., as described in 49 CFR §24.208, are not eligible to apply for benefits under certain federal activities.

SECTION 11 Compliance With Clean Air And Water Acts

This Agreement may be subject to the requirements of the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. §7401-7671q), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251-1387) and the regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act and by the Environmental Protection Agency. In compliance herewith, the Contractor agrees that:

- A. No facility to be utilized in the project or program is on the list of Violating Facilities issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) pursuant to 40 CFR §15.20.
- B. The Contractor will comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. §7401-7671q) the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251-1387).
- C. As a condition for the award of this Agreement, the Contractor shall give prompt notice to the City of any notification of violations received from the Office of Federal Activities or the EPA, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.
- D. The Contractor will include or cause to be included the requirements contained in paragraphs A through C of this clause in every lower-tier nonexempt contract and will take such action as the City may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

E. In no event shall any amount of the funds provided under the Agreement be utilized with respect to a facility which has given rise to a conviction under section 113(c)(1) of the Clean Air Act or section 309(c) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

- F. Contractors who receive subcontracts/subgrants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 are required to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401–7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251–1387).
- G. Any violations of this Section 12 must be reported to the Federal awarding agency, the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the City.

SECTION 12 Architectural Barriers Act

The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §4151-4157) requires certain Federal and Federally funded buildings and other facilities to be designed, constructed, or altered in accordance with standards that insure accessibility to, and use by, physically handicapped people. A building or facility designed, constructed or altered with funds allocated or reallocated under this part after December 11, 1995, and that meets the definition of "residential structure" as defined in 24 CFR §40.2 or the definition of "building" as defined in 41 CFR §101-19.602(a) is subject to the requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §4151-4157) and shall comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 40 for residential structures, and Appendix A to 41 CFR Part 101-19, Subpart 10119.6, for general type buildings).

SECTION 13 The Americans with Disabilities Act

The Americans with Disabilities Act, also referred to as the ADA (42 U.S.C. §12131; 47 U.S.C. §§155, 201, 218 and 225), provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, State and local government services, and telecommunications. It further provides that discrimination includes a failure to design and construct facilities for first occupancy no later than January 25, 1993 that are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. Further, the ADA requires the removal of architectural barriers and communication barriers that are structural in nature in existing facilities, where such removal is readily achievable--that is, easily accomplishable and able to be carried out without much difficulty or expense.

SECTION 14 Records For Audit Purposes

Without limitation to any other provision of the foregoing Agreement/Contract the Contractor shall maintain all records concerning the program or project financed under this Agreement which the City reasonably requires from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the

submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR §200.333. The Contractor shall maintain records required by 24 CFR §135.92 for the period required under 2 CFR §200.333. The Contractor will give the City, HUD, the Comptroller General of United States, the General Accounting Office, or any of their authorized representatives access to and the right to examine, copy, or reproduce all records pertaining to the acquisition and construction of the project and the operation of the program or project. The right to access shall continue as long as the records are required to be maintained under 2 CFR §200.336.

SECTION 15 Audit Requirements

- a. Limited Scope Audit Contractor understands that Non-Federal entities that expend less than \$750,000 a year in Federal awards are exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, but records must be available to review and audit as described hereinabove at Section 17. Contractor further understands that limited scope audits can and may be required by the City for non-Federal entities that expend less than \$750,000. If the City requires such limited scope audits, same shall be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements.
- b. Single Audit Single Audit Contractor further understands that non-Federal entities that expend \$750,000 or more a year in Federal awards shall have a single audit conducted pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements, except when an election is made to have a program specific audit pursuant to and described in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements. Once the Contract is executed, Contractor understands that it is barred from considering such audit and must have a single audit conducted as described hereinabove.

SECTION 16 Additional Federal Requirements Under 2 CFR PART 200, Appendix II, As Applicable

- (A) <u>Simplified Acquisition Threshold.</u> Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$150,000, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. §1908, as may be amended from time to time, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
- (B) <u>Contract Minimum for Termination for Cause and Convenience</u>. All contracts in excess of \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement.
- (C) <u>Davis Bacon Act</u>, as amended (40 U.S.C. §3141–3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §3141–3144, and 3146–3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to

laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

- (D) <u>Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act.</u> Contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Antikickback" Act (40 U.S.C. §3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.
- (E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §3701–3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the nonfederal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §3702 and §3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. §3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. §3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.
- (F) <u>Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement.</u> If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.
- (G) <u>Energy Policy and Conservation Act.</u> Contractor must comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. §6201).
- (H) <u>Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. §1352)</u>. Contractors that apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. §1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.

(I) **Procurement of Recovered Materials.** See 2 CFR §200.322.

EXHIBIT "I"

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

The applicant/Contractor hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 C.F.R. Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause quoted and bolded below:

"During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- (2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- (3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

- (5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States."

The applicant/Contractor further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: *Provided*, That if the applicant/Contractor so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The applicant/Contractor agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the GLO and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the GLO and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the GLO in the discharge of the GLO's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The applicant/Contractor further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a

contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts, as defined in 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3, and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, applicant/Contractor agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the GLO may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this Contract; refrain from extending any further assistance to Contractor under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from Contractor; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

The applicant/Contractor may make such necessary changes in language in the equal opportunity clause as shall be appropriate to identify properly the parties and their undertakings.

EXHIBIT J

TITLE VI: NON-DISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest agrees as follows:

- 1. <u>Compliance with Regulations</u> The Contractor shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation ("DOT") 49 CFR Part 21, as may be amended from time to time ("Regulations"), which are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>Non-discrimination</u> The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the Agreement, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of Subcontractors, including procurement of materials and Agreements of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- 3. <u>Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment</u> In all solicitation, either by competitive bidding or negotiation, made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or Agreements of equipment, each potential Subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- 4. <u>Information and Reports</u> The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the FAA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the sponsor or the FAA, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- 5. <u>Sanctions for Noncompliance</u> In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the sponsor shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the FAA may determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to:
 - 5.1. withholding of payments to the Contractor under the Agreement until the Contractor complies, and/or
 - 5.2. cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.
- 6. <u>Incorporation of Provisions</u> The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1-

5 above in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and Agreements of equipment, unless exempt by the regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the FAA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. If the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a Subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the sponsor to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor and, in addition, the Contractor may request the United States of America to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

EXHIBIT K GLO HARVEY CONTRACT

GLO Contract No. 19-147-001-B489 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY PROGRAM PROJECTS NON-RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT HARVEY ROUND 1 FUNDING

("2019 Subrecipient Agreement", includes initial subrecipient agreement between the City and the GLO and Amendment No. 1)

For purposes of this Exhibit K, "Subrecipient" shall also refer to "Contractor" and "GLO" shall also refer to the "City," as applicable.

The 2019 Subrecipient Agreement shall automatically terminate on the date HUD approves the eighth amendment to the State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery: Hurricane Harvey Round 1, as amended from time to time, found at https://www.recovery.texas.gov/action-plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html.

EXHIBIT K-1 GLO HARVEY CONTRACT

GLO CONTRACT NO. 21-134-000-C788

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY PROGRAM

NON-RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

HURRICANE HARVEY FUNDING

("2021 Subrecipient Agreement")

The 2021 Subrecipient Agreement to become effective to govern this Agreement on the date HUD approves the eighth amendment to the State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery:

Hurricane Harvey Round 1, as amended from time to time, found at https://www.recovery.texas.gov/action-plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html)

For purposes of this Exhibit K-1, "Subrecipient" shall also refer to "Contractor" and "GLO" shall also refer to the "City," as applicable.

THE STATE OF TEXAS	§	SOLICITATION NO.
	§	ORDINANCE #
COUNTY OF HARRIS	§	CONTRACT #

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES

ARTICLE 1. PARTIES

THIS AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES (this "Agreement") is made on the date countersigned by the City Controller between the CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS (the "City"), a home-rule city of the State of Texas principally situated in Harris County and TETRA TECH, INC., a Delaware corporation, doing business in Texas ("Contractor").

1.01 **ADDRESS**:

1.01.1 The initial addresses of the Parties, which one Party may change by giving written notice to the other Party, are as follows:

<u>City</u>			<u>Contractor</u>
Deputy Director Tetra Tech, Inc.			
Office	of	Emergency	1500 CityWest Boulevard
Managen	nent		Houston, Texas 77042
5320 N. Shepherd Drive		Drive	Attention: Caitlin Kelly, MEP
Houston, Texas 77091		7091	(215) 605-4748

The Parties agree as follows:

1.02 **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.02.1 This Agreement consists of the following sections:

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page No.
ARTICLE 1.	PARTIES	1
1.01	ADDRESS	1
1.02	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
1.03	PARTS INCORPORATED	
1.04	CONTROLLING PARTS	
1.05	DEFINITIONS	
1.06	SIGNATURES	
ARTICLE 2.	DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR	6
2.01	SCOPE OF SERVICES	6
2.02	COORDINATE PERFORMANCE	6
2.03	TIME EXTENSIONS	6
2.04	REPORTS	6
2.05	PAYMENT OF SUBCONTRACTORS	6
2.06	RELEASE	7
2.07	INDEMNIFICATION	7
2.08	INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE - PATENT, COPYRIGHT,	
	TRADEMARK AND TRADE SECRET INFRINGEMENT	
2.09	SUBCONTRACTOR'S INDEMNITY	_
2.10	INDEMNIFICATION PROCEDURES	_
2.11	INSURANCE	
2.12	PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS	
2.13	WARRANTIES	
2.14.	USE AND OWNERSHIP OF DATA AND WORK PRODUCTS	
2.15	CONFIDENTIALITY	
2.16 2.17	LICENSE AND PERMITS COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS	
2.17 2.18	SECTION 3 REGULATIONS	
2.10	COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY	14
2.19	ORDINANCE	14
2.20	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	14
2.21	NON-DISCRIMINATION	15
2.22	MWBE COMPLIANCE	15
2.23	DRUG ABUSE DETECTION AND DETERRENCE	16
2.24	CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE	17
2.25	PAY OR PLAY	
2.26	ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION	
2.27	ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS	
2.28	ANTI-BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL	_
2.29	ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY FOR HUMAN TRAFFICKING AND	

	RELATED ACTIVITIES	
2.30	PRESERVATION OF CONTRACTING INFORMATION	19
ARTICLE 3.	DUTIES OF CITY	20
3.01	PAYMENT TERMS	20
3.02	TAXES	
3.03	METHOD OF PAYMENT	
3.04	LIMIT OF APPROPRIATION	
3.05	ACCESS TO SITE	
3.06	ACCESS TO DATA	23
3.07	NO QUANTITY GUARANTEE	23
ARTICLE 4.	TERM AND TERMINATION	23
4.01	AGREEMENT TERM	2.3
4.01	NOTICE TO PROCEED	
4.03	RENEWALS	
4.04	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE BY CITY	
4.05	TERMINATION FOR CAUSE BY CITY	
4.06	EFFECTS OF TERMINATION	
	MISCELLANEOUS	
5.01	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	
5.02	FORCE MAJEURE	
5.03	SEVERABILITY	
5.04	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	
5.05 5.06	WRITTEN AMENDMENT	
5.00	NOTICES	
5.07	CAPTIONS	
5.00	NON-WAIVER	
5.10	INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS	
5.11	ENFORCEMENT	
5.12	AMBIGUITIES	
5.13	SURVIVAL	
5.14	PUBLICITY	29
5.15	RISK OF LOSS	29
5.16	PARTIES IN INTEREST	29
5.17	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	29
5.18	BUSINESS STRUCTURE AND ASSIGNMENTS	29
5.19	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
5.20	REMEDIES CUMULATIVE	
5.21	CONTRACTOR DEBT	
5.22	FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS	
5.23	FLOW-THROUGH PROVISIONS	
5 24	CONTRACT WORK AND SAFETY STANDARDS	31

EXHIBITS	
А	Definitions
В	Scope of Services
B-1	Sample Task Order
B-2	Fee Schedule
С	Drug Policy Compliance Agreement
D	Contractor's Certification of No Safety Impact Positions
Е	Drug Policy Compliance Declaration
F	Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and
	Other Responsibility Matters – Primary Covered
	Transactions
G	Anti-Lobbying Certification
H	Hurricane Harvey CDBG-DR Requirements Non-Exclusive
	List of Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Rules
H-1	Federal Contract Requirements
I	Equal Opportunity Clause
J	Title VI: Non-Discrimination
K and K-1	GLO Harvey Contract

1.03 **PARTS INCORPORATED**

1.03.1 The above-described sections and exhibits are incorporated into this Agreement.

1.04 **CONTROLLING PARTS**

1.04.1 If a conflict between the sections or exhibits arises, the sections control over the exhibits.

1.05 **DEFINITIONS**

1.05.1 Certain terms used in this Agreement are defined in Exhibit "A".

1.06 **SIGNATURES**

1.06.1 The Parties have executed this Agreement in multiple copies, each of which is an original. Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of such Party's obligations hereunder have been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding on such Party and enforceable in accordance with its terms. The Parties hereby agree that each Party may sign and deliver this Agreement electronically or by electronic means and that an electronic transmittal of a signature, including but not limited to, a scanned signature page, will be as good, binding, and effective as an original signature.

ATTEST/SEAL (if a corporation): **CONTRACTOR:** WITNESS (if not a corporation): **TETRA TECH, INC.**, a Delaware corporation DS andrew Mazzeo Andrew Mazzeo Name: Name: Vice President 95-4148514 Title: Title: Federal Tax ID Number: ATTEST/SEAL: CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS Signed by: Pat Jefferson-Paniel City Secretary Mayor Amanda Washington APPROVED: COUNTERS PRED Thomas Munos Deputy Director, Office of Emergency City Controller Management -B172D137C7AD44E APPROVED: COUNTERSIGNATURE DATE: 7/25/2022 Jerry adams Chief Procurement Officer APPROVED: APPROVED AS TO FORM: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: Steven Woods keith W. Byram Sr. Assistant City Attorney Director, Housing and Community L.D. File No. <u>0292200073001</u> Development Department

ARTICLE 2. DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR

2.01 **SCOPE OF SERVICES**

2.01.1 In consideration of the payments specified in this Agreement, Contractor shall provide all supervision, labor, tools, equipment, permits, parts, expendable items, material, and supplies necessary to perform the services described in Exhibit "B".

2.02 **COORDINATE PERFORMANCE**

2.02.1 Contractor shall coordinate its performance with the Director and other persons that the Director designates. Contractor shall promptly inform the Director and other person(s) of all significant events relating to the performance of this Agreement.

2.03 **TIME EXTENSIONS**

- 2.03.1 In addition to the authority of the Director to extend this Agreement pursuant to the terms of Section 4.03.1 hereinbelow, if Contractor requests an extension of time to complete its performance, then the Director, in consultation with the CPO, may, in his or her sole discretion, extend the time so long as the extension does not exceed 90 days. The extension must be in writing but does not require amendment of this Agreement. Contractor is not entitled to damages for delay(s) regardless of the cause of the delay(s).
- 2.03.2 If the Director requests an extension of time to complete Contractor's performance, then the CPO may, upon consultation with the Director involved, extend the time so long as the extension does not exceed 90 calendar days. The extension must be in writing but does not require amendment of this Agreement. Contractor is not entitled to damages for delay(s) regardless of the cause of the delay(s).

2.04. **REPORTS**

2.04.1 Contractor shall submit all reports and progress updates required by the Director, the City of Houston Housing and Community Development Department (HCDD) and CPO.

2.05 **PAYMENT OF SUBCONTRACTORS**

- 2.05.1 In accordance with the Texas Prompt Payment Act, Contractor shall make timely payments to all persons and entities supplying labor, materials, or equipment, or services by, through, or under Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.
- 2.05.2 CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY THE CITY FROM ANY CLAIMS OR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO MAKE THESE PAYMENTS REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE FAILURE TO PAY IS CAUSED BY, OR CONTRIBUTED TO, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT), OR GROSS NEGLIGENCE, (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT), STRICT LIABILITY, INTENTIONAL ACTS, OR OTHER CONDUCT OR LIABILITY OF THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES.

2.05.3 Failure of Contractor to pay its employees and subcontractors as required by law shall constitute a default under this Agreement, for which Contractor and its surety shall be liable on Contractor's performance security, if any, if Contractor fails to cure the default as provided under this Agreement.

2.06 RELEASE

2.06.1 CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL RELEASE THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES. OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY THE "CITY") FROM ALL LIABILITY FOR INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY SUSTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF THE INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS IS CAUSED BY THE CITY'S SOLE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE AND/OR THE CITY'S STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY LIABILITY. CONTRACTOR HEREBY COVENANTS AND AGREES NOT TO SUE THE CITY FOR ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR CAUSES OF ACTION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY RELATED TO ITS RELEASE UNDER THIS SECTION. FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, THIS COVENANT NOT TO SUE DOES NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS FOR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

2.07 INDEMNIFICATION

- 2.07.1 CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY, THE "CITY") HARMLESS FOR ALL CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITIES, FINES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ATTORNEYS' FEES, COURT COSTS, AND ALL OTHER DEFENSE COSTS AND INTEREST) FOR INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY SUSTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE CAUSED BY:
 - 2.07.1.1 CONTRACTOR'S AND/OR ITS AGENTS'. EMPLOYEES'. CONTRACTORS', OFFICERS', DIRECTORS'. OR SUBCONTRACTORS' (COLLECTIVELY IN **NUMBERED** SUBPARAGRAPHS 2.07.1.1 THROUGH 2.07.1.3, "CONTRACTOR") ACTUAL OR ALLEGED NEGLIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL ACTS OR OMISSIONS;
 - 2.07.1.2 THE CITY'S AND CONTRACTOR'S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS IMMUNE FROM LIABILITY OR NOT; AND
 - 2.07.1.3 THE CITY'S AND CONTRACTOR'S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY LIABILITY, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS IMMUNE FROM LIABILITY OR NOT.
- 2.07.2 CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY HARMLESS DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT AND FOR FOUR YEARS AFTER THE AGREEMENT TERMINATES.

2.08 <u>INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE – PATENT, COPYRIGHT, TRADEMARK, AND TRADE SECRET INFRINGEMENT</u>

- 2.08.1 CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL RELEASE AND DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY THE "CITY") FROM ALL CLAIMS OR CAUSES OF ACTION BROUGHT AGAINST THE CITY BY ANY PARTY, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR, ALLEGING THAT THE CITY'S USE OF ANY EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, PROCESS, OR DOCUMENTS CONTRACTOR FURNISHES DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT INFRINGES ON A PATENT, COPYRIGHT, OR TRADEMARK, OR MISAPPROPRIATES A TRADE SECRET. CONTRACTOR SHALL PAY ALL COSTS (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ATTORNEYS' FEES, COURT COSTS, AND ALL OTHER DEFENSE COSTS, AND INTEREST) AND DAMAGES AWARDED.
- 2.08.2 CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT SETTLE ANY CLAIM ON TERMS WHICH PREVENT THE CITY FROM USING THE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, PROCESS, AND DOCUMENTS WITHOUT THE CITY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.
- 2.08.3 WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER BEING NOTIFIED OF THE CLAIM, CONTRACTOR SHALL, AT ITS OWN EXPENSE, EITHER (1) OBTAIN FOR THE CITY THE RIGHT TO CONTINUE USING THE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, PROCESS, AND DOCUMENTS OR, (2) IF BOTH PARTIES AGREE, REPLACE OR MODIFY THEM WITH COMPATIBLE AND FUNCTIONALLY EQUIVALENT PRODUCTS. IF NONE OF THESE ALTERNATIVES IS REASONABLY AVAILABLE, THE CITY MAY RETURN THE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, OR DOCUMENTS, OR DISCONTINUE THE PROCESS, AND CONTRACTOR SHALL REFUND THE PURCHASE PRICE.

2.09 SUBCONTRACTOR'S INDEMNITY

2.09.1 CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE ALL OF ITS SUBCONTRACTORS (AND THEIR SUBCONTRACTORS) TO RELEASE AND INDEMNIFY THE CITY TO THE SAME EXTENT AND IN SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME FORM AS ITS RELEASE AND INDEMNITY TO THE CITY.

2.10 INDEMNIFICATION PROCEDURES

- 2.10.1 <u>Notice of Claims</u>. If the City or Contractor receives notice of any claim or circumstances which could give rise to an indemnified loss, the receiving Party shall give written notice to the other Party within 30 days. The notice must include the following:
 - 2.10.1.1 a description of the indemnification event in reasonable detail;
 - 2.10.1.2 the basis on which indemnification may be due; and
 - 2.10.1.3 the anticipated amount of the indemnified loss.

2.10.1.4 This notice does not estop or prevent the City from later asserting a different basis for indemnification or a different amount of indemnified loss than that indicated in the initial notice. If the City does not provide this notice within the 30-day period, it does not waive any right to indemnification except to the extent that Contractor is prejudiced, suffers loss, or incurs expense because of the delay.

2.10.2 Defense of Claims

- 2.10.2.1 <u>Assumption of Defense</u>. Contractor may assume the defense of the claim at its own expense with counsel chosen by it that is reasonably satisfactory to the City Attorney. Contractor shall then control the defense and any negotiations to settle the claim, subject to the City Attorney's consent or agreement to the settlement, which consent or agreement shall not unreasonably be withheld. Within 10 days after receiving written notice of the indemnification request, Contractor must advise the City as to whether or not it will defend the claim. If Contractor does not assume the defense, the City shall assume and control the defense, and all defense expenses constitute an indemnification loss.
- 2.10.2.2 <u>Continued Participation</u>. If Contractor elects to defend the claim, the City may retain separate counsel to participate in (but not control) the defense and to participate in (but not control) any settlement negotiations.

2.11 **INSURANCE**

2.11.1 **Risks and Limits of Liability**. Contractor shall maintain the following insurance coverages in the following amounts:

COVERAGE	<u>LIMIT OF LIABILITY</u>	
Workers' Compensation	Statutory for Workers' Compensation	
Employer's Liability	 Bodily Injury by Accident \$500,000 (each accident) Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 (policy limit) Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 (each employee) 	
Commercial General Liability: Bodily and Personal Injury; Products and Completed Operations Coverage	Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Combined Limits of \$1,000,000 each Occurrence, and \$2,000,000 aggregate	
Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 combined single limit for: (i) Any Auto; or (ii) All Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Autos	
Professional Liability (if applicable)	\$1,000,000 per occurrence; \$2,000,000 aggregate	
Excess Liability Coverage, or Umbrella Coverage, for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000	
Aggregate Limits are per 12-month policy period unless otherwise indicated.		

- 2.11.2 Insurance Coverage. At all times during the term of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals, Contractor shall provide and maintain insurance coverage that meets the Agreement requirements. Prior to beginning performance under the Agreement, at any time upon the Director's request, or each time coverage is renewed or updated, Contractor shall furnish to the Director current certificates of insurance, endorsements, all policies, or other policy documents evidencing adequate coverage, as necessary. Contractor shall be responsible for and pay: (i) all premiums; and (ii) any claims or losses to the extent of any deductible amounts. Contractor waives any claim it may have for premiums or deductibles against the City, its officers, agents, or employees. Contractor shall also require all subcontractors or consultants whose subcontracts exceed \$100,000 to provide proof of insurance coverage meeting all requirements stated above except amount. The amount must be commensurate with the amount of the subcontract, but no less than \$500,000 per claim.
- 2.11.3 **Form of insurance**. The form of the insurance shall be approved by the Director and the City Attorney; such approval (or lack thereof) shall never: (i) excuse non-compliance with the terms of this Section; or (ii) waive or estop the City from asserting its rights to terminate this Agreement. The policy issuer shall: (i) have a Certificate of Authority to transact insurance business in Texas; or (ii) be an eligible non-admitted insurer in the State of Texas and have a Best's rating of at least B+, and a Best's Financial Size Category of Class VI or better, according to the most current Best's Key Rating Guide.
- 2.11.4 Required Coverage. The City shall be an Additional Insured under this Agreement, and all policies, except Professional Liability and Worker's Compensation, shall explicitly name the City as an Additional Insured. The City shall enjoy the same coverage as the Named Insured without regard to other Agreement provisions. Contractor waives any claim or right of subrogation to recover against the City, its officers, agents, or employees, and each of Contractor's insurance policies except professional liability must contain coverage waiving such claim. Each policy, except Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability, must also contain an endorsement that the policy is primary to any other insurance available to the Additional Insured with respect to claims arising under this Agreement. If professional liability coverage is written on a "claims made" basis, Contractor shall also provide proof of renewal each year for two years after substantial completion of the project, or in the alternative: evidence of extended reporting period coverage for a period of two years after substantial completion, or a project liability policy for the project covered by this Agreement with a duration of two years after substantial completion. All certificates of insurance submitted by Contractor shall be accompanied by endorsements for: (i) Additional Insured coverage in favor of the City for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies; and (ii) Waivers of Subrogation in favor of the City for Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Workers' Compensation/Employers' Liability policies. The Director will consider all other forms on a case-bycase basis.

- 2.11.5 Notice. CONTRACTOR SHALL GIVE 30 DAYS' ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE DIRECTOR IF ANY OF ITS INSURANCE POLICIES ARE CANCELED OR NON-RENEWED. Within the 30-day period, Contractor shall provide other suitable policies in order to maintain the required coverage. If Contractor does not comply with this requirement, the Director, at his or her sole discretion, may immediately suspend Contractor from any further performance under this Agreement and begin procedures to terminate for default.
- 2.11.6 **Other Insurance**. If requested by the Director, Contractor shall furnish adequate evidence of Social Security and Unemployment Compensation Insurance, to the extent applicable to Contractor's operations under this Agreement.

2.12 **PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS**

2.12.1 Contractor's performance shall conform to the professional standards prevailing in the Harris County, Texas, with respect to the scope, quality, due diligence, and care of the services and products Contractor provides under this Agreement.

2.13 **WARRANTIES**

- 2.13.1 Contractor warrants that it shall perform all work in a good and workmanlike manner, meeting the standards of quality prevailing in Harris County, Texas for work of this kind. Contractor shall perform all work using trained and skilled persons having substantial experience performing the work required under this Agreement.
- 2.13.2 With respect to any parts and goods it furnishes, Contractor warrants:
 - 2.13.2.1 that all items are free of defects in title, design, material, and workmanship;
 - 2.13.2.2 that each item meets or exceeds the manufacturer's specifications and requirements for the equipment, structure, or other improvement in which the item is installed;
 - 2.13.2.3 that each replacement item is new, in accordance with original equipment manufacturer's specifications, and of a quality at least as good as the quality of the item which it replaces (when the replaced item was new); and
 - 2.13.2.4 that no item or its use infringes any patent, copyright, or Proprietary Right.

2.14 USE AND OWNERSHIP OF DATA AND WORK PRODUCTS

- 2.14.1 The City may use and shall be permitted to use all City Data, Contractor Data, and Work Products.
- 2.14.2 Contractor warrants that it owns the copyright to Contractor Data.

- 2.14.3 Contractor conveys and assigns to the City its entire interest and full ownership worldwide in and to all Work Products and all Proprietary Rights therein.
- 2.14.4 Contractor shall not claim or exercise any Proprietary Rights in or to the Work Products. If requested by the Director, Contractor shall place a conspicuous notation on any Work Products indicating that the City owns the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein.
- 2.14.5 Contractor's assignment of its interest in the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein to the City does not constitute a mere license or franchise to the City.
- 2.14.6 Contractor shall execute all documents required by the Director to further evidence Contractor's assignment and the City's ownership of the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein. Contractor shall cooperate with City in registering, creating, and enforcing the City's ownership of the Work Products and the Proprietary Rights therein.
- 2.14.7 All Work Products are "works made for hire."
- 2.14.8 Contractor shall deliver to the Director all or any part of the original City Data, Contractor Data, Work Products, and/or all other files and materials that Contractor produces or gathers during its performance under this Agreement, in the format and on the media specified by Director, within five Business Days after written request from Director or after this Agreement terminates or otherwise expires.
- 2.14.9 Contractor may retain copies of the Work Products for its archives. Contractor shall not otherwise use, sell, license, or market the Work Products.
- 2.14.10 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the City is, will be, and shall remain at all times the sole owner of all City Documents and all Work Products. Contractor expressly acknowledges that the City has all right, title, or other ownership interest in all City Documents and all Work Products. Contractor shall not possess or assert any lien or other right against any City Documents or Work Products.

2.15 **CONFIDENTIALITY**

- 2.15.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Receiving Party shall:
 - 2.15.1.1 Hold all Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party in strict confidence;
 - 2.15.1.2 Protect all Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party with at least the same degree of care and in accordance with the security regulations by which it protects its own Confidential Information;
 - 2.15.1.3 Not use, reproduce, or copy any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party except as necessary for purposes of performing any duties or exercising any rights under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement unless the Disclosing Party otherwise agrees in writing;

- 2.15.1.4 Not disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party to any person or entity except the Receiving Party's agents, Contractors, employees, and representatives with a need to know for purposes of performing any duties or exercising any rights under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement unless the Disclosing Party otherwise agrees in writing;
- 2.15.1.5 Not remove any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party from the continental United States;
- 2.15.1.6 Return or destroy all Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party and any copies of such Confidential Information upon request of the Disclosing Party and, in any event, when no longer needed or permitted for use under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement; and
- 2.15.1.7 Advise its agents, Contractors, employees, and representatives of their obligations with respect to the Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party.
- 2.15.2 No Receiving Party shall have any obligation under this Section (Confidentiality) as to any Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party that:
 - 2.15.2.1 Was previously known to it free and clear of any obligation to keep it confidential;
 - 2.15.2.2 Except as otherwise provided under this Agreement, is disclosed to third parties by the Disclosing Party without restriction;
 - 2.15.2.3 Is or becomes publicly available by other than unauthorized disclosure;
 - 2.15.2.4 Is independently developed by it; or
 - 2.15.2.5 Is disclosed in response to requests made under the Texas Public Information Act or a court order. However, the Receiving Party ordered to disclose the Confidential Information shall: (i) give the Disclosing Party of the Confidential Information prompt written notice of all such requests, and (ii) cooperate with the Disclosing Party's efforts to obtain a protective order protecting the Confidential Information from disclosure.
 - 2.15.2.6 No Receiving Party shall be liable for the inadvertent or accidental disclosure of Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party, if the disclosure occurs despite the exercise of a reasonable degree of care, which is at least as great as the care the Receiving Party normally takes to protect its own Confidential Information of a similar nature.
 - 2.15.2.7 Contractor shall obtain written agreements from its agents, employees, Contractors, and subcontractors that bind them to the terms of this Section (Confidentiality).

2.16 **LICENSES AND PERMITS**

2.16.1 Contractor shall obtain, maintain, and pay for all licenses, permits, and certificates including all professional licenses required by any statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation for the performance under this Agreement. Contractor shall immediately notify the Director of any suspension, revocation, or other detrimental action against its license.

2.17 **COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS**

2.17.1 Contractor shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and the City Charter and Code of Ordinances in its performance under this Agreement. Contractor, and its Subcontractors, if any, acknowledges that it is subject to and shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, rules, and policies applicable to the Hurricane Harvey Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery ("CDBG-DR17") program including, without limitation, Non-Exclusive List of Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Rules listed in **EXHIBIT H**, which include the federal regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 570 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200.

2.18 **SECTION 3 REGULATIONS**

2.18.1 The work to be performed under this Agreement is on a project assisted under a program providing federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 170u, "Section 3") and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135 apply to the Agreement. Under Section 3, to the greatest extent feasible, for any contract award in excess of \$100,000, the Contractor shall give opportunities for training and employment to lower-income residents of the City and shall award contracts for work in connection with the project to business concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the City.

2.19 COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ORDINANCE

2.19.1 Contractor shall comply with City's Equal Employment Opportunity Ordinance as set out in in Section 15-17 of the Code of Ordinances.

2.20 **CONFLICTS OF INTEREST**

- 2.20.1 Contractor shall comply with all conflicts of interest laws and regulations applicable to this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly disclose in writing to the City all actual or potential conflicts of interest relative to the performance of this Agreement.
- 2.20.2 If an actual or potential conflict arises between the City's interests and the interests of other clients Contractor represents, Contractor shall immediately notify the Director promptly in writing. If the Director consents to Contractor's continued

representation of the other clients, he or she shall notify Contractor in writing. If the Director does not issue written consent within 3 business days after receipt of Contractor's notice, Contractor shall immediately terminate its representation of the other client whose interests are or may be in conflict with those of the City.

2.21 NON-DISCRIMINATION

2.20.1 Contractor shall comply with the applicable non-discrimination provisions required by the United States of America, including but not limited to the provisions of 49 CFR Part 21. These provisions are inclusive of any amendments which may be made to such regulations. Further, Contractor shall include the summary of the provisions of 49 CFR Part 21, as may be amended, in subcontracts it enters into under this Agreement. This summary is set forth in **Exhibit J**.

2.22 MWBE COMPLIANCE

- 2.22.1 Contractor shall comply with the City's Minority and Women Business Enterprise ("MWBE") programs as set out in Chapter 15, Article V of the City of Houston Code of Ordinances. Contractor shall make good faith efforts to award subcontracts or supply agreements in at least 24% of the value of this Agreement to MWBEs. Contractor acknowledges that it has reviewed the requirements for good faith efforts on file with the City's Office of Business Opportunities ("OBO") and will comply with them.
- 2.22.2 Contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts with MWBE subcontractors and suppliers contain the following terms:

[Name of MWBE subcontractor] shall not delegate or subcontract more than 50% of the work under this subcontract to any other subcontractor or supplier without the express written consent of the City of Houston's Office of Business Opportunity Director (the "Director").

[Name of MWBE subcontractor] shall permit representatives of the City of Houston, at all reasonable times, to perform: (i) audits of the books and records of the subcontractor; and (ii) inspections of all places where work is to be undertaken in connection with this subcontract. Subcontractor shall keep such books and records available for such purpose for at least 4 years after the end of its performance under this subcontract. Nothing in this provision shall affect the time for bringing a cause of action nor the applicable statute of limitations.

Within five Business Days of execution of this subcontract, Contractor and Subcontractor shall designate in writing to the Director an agent for receiving any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to Chapter 15 of the Houston City Code of Ordinances, along with the street and mailing address and phone number of such agent.

Any controversy between the Parties involving the construction or application of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this subcontract may be submitted to the Director. The Director may prescribe procedures to provide dispute resolution by neutrals in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 15 of the Houston City Code of Ordinances.

- 2.22.3 Contractor shall adhere to and comply with 2 CFR § 200.321 if subcontracts are to be let under this Agreement. The Contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, is required to take the following affirmative steps to ensure that small business firms, minority business firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible pursuant to 2 CFR Section § 200.321. Affirmative steps must include: (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.
- 2.22.4 Contractor must clearly document the communication and outreach to the certified business. Documentation may include mail logs, phone logs, or similar records documenting the use of the above identified sources of information about MWSBE firms, the efforts to contact them, and other efforts to meet the above requirements.

2.23. DRUG ABUSE DETECTION AND DETERRENCE

- 2.23.1 It is the policy of the City to achieve a drug-free workforce and workplace. The manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, sale, or use of illegal drugs or alcohol by contractors while on City Premises is prohibited. Contractor shall comply with all the requirements and procedures set forth in the Mayor's Drug Abuse Detection and Deterrence Procedures for Contractors, Executive Order No. 1-31 (the "Executive Order"), which is incorporated into this Agreement and is on file in the City Secretary's Office.
- 2.23.2 Before the City signs this Agreement, Contractor shall file with the Contract Compliance Officer for Drug Testing ("CCODT"):
 - 2.23.2.1 a copy of its drug-free workplace policy;
 - 2.23.2.2 the Drug Policy Compliance Agreement substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit "C", together with a written designation of all safety impact positions; and
 - 2.23.2.3 if applicable (e.g., no safety impact positions), the Certification of No Safety Impact Positions, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit "D".
- 2.23.3 If Contractor files a written designation of safety impact positions with its Drug Policy Compliance Agreement, it also shall file every 6 months during the performance of this Agreement or on completion of this Agreement if performance is less than 6 months, a Drug Policy Compliance Declaration in a form substantially similar to Exhibit "E". Contractor shall submit the Drug Policy Compliance Declaration to the CCODT within 30 days of the expiration of each 6-month period of performance and within 30 days of completion of this Agreement. The first 6-

- month period begins to run on the date the City issues its Notice to Proceed or, if no Notice to Proceed is issued, on the first day Contractor begins work under this Agreement.
- 2.23.4 Contractor also shall file updated designations of safety impact positions with the CCODT if additional safety impact positions are added to Contractor's employee work force.
- 2.23.5 Contractor shall require that its subcontractors comply with the Executive Order, and Contractor shall secure and maintain the required documents for City inspection.

2.24. **CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE**

2.24.1 Contractor shall make citizen satisfaction a priority in providing services under this Agreement. Contractor shall train its employees to be a customer service-oriented and to positively and politely interact with citizens when performing contract services. Contractor's employees shall be clean, courteous, efficient, and neat in appearance and committed to offering the highest quality of service to the public. If, in the Director's opinion, Contractor is not interacting in a positive and polite manner with citizens, he or she shall direct Contractor to take all remedial steps to conform to these standards.

2.25. **PAY OR PLAY**

2.25.1 The requirements and terms of the City of Houston Pay or Play program, as set out in Executive Order 1-7, as revised from time to time, are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes. Contractor has reviewed Executive Order No. 1-7, as revised, and shall comply with its terms and conditions.

2.26 ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION

- 2.26.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Section 2.26, Contractor shall not submit an invoice or request for payment (each, a "Request for Payment") and Contractor shall not be entitled to payment and the City shall have no duty to pay Contractor unless the Director accepts the services and other Deliverables specified in Exhibit "B" and such Request for Payment is issued in conjunction with the issuance of a Task Order in accordance with this Section 2.26
- 2.26.2 Contractor shall provide written notice to the Director upon completion or delivery of the services or Deliverables specified in Exhibit "B" and in a Task Order issued by the City. On or before the twentieth (20th) Business Day after the date the Director receives Contractor's written notice of completion or delivery, the Director shall provide written notice to Contractor stating whether the Director has accepted or rejected the services or Deliverables along with the reason(s) for any rejection. Failure of the Director to provide written notice of acceptance or rejection of any services or Deliverables on or before the 20th Business Day from his receipt of the Contractor's written notice of completion or delivery does not constitute acceptance or approval of the services or Deliverables by the Director or the City. If the Director fails to provide a written notice of acceptance or rejection by the 20th Business Day from the Director's receipt of Contractor's written notice of completion or delivery, Contractor may submit a Request for Payment for the

- services or Deliverables and such Request for Payment shall be subject to the Director's review, verification, and approval or dispute processes specified in the Payment Terms in Section 3.01 of this Agreement.
- 2.26.3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or elsewhere, the Director may, in his sole discretion, approve in writing a partial acceptance of the services and other Deliverables set forth in Exhibit "B", if any, and in a Task Order issued by the City.
- 2.26.4 If the Director rejects any services or Deliverables, in whole or part, Contractor shall have fifteen (15) Business Days after the Director sends written notification of rejection to correct or otherwise replace such services or Deliverables as necessary to conform to the Director's rejection notice. Contractor's corrections or replacements for rejected services or Deliverables shall be provided at no additional cost to the City. Contractor shall provide written notice to the Director upon completion of any such correction(s) or replacement(s) after the receipt of which the Director shall continue to either accept or reject (as provided under this Section) and Contractor shall continue to make any necessary correction(s) or replacement(s) (as provided under this Section) until the Director either accepts in writing all previously rejected services or Deliverable or issues a written final rejection notice in accordance with Section 2.26.5 of this Agreement.
- 2.26.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if the Director does not accept any services or Deliverable after one or more attempted correction(s) or replacement(s) of such services or Deliverables by Contractor, the Director may, in his sole discretion, issue a written final rejection notice to Contractor for such services and other Deliverables and the City shall have no obligation to pay any amount whatsoever related to those services or Deliverables that are the subject of the final rejection notice. The Director may, at any time after a final rejection notification has been issued, declare a default and elect to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, as provided in Section 4.05 of this Agreement.
- 2.26.6 The City reserves all other available rights and remedies at law or in equity, including without limitation all rights and remedies and rights under Article 2 of the Texas Business and Commerce Code.

2.27. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS

- 2.27.1 Additional Products and Services. Subject to the allocation of funds, the CPO may add similar equipment, supplies, services, or locations, within the scope of this Agreement, to the list of equipment, supplies, services, or locations to be performed or provided by giving written notification to Contractor. For purposes of this Section, the "Effective Date" means the date specified in the notification from the CPO. As of the Effective Date, each item added is subject to this Agreement, as if it had originally been a part, but the charge for each item starts to accrue only on the Effective Date. In the event the additional equipment, supplies, services, or locations are not identical to the items(s) already under this Agreement, the charges therefor will then be Contractor's normal and customary charges or rates for the equipment, supplies, services, or locations classified in the Fees and Costs (Exhibit "F").
- 2.27.2 Exclusion of Products and Services. If a deliverable or service that is subject to

this Agreement is deleted, lost, stolen, destroyed, damaged, sold, replaced, or otherwise disposed of, the CPO may exclude it from the operation of this Agreement by notifying Contractor in writing. The notice takes effect immediately on its receipt by Contractor. More than one notice may be given. When a notice is received, Contractor shall delete the charge for the excluded deliverable or service from the sum(s) otherwise due under this Agreement.

- 2.27.3 The total charges for additions and deletions to this Agreement must never exceed 25% of the original contract amount unless:
 - 2.27.3.1 The additions are exempt from the competitive bidding or proposal requirements set forth in Tex. Local Govt. Code Chapter 252; or
 - 2.27.3.2 The City acquires the additions from Contractor through a competitive bid or competitive proposal.

2.28 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL

2.28.1 Contractor certifies that Contractor is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement not to engage in, the boycott of Israel as defined by Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2.29 **ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY FOR HUMAN TRAFFICKING AND RELATED ACTIVITIES**

2.29.1 The requirements and terms of the City of Houston's Zero Tolerance Policy for Human Trafficking and Related Activities, as set forth in Executive Order 1-56, as revised from time to time, are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes. Contractor has reviewed Executive Order 1-56, as revised, and shall comply with its terms and conditions as they are set out at the time of the Countersignature Date. Contractor shall notify the CPO, City Attorney, and the Director of any information regarding possible violation by Contractor or its subcontractors providing services or goods under this Agreement within 7 days of Contractor becoming aware of or having a reasonable belief that such violations may have occurred, have occurred, or are reasonably likely to occur.

2.30 PRESERVATION OF CONTRACTING INFORMATION

2.30.1 The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, may apply to this Agreement and the Contractor agrees that this Agreement can be terminated if the Contractor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. If the requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, apply to this Agreement, then for the duration of this Agreement (including the initial term, any renewal terms, and any extensions), Contractor shall preserve all Contracting Information, as defined by Section 552.003 of the Texas Government Code, related to this Agreement as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the City pursuant to federal or state law or regulation, city ordinance or city policy, which record retention requirements include but are not limited to those set forth in Chapters 201 and 205 of the Texas Local Government Code and Texas Administrative Code Title 13, Chapter 7. Within five business days after receiving a request from the Director, Contractor shall provide any Contracting Information related to this Agreement that

is in the custody or possession of Contractor. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall, at the Director's election, either (a) provide, at no cost to the City, all Contracting Information related to this Agreement that is in the custody or possession of Contractor, or (b) preserve the Contracting Information related to this Agreement as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the City pursuant to federal or state law or regulation, city ordinance or City policy.

2.30.2 If Contractor fails to comply with any one or more of the requirements of this Section, <u>Preservation of Contracting Information</u>, or Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, then, in accordance with and pursuant to the processes and procedures set forth in Sections 552.373 and 552.374 of the Texas Government Code, the Director shall provide notice to the Contractor and may terminate this Agreement. To effect final termination, the Director must notify Contractor in writing with a copy of the notice to the CPO. After receiving the notice, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all services under this Agreement, and promptly cancel all orders or subcontracts chargeable to this Agreement.

2.31 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF ENERGY COMPANIES

2.31.1 Contractor certifies that Contract is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement not to engage in, the boycott of energy companies as defined by Section 809.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2.32 ANTI-BOYCOTT OF FIREARM ENTITIES OR FIREARM TRADE ASSOCIATIONS

2.32.1 Contractor certifies that Contractor does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association, or will not discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association for the duration of this Agreement, as defined by Section 2274.001 of the Texas Government Code.

2.33 CERTIFICATION OF NO BUSINESS WITH FOREIGN TERRORIST ORGANIZATIONS

2.33.1 For purposes of Section 2252.152 of the Code, Contractor certifies that at the time of this Agreement neither Contractor nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Contractor, is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Account under Sections 2252.153 or 2270.0201 of the Code as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or to a foreign terrorist organization.

ARTICLE 3. DUTIES OF CITY

3.01 **PAYMENT TERMS**

3.01.1 The City shall pay Contractor for the services actually performed under each Task Order in connection with this Agreement in accordance with the rates reflected in the applicable Task Order, which rates must be: (1) less than or equal to the rate schedule set forth in Exhibit "B-2" or otherwise in conformance with the alternative billing arrangements, if any, as set forth in Exhibit "B-2". City's payments to Contractor for services are subject to the allocation of funds and all fees and

expenses may only be paid from the Allocated Funds, as provided in below, unless the Director agrees, in writing, to expand the scope of the Services and simultaneously provide additional funding for the expanded scope.

3.02 **TAXES**

3.02.1 The City is exempt from payment of Federal Excise and Transportation Tax and Texas Limited Sales and Use Tax. Contractor's invoices to the City must not contain assessments of any of these taxes. The Director will furnish the City's exemption certificate and federal tax identification number to Contractor if requested.

3.03 **METHOD OF PAYMENT**

- 3.03.1 Upon the Director's written acceptance and approval of the services specified in a Task Order, or upon the Director's failure to provide a written notification of acceptance or rejection of services specified in a Task Order in accordance with Section 2.26 of this Agreement, Contractor may submit a Request for Payment to the Director. No Request for Payment, nor the cumulative sum of all Requests for Payment, shall exceed the hourly rates or maximum budget for each line item set forth in the applicable Task Order.
- 3.03.2 Subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement, the City shall pay Contractor on the basis of Requests for Payment submitted by Contractor and approved by the Director showing (1) a description of the services performed during the period covered by the Request for Payment and (2) the amount the Contractor requests for payment. Requests for Payment must state the specific services performed or Deliverables delivered and the corresponding prices for each item as indicated in the Scope of Services or in the applicable Task Order. If applicable, for hourly rates for items billable as a time and materials payment in accordance with the Fee Schedule, Contractor must provide detailed timesheets which shall include the name of Contractor's or subcontractor's staff person, date services were performed by each staffer, the amount of time spent performing the services per day by each staffer, and a detailed description of the services performed by each staffer on each day which description and services must correspond to a specific and discrete Deliverable or subtask in the Scope of Services including Exhibit "B", if any, and/or as set forth in the applicable task order. The City shall make payments to Contractor at its address for notices within 30 days of receipt of an approved invoice. All fees due to Contractor under this Agreement shall only be payable from certain Allocated Funds, as provided below.
- 3.03.3 If the City disputes any item in an invoice Contractor submits for any reason, including lack of supporting documentation, the Director shall temporarily delete the disputed item and pay the remainder of the invoice. The Director shall promptly notify Contractor of the dispute and request remedial action. After any dispute is settled, Contractor shall include the disputed amount on a subsequent regularly scheduled invoice or on a special invoice for the disputed item only.

3.04 **LIMIT OF APPROPRIATION**

3.04.1 The City's duty to pay money to Contractor under this Agreement is limited in its entirety by the provisions of this Section.

- 3.04.2 Contractor understands that the City's obligation for payment under this Agreement, if any, is limited to CDBG-DR17 funds received by the City from the Texas General Land Office ("GLO") in accordance with the applicable GLO Harvey Contract for the performance of services under this Agreement. HCDD shall perform the day-to-day administration and oversight of the CDBG-DR17 funds. Unless adequate CDBG-DR17 funds are received, the City shall have no obligation to pay Contractor. Contractor must look to these designated funds only and to no other funds for the City's payment under this Agreement, and that the City is permanently excused from making payments due under this Agreement if, for whatever reason, there is a lack of CDBG-DR17 funds.
- 3.04.3 In order to comply with Article II, Sections 19 and 19a of the City's Charter and Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution, the City has appropriated and allocated the sum of **One Million and no/100 dollars (\$1,000,000.00)** to pay money due under this Agreement during the City's current fiscal year (the "Original Allocation"). To the extent that City Council has approved additional funding, the executive and legislative officers of the City, in their discretion, may allocate supplemental funds (each a "Supplemental Allocation" and collectively, the "Supplemental Allocations") for this Agreement, but they are not obligated to do so. Therefore, the Parties have agreed to the following procedures and remedies:
 - 3.04.2.1 The City has not allocated supplemental funds or made a Supplemental Allocation for this Agreement unless the City has issued to Contractor a Service Release Order, or similar form approved by the City Controller, containing the language set out below. When necessary, the Supplemental Allocation shall be approved by motion or ordinance of City Council.

NOTICE OF SUPPLEMENTAL ALLOCATION OF FUNDS

By the signature below, the City Controller certifies that, upon the request of the Director, the supplemental sum set out below has been allocated for the purposes of the Agreement out of funds appropriated for this purpose by the City Council of the City of Houston. This Supplemental Allocation has been charged to such appropriation.

\$_____

3.04.2.2 The Original Allocation plus all Supplemental Allocations are the "Allocated Funds." The City shall never be obligated to pay any money under this Agreement in excess of the Allocated Funds. Contractor must assure itself that sufficient allocations have been made to pay for services it provides. If Allocated Funds are exhausted, Contractor's only remedy is suspension or termination of its performance under this Agreement, and it has no other remedy in law or in equity against the City and no right to damages of any kind.

3.05 ACCESS TO SITE

3.05.1 Contractor may enter and leave the premises at all reasonable times without

charge. Contractor and its employees may use the common areas and roadways of the premises where it is to perform the services together with all facilities, equipment, improvements, and services provided in connection with the premises for common use. This excludes parking for Contractor's personnel. Contractor shall repair any damage caused by it or its employees as a result of its use of the common areas.

3.06 ACCESS TO DATA

- 3.06.1 The City shall, to the extent permitted by law, allow Contractor to access and make copies of documents in the possession or control of the City or available to it that are reasonably necessary for Contractor to perform under this Agreement.
- 3.06.2 The City does not, however, represent that all existing conditions are fully documented, nor is the City obligated to develop new documentation for Contractor's use.
- 3.06.3 For any raw data created, assembled, used, maintained, collected, or stored by Contractor for or on behalf of the City, Contractor shall provide the City either the raw data itself or the ability to extract the raw data in a format mutually agreed upon by both Parties at no additional cost to the City.

3.07 **NO QUANTITY GUARANTEE**

- 3.07.1 This Agreement does not create an exclusive right in Contractor to perform all services concerning the subject of this Agreement. The City may procure and execute contracts with other consulting firms for the same, similar, or additional services as those set forth in this Agreement or any Scope of Services or Change Order.
- 3.07.2 The City makes no express or implied representations, warranties, or guarantees whatsoever, that any particular quantity, type, task area, or dollar amount of services will be procured or purchased from Contractor through this Agreement or any Scope of Services; nor does the City make any express or implied representations, warranties, or guarantees, whatsoever for the amount or value of revenue that Contractor may ultimately derive from or through this Agreement or any Scope of Services.

ARTICLE 4. TERM AND TERMINATION

4.01. **AGREEMENT TERM**

4.01.1 This Agreement is effective on the Countersignature Date and shall and shall expire on December 31, 2023 (the "Initial Term").

4.02 **NOTICE TO PROCEED**

4.02.1 Contractor shall begin performance under this Agreement on the date specified in a Notice to Proceed from the CPO or Director.

4.03. **RENEWALS**

4.03.1 In addition to the Director's authority more particularly set forth in Section 2.03 hereinabove, prior to the expiration of the Initial Term, the Director, in his or her sole discretion, may extend this Agreement for up to one (1) year by written notice to Contractor. The Director may exercise this right to extend this Agreement as many times as necessary so long as such extensions cumulatively do not exceed one (1) year.

4.04. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE BY CITY

- 4.04.1 The Director may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 30 days' written notice to Contractor, with a copy of the notice to the CPO. The City's right to terminate this Agreement for convenience is cumulative of all rights and remedies, which exist now or in the future.
- 4.04.2 On receiving the notice, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all services under this Agreement and cancel all existing orders and subcontracts that are chargeable to this Agreement. As soon as practicable after receiving the termination notice, Contractor shall submit an invoice showing in detail the services performed under this Agreement up to the termination date. The City shall then pay the fees to Contractor for services actually performed, but not already paid for, in the same manner as prescribed in this Agreement unless the fees exceed the allocated funds remaining under this Agreement.
- 4.04.3 RECEIPT OF PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED IS CONTRACTOR'S ONLY REMEDY FOR THE CITY'S TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE, WHICH DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A DEFAULT OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM (OTHER THAN ITS CLAIM FOR PAYMENT AS SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION), IT MAY HAVE NOW OR IN THE FUTURE FOR FINANCIAL LOSSES OR OTHER DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE CITY'S TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.

4.05. **TERMINATION FOR CAUSE BY CITY**

- 4.05.1 If Contractor defaults under this Agreement, the Director may either terminate this Agreement or allow Contractor to cure the default as provided below. The City's right to terminate this Agreement for Contractor's default is cumulative of all rights and remedies which exist now or in the future. Default by Contractor occurs if:
 - 4.05.1.1 Contractor fails to perform any of its duties under this Agreement;
 - 4.05.1.2 Contractor becomes insolvent;
 - 4.05.1.3 all or a substantial part of Contractor's assets are assigned for the benefit of its creditors; or
 - 4.05.1.4 a receiver or trustee is appointed for Contractor.
- 4.05.2 If a default occurs, the Director may, but is not obligated to, deliver a written notice to Contractor (with a copy of the notice to the CPO) describing the default and the termination date. The Director, at his or her sole option, may extend the

termination date to a later date. If the Director allows Contractor to cure the default and Contractor does so to the Director's satisfaction before the termination date, then the termination is ineffective. If Contractor does not cure the default before the termination date, then the Director may terminate this Contract on the termination date, at no further obligation of the City.

4.05.3 To effect final termination, the Director must notify Contractor in writing, with a copy of the notice to the CPO. After receiving the notice, Contractor shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue all services under this Agreement and promptly cancel all orders or subcontracts chargeable to this Agreement.

4.06. **EFFECTS OF TERMINATION**

4.06.1 Upon termination, Contractor shall immediately turn over all work in progress and final Deliverables to the Director.

ARTICLE 5. MISCELLANEOUS

5.01 **INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR**

5.01 Contractor shall perform its obligations under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as an employee of the City.

5.02 **FORCE MAJEURE**

- 5.02.1 Timely performance by both Parties is essential to this Agreement. However, neither Party is liable for reasonable delays in performing its obligations under this Agreement to the extent the delay is caused by Force Majeure that directly impacts the City or Contractor. The event of Force Majeure may permit a reasonable delay in performance but does not excuse a Party's obligations to complete performance under this Agreement. Force Majeure means: fires, interruption of utility services, pandemics or epidemics in the City, floods, hurricanes, tornadoes, ice storms and other natural disasters, explosions, war, terrorist acts against the City or Contractor, riots, court orders, and the acts of superior governmental or military authority, and which the affected Party is unable to prevent by the exercise of reasonable diligence. The term does not include any changes in general economic conditions such as inflation, interest rates, economic downturn, or other factors of general application, or an event that merely makes performance more difficult, expensive, or impractical. Force Majeure does not entitle Contractor to extra reimbursable expenses or payment.
- 5.02.2 This relief is not applicable unless the affected Party does the following:
 - 5.02.2.1 uses due diligence to remove the effects of the Force Majeure as quickly as possible and to continue performance notwithstanding the Force Majeure; and
 - 5.02.2.2 provides the other Party with prompt written notice of the cause and its anticipated effect.

- 5.02.3 The Director will review claims that a Force Majeure that directly impacts the City or Contractor has occurred and render a written decision within 14 days.
- 5.02.4 The City may perform contract functions itself or contract them out during periods of Force Majeure. Such performance is not a default or breach of this Agreement by the City.
- 5.02.5 If the Force Majeure continues for more than 7 days from the date performance is affected, the Director may terminate this Agreement by giving 7 days' written notice to Contractor. This termination is not a default or breach of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM IT MAY HAVE FOR FINANCIAL LOSSES OR OTHER DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE TERMINATION EXCEPT FOR AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE AGREEMENT UP TO THE TIME THE WORK IS HALTED DUE TO FORCE MAJEURE.
- 5.02.6 Contractor is not relieved from performing its obligations under this Agreement due to a strike or work slowdown of its employees. Contractor shall employ only fully trained and qualified personnel during a strike.

5.03 **SEVERABILITY**

5.03.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason found to be unenforceable, all other parts remain enforceable unless the result materially prejudices either Party.

5.04 **ENTIRE AGREEMENT**

5.04.1 This Agreement merges the prior negotiations and understandings of the Parties and embodies the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to this subject matter hereof. No other agreements, assurances, conditions, covenants (express or implied), or other terms of any kind exist between the Parties regarding this Agreement.

5.05 WRITTEN AMENDMENT

5.05.1 Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, this Agreement may be amended only by written instrument executed on behalf of the City (by authority of an ordinance adopted by the City Council) and Contractor. The Director is only authorized to perform the functions specifically delegated to him or her in this Agreement.

5.06 **GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE**

5.06.1 This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas and City of Houston. Venue for any disputes relating in any way to this Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris County, Texas.

5.07 **NOTICES**

5.07.1 All notices to either Party to the Agreement must be in writing and must be delivered by hand, facsimile, United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, United States Express Mail, Federal Express, UPS, or any other national overnight express delivery service. The notice must be addressed to the

Party to whom the notice is given at its address set out in Article 1 of this Agreement or other address the receiving Party has designated previously by proper notice to the sending Party. Postage or delivery charges must be paid by the Party giving the notice.

5.08 **CAPTIONS**

5.08.1 Captions contained in this Agreement are for reference only and therefore have no effect in construing this Agreement. The captions are not restrictive of the subject matter of any section in this Agreement.

5.09 **NON-WAIVER**

- 5.09.1 If either Party fails to require the other to perform a term of this Agreement, that failure does not prevent the Party from later enforcing that term and all other terms. If either Party waives the other's breach of a term, that waiver does not waive a later breach of this Agreement.
- 5.09.2 An approval by the Director, or by any other employee or agent of the City, of any part of Contractor's performance does not waive compliance with this Agreement or establish a standard of performance other than that required by this Agreement and by law. The Director is not authorized to vary the terms of this Agreement.

5.10 **INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS**

- 5.10.1 City representatives (including without limitation the Director and City Controller), and State, and Federal Government authorized representatives (collectively "Auditing Entities") may perform, or have performed (1) audits of Contractor's books and records, or (2) inspections of all places where work is undertaken in connection with this Agreement. Contractor shall keep its books and records (including without limitation any documentation required under 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart D) available for this purpose for at least (i) three (3) years after the GLO's closeout of the CDBG-DR17 program that is the subject of the GLO Harvey Contract, (ii) the time period required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 (retention requirements for records) in the event the City receives federal funds for all or a portion of this Agreement, or (iii) seven (7) years after the Agreement terminates, whichever is longer. If the books and records are located outside of Harris County, Texas, Subrecipient agrees to make them available in Harris County, Texas. This Section 5.10 does not affect the applicable statute of limitations.
- 5.10.2 Upon reasonable written notice, not less than twenty-four (24) hours, Auditing Entities have the right to perform or have performed audits and inspections.
- 5.10.3 Audits of Contractor's books, documents, papers, and records, including electronic versions, pertaining to services provided under this Agreement may include, but are not limited to:
 - 5.10.3.1 payroll and personnel records, such as salaries, benefits and bonuses;
 - 5.10.3.2 subcontractor agreements, records and invoices;
 - 5.10.3.3 any accounting or management systems, or computers or servers on which City information is stored; and
 - 5.10.3.4 all documents or files evidencing costs and underlying expenses relating to Contractor's performance.

- 5.10.4 Contractor shall provide the Auditing Entities, including without limitation, the Director, City Controller, the Texas Department of Emergency Management, the HUD Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, Inspectors General, the GLO, the Texas State Auditor's Office or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of making copies, audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts any transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- 5.10.5 Contractor shall provide the Auditing Entities, including without limitation, the Director, City Controller, the HUD Administrator, the GLO, Inspector General, the Texas State Auditor's Office or any other authorized representatives of these individuals or entities access to work sites pertaining to the work being completed.
- 5.10.6 If any audit or inspection performed by HUD, GLO, the City or any other local, state or federal entity providing funding to pay for Contractor's services under this Agreement, results in the disallowance, recapture, repayment, refund, return, and/or reimbursement of funds used by the City to pay fees and/or expenses for Contractor's services, based on Contractor's performance under this Agreement, Contractor shall repay, refund, and/or reimburse the City for all of such fees and/or expenses required to be paid by the City or in the case of a City audit, amounts requested or disallowed by the City, as unallowed, unauthorized, or otherwise inconsistent with this Agreement. Contractor shall be given a reasonable opportunity to review and dispute in writing the findings of such audit or inspection. Any adjustments or payments that must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of the Contractor's performance under the Agreement, including invoices or records, shall be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 days) from presentation of the written findings by the City to the Contractor. In no event will Contractor be responsible for disallowed, recaptured, or reimbursed amounts that the City has paid to any party other than Contractor. Each Party shall bear its own costs of any such audit.

5.11 **ENFORCEMENT**

5.11.1 The City Attorney or his or her designee may enforce all legal rights and obligations under this Agreement without further authorization. Contractor shall provide to the City Attorney all documents and records that the City Attorney requests to assist in determining Contractor's compliance with this Agreement, with the exception of those documents made confidential by federal or State law or regulation.

5.12 **AMBIGUITIES**

5.12.1 If any term of this Agreement is ambiguous, it shall not be construed for or against any Party on the basis that the Party did or did not write it.

5.13 **SURVIVAL**

5.13.1 Contractor shall remain obligated to the City under all clauses of this Agreement that expressly or by their nature extend beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the indemnity provisions.

5.14 **PUBLICITY**

5.14.1 Contractor shall make no announcement or release of information concerning this Agreement unless the release has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Director.

5.15 **RISK OF LOSS**

5.15.1 Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, risk of loss or damage for each product passes from Contractor to the City upon Acceptance by the City.

5.16 **PARTIES IN INTEREST**

5.16.1 This agreement does not bestow any rights upon any third party but binds and benefits the City and Contractor only. Except as may be specifically set forth in this Agreement and the GLO Harvey Contract (i) nothing expressed or referred to in this Agreement shall be construed to give any person, body, or legal entity, other than the City and Contractor, any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or with respect to this Agreement or any provision of this Agreement; and (ii) there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement, and this Agreement and all of its provisions are for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and Contractor.

5.17 **SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS**

5.17.1 This Agreement binds and benefits the Parties and their legal successors and permitted assigns; however, this provision does not alter the restrictions on assignment and disposal of assets set out in the following paragraph. This Agreement does not create any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City.

5.18 **BUSINESS STRUCTURE AND ASSIGNMENTS**

- 5.18.1 Contractor shall not assign this Agreement at law or otherwise or dispose of all or substantially all of its assets without the Director's prior written consent. Nothing in this clause, however, prevents the assignment of accounts receivable or the creation of a security interest under Section 9.406 of the Texas Business & Commerce Code. In the case of such an assignment, Contractor shall immediately furnish the Director and CPO with proof of the assignment and the name, telephone number, and address of the Assignee and a clear identification of the fees to be paid to the Assignee.
- 5.18.2 Contractor shall not delegate any portion of its performance under this Agreement without the Director's prior written consent.

5.19 **DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

- 5.19.1 For purposes of this Section "Project Administrator" means the person the Director designates to monitor the progress of all Parties' performance under this Agreement.
- 5.19.2 Except as may otherwise be provided by law, a dispute that (i) does not involve a

question of law; (ii) arises during the performance of this Agreement; and (iii) is not resolved between the Project Administrator and Contractor must be handled as described below:

- 5.19.2.1 The Project Administrator shall put its decision in writing and mail or otherwise furnish Contractor with a copy. Contractor may abide by the decision or may appeal the decision to the Director.
- 5.02.2.2 If Contractor desires to appeal a decision of the Project Administrator, Contractor must submit a written appeal to the Director. Contractor must file its written appeal within seven Business Days following receipt of the Project Administrator's original decision. The Director shall provide Contractor with a written response to the appeal within 14 Business Days following its receipt. The decision of the Director is final.

5.20 **REMEDIES CUMULATIVE**

5.20.1 Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, the rights and remedies contained in this Agreement are not exclusive but are cumulative of all rights and remedies that exist now or in the future. Neither Party may terminate its duties under this Agreement except in accordance with its provisions.

5.21 **CONTRACTOR DEBT**

5.21.1 IF CONTRACTOR, AT ANY TIME DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCURS A DEBT, AS THE WORD IS DEFINED IN SECTION 15-122 OF THE HOUSTON CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES, IT SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE CITY CONTROLLER IN WRITING. IF THE CITY CONTROLLER BECOMES AWARE THAT CONTRACTOR HAS INCURRED A DEBT, HE OR SHE SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY CONTRACTOR IN WRITING. IF CONTRACTOR DOES NOT PAY THE DEBT WITHIN 30 DAYS OF EITHER SUCH NOTIFICATION, THE CITY CONTROLLER MAY DEDUCT FUNDS IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE DEBT FROM ANY PAYMENTS OWED TO CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY RECOURSE THEREFOR. CONTRACTOR SHALL FILE A NEW AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP, USING THE FORM DESIGNATED BY CITY, BETWEEN FEBRUARY 1 AND MARCH 1 OF EVERY YEAR DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT.

5.22 **FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS**

5.22.1 The Parties acknowledge that City may seek reimbursement from the HUD for costs incurred under this Agreement. The Contractor shall comply with all Community Development Block Grant ("CDBG"), including CDBG-DR17 and applicable program requirements outlined in Exhibits H and H-1 and made a part hereof. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the Parties acknowledge that the Federal Government is not a party to this Agreement and is therefore not obligated to perform any actions under this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with and shall perform services in compliance with all GLO/HUD requirements outlined in this Agreement and otherwise applicable to the services performed, any subsequent audit by the GLO, HUD, or any other reviewing agency, and reimbursement, if any, from the GLO, HUD, or any other federal agency for the costs incurred under this Agreement.

5.22.2 Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with the Federal Contract Requirements for the Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control Program which is funded by CDBG programs administered by HUD.

5.23 **FLOW-THROUGH PROVISIONS**

- 5.23.1 The City is a party to the GLO Harvey Contract effective to govern this Agreement in accordance with the provisions set out in Exhibit K and Exhibit K-1 to this Agreement. Contractor shall comply with the applicable terms set out in Exhibit K and Exhibit K-1 as if it were the City, except to the extent this Agreement specifically addresses a topic also covered in Exhibit K and Exhibit K-1, in which case the terms of this Agreement shall apply. In the event Contractor believes a term or condition of the applicable GLO Harvey Contract is inapplicable, Contractor must seek clarification from the Director. The Director, in his sole but reasonable discretion, shall determine which terms are applicable to this Agreement and the services provided thereunder.
- 5.23.2 In the event the City is a recipient or subrecipient of other grant, federal, or state funds or the City otherwise uses restricted funds to pay Contractor for services or expenses provided under this Agreement, Contractor shall agree, in writing, to be bound by the same contract or grant terms and conditions, laws, and regulations as the City, to the extent relevant to Contractor's scope of work, ("Additional Flow Down Provisions"). Contractor's agreement to the Additional Flow Down Provisions must be in writing, signed by the Contractor and Director and approved by the City Attorney. Such written agreement does not require amendment of this Agreement but shall be incorporated into this Agreement as if fully referenced herein. If within a reasonable time after receipt of a written request from the Director (not to exceed 15 business days), the Parties are unable to reach a written agreement on the relevant Additional Flow Down Provisions following good faith negotiations, the Director, at his sole discretion may (i) immediately suspend Contractor from any further performance for all or certain services under this Agreement, or (ii) terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part.

5.24 **CONTRACT WORK AND SAFETY STANDARDS**.

- 5.24.1 Overtime requirements. Neither Contractor or nor any subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work under this Agreement which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- 5.24.2 Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in this section, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, the Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth this section, in the sum of \$25 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the

- standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in this section.
- 5.24.3 Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. FEMA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of the Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in this section.
- 5.24.4 Subcontracts. Contractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in this section.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

EXHIBIT "A"

DEFINITIONS

In addition to the words and terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set out below. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words used in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular include the plural. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely permissive.

- 1. "Agreement" means this contract between the Parties, including all exhibits and any written amendments authorized by City Council and Contractor.
- 2. "Business Day" means any calendar day except Saturdays, Sundays and full-day holidays for employees of the City (as designated by City Council).
- 3. "Chief Procurement Officer" ("CPO") means the Chief Procurement Officer of the City of Houston, as set forth in Chapter 15 of the Houston Code of Ordinances.
- 4. "City" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and permitted assigns.
- 5. "City Attorney" means the City Attorney of the City or any person designated by the City Attorney to perform one or more of the duties of the City Attorney under this Agreement.
- 6. "City Data" means and includes any one or more of the following: Confidential Information or information or services to be provided under the Scope of Services described in Exhibit "B" of this Agreement; Documents or information that the City or persons acting on the City's behalf provides, makes available to, or transmits to Contractor on the City's behalf; and Documents or information Contractor receives, obtains, has access to, modifies, creates, develops, analyzes, uses for modeling or other services under this Agreement or otherwise prepares in connection with this Agreement.
- 7. "Confidential Information" means all non-public Documents or information of a Party to this Agreement, including without limitation any such Documents or information that is identified as or would be reasonably understood to be confidential, proprietary, and/or sensitive.
- 8. "Contractor" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and assigns.
- 9. "Contractor Data" means any Confidential Information or information or Documents that the Contractor or persons acting on the Contractor's behalf provides, makes available to, or transmits to the City under this Agreement which is (1) information or non-City Data that Contractor possessed prior to the date of this Agreement, (2) information that Contractor develops independently without use of any of the information provided by the City, and (3) information Contractor rightfully receives from a third party free to make such disclosure without breach of any legal obligation.
- 10. "Countersignature Date" means the date shown as the date countersigned on the signature page of this Agreement.
- 11. "Deliverables" means those items that Contractor is to deliver to the Director pursuant to the Scope of Services assigned to the Contractor under Exhibit "B".

- 12. "Director" means the Deputy Director of the City of Houston Office of Emergency Management or such other person as he or she designates.
- 13. "Disclosing Party" means a Party who discloses, supplies, or provides Confidential Information to another Party or whose Confidential Information is otherwise in the possession, custody, or control of another Party.
- 14. "Documents" means all original and non-identical copy of any written, typed, or printed matter, or electronically stored information, of any kind or description. The word "documents" includes, but is not limited to, the following: agendas, analyses, audio or video recordings, bulletins, charts, circulars, communications (including any interoffice, social media, and other communications), computations, computer programs, copies, correspondence, data, databases, data compilations, data prototypes, designs, diagrams, diskettes, documents, drafts, drawings, electronic mail (email), electronically stored information, exhibits, facsimiles, forms, graphs, guides, images, information, inventions, items, letters, logs, manuals, maps, materials, memoranda, metadata, microfilm, minutes or meeting minutes, models, notes, notations, notebooks, operating manuals, original tracings of all drawings and plans, other graphic matter (however produced or reproduced), pamphlets, photographs (including any digital or film photographs), plans, printouts, policies, procedures, records, recordings (including any audio, video, digital, film, tape, and other recordings), reports, social media communications, software, specifications, tabulations, telegrams, underlying data, works, worksheets, work products, writings, and any other writings or recordings of any type or nature (and any revisions, modifications, or improvements to them).
- 15. "Federal Government" means the United States Federal Government, including, but not limited to any of the agencies or departments that are or may provide funding for the services to be completed under this Agreement, such as the Office of the Comptroller General of the United States, the Government Accountability Office, the Office of the Inspector General, or any authorized representative of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development Department or the United States Government.
- 16. "GLO Harvey Contract" means the subrecipient agreement between the City and the GLO, GLO Contract No. 19-147-001-B489, Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program Projects Non-Research & Development Harvey Round 1 Funding ("2019 Subrecipient Agreement") countersigned by the City Controller on January 4, 2019 and approved by City of Houston Ordinance No. 2019-10 and No. 2019-904, and any amendments thereto, which contract is attached as Exhibit K; and GLO Contract No. 21-134-000-C788, Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program Non-Research & Development Hurricane Harvey Funding ("2021 Subrecipient Agreement") countersigned by the City Controller on February 9, 2021 and approved by City of Houston Ordinance No. 2021-93, and any amendments thereto, which contract is attached as Exhibit K-1. On the date HUD approves the State of Texas Action Plan Amendment 8 (as such plan is described in the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement), the 2019 Subrecipient Agreement shall automatically terminate, and the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement will become effective to govern this Agreement from that date forward.
- 17. "HCDD" means the City of Houston Housing and Community Development Department.
- 18. "Notice to Proceed" means a written communication from the Director or the CPO to Contractor instructing Contractor to begin performance.

- 19. "Party" or "Parties" means one or all of the entities set out in the Preamble who are bound by this Agreement.
- 20. "Proprietary Rights" means copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade secrets, and any other proprietary rights therein, any one or more of which is collectively referred to in this Agreement as Proprietary Rights.
- 21. "Receiving Party" means a Party who receives, retains, or accepts Confidential Information from another Party or is otherwise in the possession, custody, or control of Confidential Information from another Party.
- 22. "Task Order" means an individual services assignment with a defined scope of services, budget and schedule issued by the Director under this Agreement.
- 23. "Work" is the entire completed project, including all labor, materials, equipment and services provided in connection with planning services under the scope of services of this Agreement.
- 24. "Work Products" means all Documents or Information that the City and/or Contractor creates, develops, modifies, prepares, produces, or writes under, pursuant to, or in connection with this Agreement. "Work Products" does not mean or include software, source code, or object code.

EXHIBIT "B"

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant may provide planning services in support of the Office of Emergency Management. The City shall initiate each Task Order by providing the Consultant(s) with a written task order pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Consultant(s) will submit an electronic, written work plan and budget, including a specified timeframe in which the requirements of each task order are to be completed.

1.0 SCOPE OF WORK

- **1.1** Plan Development
 - 1.1.1 Gather data and conduct analyses on various aspects of a target area or subject as directed by the City, including, but not limited to, demographics, land use, housing characteristics, building stock and built environment, business and employment, transportation and connectivity, urban/regional context, open space, institutions and community facilities, and wayfinding.
 - 1.1.2 Review and assess existing plans, policies/directives, standard operating guides, regulations, and/or Department responsibilities to assess opportunities for policy or implementation improvements, including the incorporation of current national standards (e.g., the Emergency Management Accreditation Program) and best practices nationwide. OEM is pursuing the Emergency Management Accreditation Program designation and expects the consultant to support compliance with the current (2019) EMAP standards.
 - 1.1.3 Assist with goal setting and strategy development
 - **1.1.3.1** Coordinate with other planning partners to align regional and other goals;
 - **1.1.3.2** Identify required stakeholders in the public/private sector that are critical to the implementation of a plan or project;
 - **1.1.3.3** Identify options for community benefit and potential community/institutional and corporate/philanthropic benefits;
 - **1.1.3.4** Create placemaking strategies including ability to provide strategic implementation pilot projects to demonstrate principles included in any planning strategy; and
 - **1.1.3.5** Integrate various plans, strategies, data, and/or input to identify and develop actions, measures of success, goals, and monitoring frameworks for plans, programs, and projects.
 - **1.1.4** Assemble and synthesize work completed for any task and prepare end-product maps, studies, reports, plans, or strategies, as directed by the City.
 - **1.1.5** Incorporate Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) into planning documents.

- Develop and create an emergency management diversity framework designed to better reflect and connect with the diverse communities within Houston and adjacent jurisdictions.
- **1.1.6** Incorporate Disability and Access and Functional Needs (DAFN) into planning documents. Develop a process for integration of DAFN through the entire spectrum of emergency management including review of planning requirements for local, state, county, federal, and nationwide best practices.
- 1.1.7 Evaluate climate risk and disproportionate impact on vulnerable populations to develop a process for assessing and integrating climate risk and adaptation, social vulnerability, and environmental justice to equitably address the impacts of climate risk.
- **1.2** Community and stakeholder outreach and engagement:
 - **1.2.1** Create plans for outreach to and engagement with various targeted segments of the community, including but not limited to faith-based organizations, community organizations, NGLs, and the private sector.
 - **1.2.2** Conduct a participatory stakeholder and community engagement process to obtain input and buy-in from the community on planning areas, mitigation plan update, and/or emergency plan conversion.
 - **1.2.3** Prepare materials and presentations for public distribution, which may include Power Point presentations, web content, display boards, posters/flyers, brochures, and other materials as needed.
 - **1.2.4** Create and conduct a variety of public participation and feedback methods and tools, including surveys, to gather relevant information from the community and/or stakeholders to inform planning documents and program strategies.
 - **1.2.5** Engage a variety of people, including those with limited English proficiency, through various types of activities and outreach methods.
 - **1.2.6** Document events and outreach and provide summary information from engagement activities.
- 1.3 Operational and environmental assessments:
 - **1.3.1** Provide updated or new descriptions of the natural and human-caused hazards affecting each participating jurisdiction, as needed. Analyze how hazards vary across jurisdictions.
 - **1.3.2** Develop a parcel-level inventory of vulnerable structures.
 - **1.3.3** Generate graphics and Geographic Information System (GIS) based maps that will illustrate the extent and location of each hazard, as well as other available information, within the defined planning area.
 - **1.3.4** Utilize FEMA's Hazus, RiskMAP products (and/or other appropriate software)

- to generate level 2 vulnerability assessments for hurricane and flood hazards.
- **1.3.5** Document the analysis and findings in a manner and format that planners, policy makers and community members can easily decipher.
- **1.3.6** Develop a capability assessment analysis to identify and assess participation by department and partner agencies involved.
- **1.3.7** Develop strategies for each specific area and recommendations for planning documents.
- **1.4** Exercise and training development:
 - **1.4.1** Develop Exercise Toolkits and strategic playbooks with scenarios that are designed to help the City identify strengths and weaknesses in areas such as: hazard, incident, and support annexes, collaboration and communication, continuity of operations plans, emergency operations, and facilities.
 - 1.4.2 Analyze and incorporate data from the THIRA (Threat Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment), HIRA (Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment), and Consequence Analysis to develop exercise toolkits. These toolkits will be based on scenarios that are realistic and tied to the vulnerabilities, threats and hazards affecting Houston/region and encompass the Integrated Preparedness Plan. The toolkits will help inform city-wide planning initiatives and facilitate the creation of a Comprehensive Emergency Management Program. Moreover, these tools will be used in the development and delivery of planning, training, exercise, and other professional services. The training specifically, needs to be in compliance with national standards for exercise conduct and evaluation (Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program HSEEP), the PADDIE (Planning, Analysis, Design, Development, Implementation and Evaluation) model and the Emergency Management Accreditation Program (EMAP) in order to adapt and evolve with the current threat landscape.
 - 1.4.3 Provide trainings for stakeholders and community members about emergency planning documents, which may include particular topics related to enhancing the City's capacity to address capability gaps in support of hazard, incident and support annexes.
 - 1.4.4 Engage stakeholder groups within the community, to include disproportionately impacted individuals, service providers, the business community, faith-based organizations, non-profit organizations, and community partners. Train these stakeholder groups on EOC operations and develop activation plans with them prior to an event. These activation plans should articulate what role a particular entity will assume in an incident response, and how the various entities will interface with one another.

2.0 Roles and Responsibilities

The Project Administrator, the person designated by the Deputy Director of the Office of Emergency Management shall monitor the progress of all parties' performance under

this Agreement. The Project Administrator will serve as the primary point of contact between the City and the Contractor.

2.1 Contractor:

- a) Contractor shall perform all services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances (the "Standard of Care").
- b) Contractor agrees that all Deliverables it completes under this Agreement are performed consistent with the Standard of Care.
- c) Contractor shall include Project Administrator, as the primary point of contact between the City and the Contractor, with respect to all communications, discussions, and issues pertaining to the project, unless otherwise directed by the Project Administrator, the Director of the Office of Emergency Management, or the Director of HCDD.
 - i. Contractor shall promptly notify the City of any issues, delays, changes in scope, or additional costs or liabilities by providing written notice to the Project Administrator.

2.2. City:

The City acknowledges that the Contractor's performance of the services under the Agreement and the fees charged are dependent on City's timely and effective completion of the City's duties under the Agreement. As the primary point of contact between the City and the Contractor, the Project Administrator's responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a) The Project Administrator shall provide Contractor with reliable, accurate and complete information. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information furnished by the City. The Contractor shall provide prompt written notice to the City if the Contractor becomes aware of any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in such services or information
- b) The Project Administrator shall serve as the primary liaison between the Contractor and the City's decision makers, subject matter experts, and management to provide timely decisions and approvals.
- c) The Project Administrator shall have skills commensurate with their role with respect to such services to be provided and the overall scope of the project.
- d) The Project Administrator shall monitor and evaluate whether:
 - Contractor performs all services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances; and

- ii. All Deliverables that Contractor completes under this Agreement meet the Standard of Care
- e) If the Project Administrator, in their sole discretion, determines that the Contractor submits Deliverables that do not meet specifications or standards, fails to complete Deliverables timely, or otherwise fails to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the Project Administrator shall notify Contractor in writing as provided in Article 5.19 and may require Contractor, at its sole expense, to:
 - Enhance or replace substandard Deliverables with Deliverables that do meet or exceed the specifications and standards set forth in the Agreement;
 - ii. Refund payment for substandard Deliverables and accept the return of such Deliverables; and
 - iii. Take necessary action so that future performance and Deliverables meet the specifications and standards set forth in the Agreement.

3.0 Invoice and Payment

All reports, Deliverables, and other critical documentation outlined in this Agreement must be timely submitted via e-mail to the Project Administrator. Funds associated with this Agreement shall be disbursed to the Contractor upon completion and approval by the City of the Deliverables, within the total amounts outlined in the approved Work Plan.

The Contractor shall submit Deliverables at least on a monthly basis or as determined in the Work Plan, including but not limited to monthly progress reports and monthly invoices, to the Project Administrator no later than five (5) business days after the last day of each month. Upon approval by the Project Administrator, HCDD will issue payment.

The Contractor shall submit invoices to the City in accordance with Article 3 of the Agreement. The City shall ensure that all Deliverables, duties, and/or responsibilities outlined and scheduled in this Agreement are completed in conformance with the terms of the Agreement and this Exhibit prior to disbursement of funds. The City may request, in addition to an invoice detailing the work performed, documentation proving completion of the applicable Deliverables, duties, and/or responsibilities.

At a minimum, invoices must:

- a) Be submitted by email to the Project Administrator, Vlad.Ibarra@houstontx.gov and copied to <u>Jessica.Caraway@houstontx.gov</u> or as otherwise specified in writing or potentially designated by the Director;
- b) List the current amount being billed;
- c) List the cumulative deliverables to-date and amount billed previously;
- d) List the balance remaining to be billed; and

e) Be supported by documentation, as applicable

D. Monthly Reporting

Monthly progress reports are due to the Project Administrator outlining the progress made during the month, identifying any deliverables completed and other milestones met.

E. Change to Work or Change Order

Material changes to Exhibit "B" and task order via an amendment thereto, as appropriate, including but not limited to the following circumstances:

- Potential extension of project period beyond that stipulated in this Agreement
- Substantial change to tasks or deliverables other than that stipulated in this Agreement

Changes may be made only by written agreement between the City and the Contractor. The Project Administrator or Director will have the final decision-making authority. Notwithstanding the preceding, the Project Administrator may approve extensions to Deliverable due dates as originally set forth in the applicable task order.

F. <u>Dispute Resolution</u>

If the Contractor disputes a determination by the Project Administrator under Section B.2.e above, the Contractor may appeal said determination to the Director, as set forth in Article 5.19 of the Agreement.

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SAMPLE TASK ORDER

Agreement Number: Task Order Number:
This Task Order is established between City of Houston ("City") and ("Firm"). This Task Order is entered into pursuant to and incorporates by reference all the terms of the Agreement for Professional Planning Services, with the City effective ("Agreement"). In the event the terms of this Task Order are inconsistent or conflict with the Agreement, the Agreement shall control. This Task Order is to be identified from other task orders by the number of this Task Order. The services authorized under this Task Order are described below:
Services to be Performed/Scope of Services or Work
TBD
Deliverables (if any)
TBD
<u>Assumptions</u>
TBD
Personnel and Rates
Personnel Name and Title Rate

Personnel Name and Title	Rate
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$
	\$

Reimbursable Expenses, if applicable

TBD

Commencement Date and Termination Date or Termination Provisions

TBD

Estimated Fees

The method of calculating fees under this Task Order shall be (e.g. flat fee, hourly billing, blended rates, fixed rates per phase, etc.). The estimated fees for this Task Order is <u>\$TBD</u>.

Maximum Fee

Firm represents that all of the servex expenses, not to exceed \$ shall have no obligation to pay herein.	00, which is funded by the at	tached service release order. City
MWBE Goal under this Task Ord	<u>ler</u> – TBD	
Accepted and Agreed to by: Deputy Director of the Office of Em	nergency Management: Date:	_
Accepted and Agreed to by:		
By: Name: Title:	Date:	<u> </u>

EXHIBIT "B-2"

TASK ORDER INSTRUCTIONS

Steps:

- 1. Office of Emergency Management's Project Administrator completes general information on Task Order Form, which includes:
 - a. City Department Name
 - b. Task Order Description
 - c. Contract No.
 - d. Purchase Order No.
 - e. Project or Task Start and End Dates
 - f. Task Order Cost and applicable fees
- 2. Task Order Approval Form is sent to Consultant.
- 3. Consultant provides detailed proposal to OEM Deputy Director including tasks to be performed, deliverables, personnel to be assigned, schedule for performance of services, price proposal.
- 4. Consultant completes the Task Order Approval Form:
 - a. Project Start and End Dates
 - b. Estimated Task Order Cost and corresponding hourly fees, as set out in Exhibit A- 1 of the Agreement.
 - c. Scope of Services
 - d. Personnel Assigned and number of hours worked
- 5. Consultant signs Task Order and returns it with a proposal to OEM Deputy Director or his representative.
- 6. OEM Department reviews and accepts or rejects proposal.
- 7. If the proposal is accepted, the OEM Deputy Director or his representative provides a copy of the accepted Task Order to the Consultant to commence Task.
- 8. City will make payment to Consultant upon completion of the project or task, or based on the milestones agreed to by both parties and accepted by the OEM Deputy Director or designee.

EXHIBIT "B-3"

FEE SCHEDULE

Role	Hourly Rate
Project Executive/Principal	\$225.00
Editor/Writer	\$85.50
GIS Specialist/Analyst II	\$132.00
GIS Specialist/Analyst I	\$113.00
Graphic Designer/Technical Specialist II	\$103.00
Graphic Designer/ Technical Specialist I	\$83.00
Hazard Mitigation Planner IV	\$154.00
Hazard Mitigation Planner III	\$142.00
Hazard Mitigation Planner II	\$129.50
Hazard Mitigation Planner I	\$100.00
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator IV	\$154.00
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator III	\$142.00
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator II	\$129.50
Training and Exercise Specialist/Facilitator I	\$100.00
Project Manager	\$178.00
Junior Project Manager	\$166.50
Public Affairs/Communications Specialist	\$122.50
Research Analyst/Specialist	\$100.00
Senior Subject Matter Expert - Disability, Function and Access Needs	\$269.50
Subject Matter Expert - Disability, Function and Access Needs	\$220.50
Senior Subject Matter Expert - Diversity, Inclusion, and Equity	\$269.50
Subject Matter Expert – Diversity, Inclusion, and Equity	\$220.50
Senior Subject Matter Expert - Health and Medical	\$269.50
Subject Matter Expert - Health and Medical	\$220.50
Overall profit percentage for task order project work*:	10%

EXHIBIT "C"

DRUG POLICY COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

l,		
(Name	e)	(Title)
as an owner c	or officer of	(Contractor)
		(Name of Company)
contracts it m that the Contr to designate a	ay enter into with the City of Fractor is aware of and by the tim	pect to its bid, offer or performance of any and all louston; and that by making this Agreement, I affirm the the contract is awarded will be bound by and agree ions for company employee positions, and to comply ity issues a notice to proceed:
1.	testing procedures for the C established by the Mayor's A	ritten Drug Free Workplace Policy and related drug Contractor that meet the criteria and requirements Amended Policy on Drug Detection and Deterrence Mayor's Drug Detection and Deterrence Procedures der No. 1-31).
2.		urine samples consistent with Health and Human nd a HHS certified drug testing laboratory to perform
3.		drug tests given and the results; and upon request vide confirmation of such testing and results.
4.	Submit semi-annual Drug Pol	icy Compliance Declarations.
		mpliance with the Mayor's Drug Policy and Executive contract with the City of Houston.
declarations a Order No. 1-3	and/or documentation in compl	ailure to comply with or failure to timely submit iance with the Mayor's Drug Policy and/or Executive of the contract with the City and may result in non-City of Houston.
Date		Contractor Name
		Signature

Title

EXHIBIT "D"

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF NO SAFETY IMPACT POSITIONS IN PERFORMANCE OF A CITY CONTRACT

1.	
(Name)	(Title)
as an owner or officer of	(Contractor (Name of Company)
•	r with respect to its bid, and hereby certify that Contractor has ns, as defined in §5.18 of Executive Order No. 1-31, that will
,	(Project)
	nat it shall immediately notify the City of Houston Director of act positions are established to provide services in performing
(Date)	(Typed or Printed Name)
	(Signature)
	(Title)

EXHIBIT "E"

DRUG POLICY COMPLIANCE DECLARATION

l,					as	s an owner or
officer of	(Name)	(Print/Type) (Contract lowing declarations:	(Title) tor) (Name of Co	mpany), have pe	ersonal knowle	edge and full
authority to r	make the foll	owing declarations:				
This reportin	g period cov	ers the preceding 6 m	onths from	to	_	,
Initials	Policy me	Drug Free Workplace eets the criteria establ errence (Mayor's Polic	lished by the May			
Initials	Drug Det	Irug testing procedure tection and Deterrence es have been notified	e Procedures for	Contractors, Exe		
Initials		n/testing has been co (HHS) guidelines.	onducted in com	pliance with fed	leral Health a	and Human
Initials	performir	ate safety impact pong on the City of House during this reporting p	ton contract. The			
Initials	From	[Start date] to	[End date]	the following tes	t has occurred	d:
			<u>Random</u>	Reasonable Suspicion	Post <u>Accident</u>	<u>Total</u>
Number E	Employees To	ested				
Number E	Employees P	ositive				
Percent E	mployees Po	ositive				
Initials		ployee who tested po nt with the Mayor's Po				ity worksite
Initials		hat falsification or fail ed guidelines will be c			mely in accor	dance with
		of perjury that the affiri personal knowledge			mation contai	ned in this
(Date)			(Type	d or Printed Nam	 ne)	
			(Signa	ature)		
			(Title)			

EXHIBIT "F"

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

- 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the SUBRECIPIENT (referred to herein as the "prospective participant") is providing the certification set out below.
- 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 3. The prospective participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- 4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
- 5. The prospective participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6. The prospective participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- Covered Transaction," without modification, in all covered transactions and in all solicitations for covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge

- and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AN VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION—COVERED TRANSACTIONS

- (1) The prospective participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- (2) Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Contractor Company Name	Contract Number	
Name		
Title		
Signature	 Date	

EXHIBIT "G"

ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Subrecipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

- 1) No Federal appropriated funds appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any City contract, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontractors, subgrants, and Agreements under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned Subrecipient, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, Subrecipient understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Contractor Name:	
President:	
Name of Authorized Official:	
Signature:	
Date:	

EXHIBIT "H"

HURRICANE HARVEY CDBG-DR REQUIREMENTS NON-EXCLUSIVE LIST OF APPLICABLE LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND RULES

If applicable to a Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery ("CDBG-DR") funded project, Subrecipient must be in compliance with the following laws, rules, and regulations; and any other state, federal, or local laws, rules, and regulations as may become applicable throughout the term of the Agreement, and Subrecipient acknowledges that this list may not include all such applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

Subrecipient is deemed to have read and understands the requirements of each of the following, if applicable to the Project under this Agreement:

GENERALLY

Texas General Land Office ("GLO") Contract No. 19-147-001-B489 and any amendments thereto ("2019 Subrecipient Agreement");

GLO Contract No. 21-134-000-C788 ("2021 Subrecipient Agreement") On the date the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") approves Action Plan Amendment 8 (as such plan is described in the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement), the City's 2019 Subrecipient Agreement shall automatically terminate and the 2021 Subrecipient Agreement will become effective to govern this Agreement from that date forward;

Continuing Appropriations Act, 2018 and Supplemental Appropriations for Disaster Relief Requirements Act, 2017 (Public Law 115-56);

The Further Additional Supplemental Appropriations for Disaster Relief Requirements Act, 2018 (Public Law 115-123):

The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (12 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq.);

The United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o)(13) (2016) and related provisions governing Public Housing Authority project-based assistance, and implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 983 (2016);

Cash Management Improvement Act regulations (31 C.F.R. Part 205);

Community Development Block Grants (24 C.F.R. Part 570);

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200);

The State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery: Hurricane Harvey – Round 1 ("Action Plan"), as amended from time to time (available at: https://recovery.texas.gov/action-

plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html);

The Texas General Land Office Disaster Recovery Implementation Manual (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/local-government/hud-requirements-reports/implementation-manual/index.html);

The Texas General Land Office Hurricane Harvey Disaster Recovery Housing Guidelines, as amended (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/local-government/hud-requirements-reports/housing-guidelines/index.html);

City of Houston CDBG-DR program Guidelines, as amended (available at https://recovery.houstontx.gov/hud-requirements-guidelines/; and State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery: Hurricane Harvey – Round 1 (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/action-plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html).

CIVIL RIGHTS

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C. § 2000d *et seq.*); 24 C.F.R. Part I, "Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Housing and Urban Development - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964";

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq.);

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, "The Fair Housing Act of 1968" (42 U.S.C. § 3601, et seq.), as amended;

Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259, and 24 C.F.R. Part 107, "Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity in Housing under Executive Order 11063"; The failure or refusal of Subrecipient to comply with the requirements of Executive Order 11063 or 24 C.F.R. Part 107 shall be a proper basis for the imposition of sanctions specified in 24 C.F.R. 107.60;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq.); and

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794.) and

"Nondiscrimination Based on Handicap in Federally-Assisted Programs and Activities of the Department of Housing and Urban Development", 24 C.F.R. Part 8.

By signing this Agreement, Subrecipient understands and agrees that the activities funded shall be performed in accordance with 24 C.F.R. Part 8; and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 4151, *et seq.*), including the use of a telecommunications device for deaf persons (TDDs) or equally effective communication system.

LABOR STANDARDS

The Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (originally, 40 U.S.C. §§ 276a-276a-5 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3148); 29 C.F.R. Part 5;

The Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (originally, 18 U.S.C. § 874 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. § 3145): 29 C.F.R. Part 3;

Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (originally, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327A and 330 and re-codified at 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708);

Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (Also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Agreements Subject to the Agreement Work Hours and Safety Standards Act) (29 C.F.R. Part 5); and

Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended; and

Department of Labor Regulations at 29 C.F.R. Parts 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7.

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. § 1701u): 24 C.F.R. §§ 135.3(a)(2) and (a)(3);

The Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. § 4212);

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1688); and

Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended.

GRANT AND AUDIT STANDARDS

Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 7501;

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200);

Uniform Grant and Contract Management Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 783) and the Uniform Grant Management Standards, issued by Governor's Office of Budget and Planning; and

Title 1 Texas Administrative Code § 5.167(c).

LEAD-BASED PAINT

Section 302 of the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. § 4831(b)).

HISTORIC PROPERTIES

The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 U.S.C. § 470, et seq.), particularly sections 106 and 110 (16 U.S.C. §§ 470 and 470h-2), except as provided in §58.17

for Section 17 projects;

Executive Order 11593, Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment, May 13, 1971 (36 FR 8921), 3 C.F.R., 1971-1975 Comp., p. 559, particularly section 2(c);

Federal historic preservation regulations as follows: 36 C.F.R. Part 800 with respect to HUD programs; and

The Reservoir Salvage Act of 1960, as amended by the Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. § 469, et seq.), particularly section 3 (16 U.S.C. § 469a-1).

ENVIRONMENTAL LAW AND AUTHORITIES

Environmental Review Procedures for Recipients assuming HUD Environmental Responsibilities (24 C.F.R. Part 58, as amended);

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4347); and

Council for Environmental Quality Regulations for Implementing NEPA (40 C.F.R. Parts 1500-1508).

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND WETLAND PROTECTION

Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26951), 3 C.F.R., 1977 Comp., p. 117, as interpreted in HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 55, particularly Section 2(a) of the Order (For an explanation of the relationship between the decision-making process in 24 C.F.R. Part 55 and this part, see § 55.10.); and

Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26961), 3 C.F.R., 1977 Comp., p. 121 particularly Sections 2 and 5.

COASTAL ZONE MANAGEMENT

The Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. § 1451, et seq.), as amended, particularly sections 307(c) and (d) (16 U.S.C. § 1456(c) and (d)).

SOLE SOURCE AQUIFERS

The Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. §§ 201, 300(f), et seq., and 21 U.S.C. § 349) as amended; particularly section 1424(e)(42 U.S.C. § 300h-3(e)); and

Sole Source Aquifers (Environmental Protection Agency-40 C.F.R. part 149.).

ENDANGERED SPECIES

The Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. § 1531, et seq.) as amended, particularly section 7 (16 U.S.C. § 1536).

WILD AND SCENIC RIVERS

The Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. § 1271, et seq.) as amended, particularly

sections 7(b) and (c) (16 U.S.C. § 1278(b) and (c)).

AIR QUALITY

The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq.) as amended, particularly sections 176(c) and (d) (42 U.S.C. §7506(c) and (d)).

Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans (Environmental Protection Agency-40 C.F.R. Parts 6, 51, and 93).

FARMLAND PROTECTION

Farmland Protection Policy Act of 1981 (7 U.S.C. § 4201, et seq.) particularly sections 1540(b) and 1541 (7 U.S.C. §§ 4201(b) and 4202); and

Farmland Protection Policy (Department of Agriculture-7 C.F.R. part 658).

HUD ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS

Applicable criteria and standards specified in HUD environmental regulations (24 C.F.R. Part 51) (other than the runway clear zone and clear zone notification requirement in 24 C.F.R. § 51.303(a)(3); and

HUD Notice 79-33, Policy Guidance to Address the Problems Posed by Toxic Chemicals and Radioactive Materials, September 10, 1979.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE

Executive Order 12898 of February 11, 1994—Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, (59 FR 7629), 3 C.F.R., 1994 Comp. p. 859.

Environmental Review Procedures for Entities Assuming HUD Environmental Responsibilities (24 C.F.R. Part 58).

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

Use of debarred, suspended, or ineligible Contractors or subrecipients (24 C.F.R. § 570.609);

General HUD Program Requirements; Waivers (24 C.F.R. Part 5);

Suspension and Debarment (2 C.F.R. § 200.213); and

Non-procurement Suspension and Debarment (2 C.F.R. Part 2424).

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Chapter 522, Texas Government Code, the Texas Public Information Act, unless a valid exception exists, and Chapter 2306 of the Texas Government Code.

BROADBAND REQUIREMENTS

Any new construction or substantial rehabilitation, as defined by 24 C.F.R § 5.100, of a buildering with more than four (4) rental units must include installation of broadband infrastructure. For the purposes of this program, broadband service can either be hardwired or wireless, but it must be provided and 25 Mbps down and 3 Mbps up.

ACQUISITION / RELOCATION

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. § 4601, et seq.), 24 C.F.R. Part 42, 24 C.F.R. § 570.606 and 49 C.F.R. Part 24 (URA), as modified by waivers at 83 Fed. Reg. 5844;

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended by 24 C.F.R. § 42 and as modified by waivers at 83 Fed. Reg. 5844;

The Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act of 2009; and

City of Houston Housing and Community Development Department's Residential Anti-Displacement Policy, as the same may be amended (available at https://recovery.texas.gov/files/housing-guidelines-requirements-reports/residential-anti-displacement-and-relocation-assistance-plan.pdf).

FAITH-BASED ACTIVITIES

Executive Order 13279 of December 12, 2002 - Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations, (67 FR 77141).

CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794 *et seq.*) and regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder, including without limitation 24 C.F.R. Part 8;

Fair Housing Act and regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder, including without limitation 24 C.F.R. Part 100;

24 C.F.R. §§ 982-401 (Section 8 Housing Quality Standards for Existing Housing);

The requirements of 24 C.F.R. § 570.614, which applies the standards of the Architectural Barriers Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4151-4157) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 155, 201, 218 and 225) to CDBG-funded activities;

Green Building Standards at 83 Fed. Reg. 5844;

Texas Architectural Barriers Act, Article 9102, Tex. Civ. Stat. Ann. (1994) and the regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder;

Chapter 10, Subsection 60 of the Texas Administrative Code and the regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder; and

City of Houston's Minimum Property Standards, as amended from time to time.

APPRAISAL 49 C.F.R. § 24.2(a)(3) and 49 C.F.R. § 24.103.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EXHIBIT "H-1"

FEDERAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

All references to "Contractor" in this Exhibit shall apply to any contractor, or subcontractor performing work on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to the foregoing Agreement/Contract. The following Federal Contract Requirements will generally apply to all Contractors. Also see 2 CFR Part 200; applicable federal program requirements at 24 CFR Part 570 (CDBG), 24 CFR Part 92 (HOME), 24 CFR Part 574 (HOPWA), 24 CFR Part 576 (Emergency Solutions Grant); and applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to other programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD").

SECTION 1 <u>Public Law 88-352 and Public Law 90-284; Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing;</u> Executive Order 11063

- A. The Contractor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352 42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.) ("Title VI") and with Title 24 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 1, which implements Title VI. In accordance with Title VI, no person in the United States shall, on the basis of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Contractor receives federal financial assistance. The Contractor will immediately take any measures necessary to comply with Title VI. If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the aid of federal financial assistance, this clause shall obligate the owner, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, to comply with the requirements and restrictions contained in this clause for the period during which the real property or structure is used for a purpose for which the federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits.
- B. The Contractor shall comply with Public Law 90-284, which refers to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, also known as the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. §3601 et seq.), which provides that it is the policy of the United States to provide, within constitutional limitations, for fair housing throughout the United States and prohibits any person from discriminating in the sale of rental of housing, the financing of housing, or the provision of brokerage services, including otherwise making unavailable or denying a dwelling to any person, because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin. In accordance with the Fair Housing Act, the Secretary of HUD requires that grantees administer all programs and activities related to housing and urban development in a manner to affirmatively further the policies of the Fair Housing Act. Furthermore, in accordance with section 104(b)(2) of the Act, for each community receiving a grant, the certification that the grantee will affirmatively further fair housing shall specifically require the grantee to take meaningful actions to further the goals identified in the grantee's AFH conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR §5.150 through 5.180 and take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing.
 - C. Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259 (3 CFR §1959-1963)

Com., p. 652; 3 CFR §1980 Comp., p 307) (Equal Opportunity in Housing), and implementing regulations in 24 CFR Part 107, as applicable.

SECTION 2 Non-Discrimination in Programs and Activities

The Contractor shall comply with the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and implementing federal regulations, **42 U.S.C. §6101 et seq.**, issued pursuant to the Act. Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act, or with respect to an otherwise qualified handicapped individual as provided in Chapter 126 of Title 42 and chapter 5 of Title 47 shall also apply to any Federal program or activity. (Also see 29 U.S.C.A. §794)

SECTION 3 National Flood Insurance Program

- A. If applicable, this Agreement is subject to the requirements of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) for areas identified by HUD as having special flood hazards. The use of any funds provided for acquisition or construction in identified areas shall be subject to the Mandatory Purchase of Flood Insurance requirements of section 102(a) of said act.
- B. Any contract or agreement for the sale, lease, or other transfer of land acquired, cleared, or improved with assistance provided under this Agreement shall contain, if the land is located in an area identified by HUD as having a special flood hazard, provisions which obligate the transferee and its successors or assigns to obtain and maintain, during the life of the project, flood insurance as required under section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended. These provisions shall be required notwithstanding the fact that the construction on the land is not itself funded with funds provided under this Agreement.

SECTION 4 <u>Displacement, Relocation, Acquisition and Replacement of Housing</u>

Contractor understands that projects funded hereunder may be subject to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) (42 U.S.C. §4601-4655), as applicable; and that individuals or businesses that are required to move from real property, permanently or involuntarily as a direct result of rehabilitation, demolition, or acquisition for the project assisted hereunder must be compensated pursuant to the URA.

SECTION 5 Employment and Contracting Opportunities

A. Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11375,11478, 12086, and 12107 (Equal Employment Opportunity)

The Contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion sex, or national origin. Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure applicants are employed, and employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the City setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (3) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the City, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (4) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor set forth at 41 CFR Part 60.
- (5) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (6) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, as amended, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The Contractor will include provisions similar to paragraph 1 through 7 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Labor, issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, so that such provisions will be binding upon subcontractors or vendors. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the City may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: PROVIDED, however, that in the event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the City, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

B. Section 3 of The Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968

- (1) The work to be performed under this Agreement is on a project assisted under a program providing federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, (12 U.S.C. §1701u, "Section 3") and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135 apply to the Agreement. Under Section 3, to the greatest extent feasible, for any contract award in excess of \$100,000, the Contractor shall give opportunities for training and employment to lower-income residents of the City and shall award contracts for work in connection with the project to business concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the City.
- (2) The Contractor will comply with the provisions of Section 3, and all applicable rules and orders of HUD issued thereunder prior to the execution of the Agreement. The Contractor certifies and agrees that there is no contractual or other disability which would prevent compliance with these requirements.
- (3) The Contractor shall send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.
- (4) The Contractor will include or have included a Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project. The Contractor shall, at the direction of the City, take appropriate action pursuant to any subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of this Section 3 clause. The Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 135. The Contractor shall not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has provided the Contractor with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of this Section 3 clause.
- (5) Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, and all applicable rules and orders of HUD issued thereunder prior to the execution of this Agreement shall be a

condition of the federal financial assistance provided to the project. These provisions are binding upon the City, its contractors and subcontractors, their successors and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the City, its contractors and subcontractors, their successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which federal assistance is provided.

(6) The Contractor shall have completed, signed and delivered a Voluntary Compliance Form (provided by the City) to the Director prior to the execution of this Agreement.

SECTION 6 Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act

The Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §4821-4846), the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. §4851-4856), and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 35, Subparts A, B, J, K and R may apply to activities under the Agreement.

SECTION 7 Use Of Debarred, Suspended, Or Ineligible Contractors or Subrecipients

- (a) The Contractor shall not employ, award contracts to, or otherwise engage the services of any contractor or subcontractor during any period of debarment, suspension, or placement in ineligibility status under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 5 or under the authority of the City.
- (b) The Contractor shall not use federal funds for any contract for the construction, alteration or repair of the project funded under this Agreement with any contractor or subcontractor listed on the governmentwide Excluded Parties List System in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR Part 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR Part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." The Excluded Parties List System in SAM contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

SECTION 8 <u>Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements</u>

The Contractor shall comply with "Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards" as set forth under 2 CFR Part 200, as applicable.

SECTION 9 Conflict Of Interest

A. In the procurement of supplies, equipment, construction, and services by the City or a subrecipient, the conflict of interest provisions in 2 CFR §200.112, shall apply. In all cases not governed by 2 CFR Part 200, the provisions of this section shall apply. Such cases include, but may not be limited to, the acquisition and disposition of real property and the provision of

assistance by the recipient, by its subrecipients, or to individuals, businesses or other private entities under eligible activities which authorize such assistance (e.g. rehabilitation, preservation, and other improvements of private properties or facilities).

- (i) No persons described in paragraph (ii) (below) who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to federal activities or who are in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to federal assisted activities, may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from, or have any interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter with respect to the federal assisted activity, or with respect to the proceeds of the federal assisted activity.
- (ii) The requirements of paragraph (i) apply to any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the City, of any designated public agency, or subrecipient which receives funds under the federal award.

SECTION 10 Eligibility for Aliens Not lawfully Present in U.S.

Contractor understands that aliens not lawfully present in the U.S., as described in 49 CFR §24.208, are not eligible to apply for benefits under certain federal activities.

SECTION 11 Compliance With Clean Air And Water Acts

This Agreement may be subject to the requirements of the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. §7401-7671q), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251-1387) and the regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act and by the Environmental Protection Agency. In compliance herewith, the Contractor agrees that:

- A. No facility to be utilized in the project or program is on the list of Violating Facilities issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) pursuant to 40 CFR §15.20.
- B. The Contractor will comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. §7401-7671q) the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251-1387).
- C. As a condition for the award of this Agreement, the Contractor shall give prompt notice to the City of any notification of violations received from the Office of Federal Activities or the EPA, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.
- D. The Contractor will include or cause to be included the requirements contained in paragraphs A through C of this clause in every lower-tier nonexempt contract and will take such action as the City may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

E. In no event shall any amount of the funds provided under the Agreement be utilized with respect to a facility which has given rise to a conviction under section 113(c)(1) of the Clean Air Act or section 309(c) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

- F. Contractors who receive subcontracts/subgrants of amounts in excess of \$150,000 are required to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401–7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251–1387).
- G. Any violations of this Section 12 must be reported to the Federal awarding agency, the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the City.

SECTION 12 Architectural Barriers Act

The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §4151-4157) requires certain Federal and Federally funded buildings and other facilities to be designed, constructed, or altered in accordance with standards that insure accessibility to, and use by, physically handicapped people. A building or facility designed, constructed or altered with funds allocated or reallocated under this part after December 11, 1995, and that meets the definition of "residential structure" as defined in 24 CFR §40.2 or the definition of "building" as defined in 41 CFR §101-19.602(a) is subject to the requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §4151-4157) and shall comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 40 for residential structures, and Appendix A to 41 CFR Part 101-19, Subpart 10119.6, for general type buildings).

SECTION 13 The Americans with Disabilities Act

The Americans with Disabilities Act, also referred to as the ADA (42 U.S.C. §12131; 47 U.S.C. §§155, 201, 218 and 225), provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, State and local government services, and telecommunications. It further provides that discrimination includes a failure to design and construct facilities for first occupancy no later than January 25, 1993 that are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. Further, the ADA requires the removal of architectural barriers and communication barriers that are structural in nature in existing facilities, where such removal is readily achievable--that is, easily accomplishable and able to be carried out without much difficulty or expense.

SECTION 14 Records For Audit Purposes

Without limitation to any other provision of the foregoing Agreement/Contract the Contractor shall maintain all records concerning the program or project financed under this Agreement which the City reasonably requires from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the

submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR §200.333. The Contractor shall maintain records required by **24 CFR §135.92** for the period required under 2 CFR §200.333. The Contractor will give the City, HUD, the Comptroller General of United States, the General Accounting Office, or any of their authorized representatives access to and the right to examine, copy, or reproduce all records pertaining to the acquisition and construction of the project and the operation of the program or project. The right to access shall continue as long as the records are required to be maintained **under 2 CFR §200.336**.

SECTION 15 Audit Requirements

- a. Limited Scope Audit Contractor understands that Non-Federal entities that expend less than \$750,000 a year in Federal awards are exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, but records must be available to review and audit as described hereinabove at Section 17. Contractor further understands that limited scope audits can and may be required by the City for non-Federal entities that expend less than \$750,000. If the City requires such limited scope audits, same shall be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements.
- b. Single Audit Single Audit Contractor further understands that non-Federal entities that expend \$750,000 or more a year in Federal awards shall have a single audit conducted pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements, except when an election is made to have a program specific audit pursuant to and described in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements. Once the Contract is executed, Contractor understands that it is barred from considering such audit and must have a single audit conducted as described hereinabove.

SECTION 16 <u>Additional Federal Requirements Under 2 CFR PART 200, Appendix II, As Applicable</u>

- (A) <u>Simplified Acquisition Threshold.</u> Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$150,000, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. §1908, as may be amended from time to time, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
- (B) Contract Minimum for Termination for Cause and Convenience. All contracts in excess of \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement.
- (C) <u>Davis Bacon Act</u>, as amended (40 U.S.C. §3141–3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §3141–3144, and 3146–3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to

laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

- (D) <u>Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act.</u> Contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Antikickback" Act (40 U.S.C. §3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.
- (E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §3701–3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the nonfederal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §3702 and §3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. §3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. §3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.
- (F) <u>Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement.</u> If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.
- (G) <u>Energy Policy and Conservation Act.</u> Contractor must comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. §6201).
- (H) <u>Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. §1352)</u>. Contractors that apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. §1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.

(I) **Procurement of Recovered Materials.** See 2 CFR §200.322.

EXHIBIT "I"

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

The applicant/Contractor hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 C.F.R. Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal opportunity clause quoted and bolded below:

"During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- (2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- (3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

- (5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States."

The applicant/Contractor further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: *Provided*, That if the applicant/Contractor so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The applicant/Contractor agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the GLO and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the GLO and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the GLO in the discharge of the GLO's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The applicant/Contractor further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a

contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts, as defined in 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3, and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, applicant/Contractor agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the GLO may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this Contract; refrain from extending any further assistance to Contractor under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from Contractor; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

The applicant/Contractor may make such necessary changes in language in the equal opportunity clause as shall be appropriate to identify properly the parties and their undertakings.

EXHIBIT J

TITLE VI: NON-DISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest agrees as follows:

- 1. <u>Compliance with Regulations</u> The Contractor shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation ("DOT") 49 CFR Part 21, as may be amended from time to time ("Regulations"), which are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>Non-discrimination</u> The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the Agreement, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of Subcontractors, including procurement of materials and Agreements of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- 3. <u>Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment</u> In all solicitation, either by competitive bidding or negotiation, made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or Agreements of equipment, each potential Subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- 4. <u>Information and Reports</u> The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the FAA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of the Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the sponsor or the FAA, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- 5. <u>Sanctions for Noncompliance</u> In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the sponsor shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the FAA may determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to:
 - 5.1. withholding of payments to the Contractor under the Agreement until the Contractor complies, and/or
 - 5.2. cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.
- 6. <u>Incorporation of Provisions</u> The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1-

5 above in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and Agreements of equipment, unless exempt by the regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the FAA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. If the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a Subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the sponsor to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor and, in addition, the Contractor may request the United States of America to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

EXHIBIT K GLO HARVEY CONTRACT

GLO Contract No. 19-147-001-B489 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY PROGRAM PROJECTS NON-RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT HARVEY ROUND 1 FUNDING

("2019 Subrecipient Agreement", includes initial subrecipient agreement between the City and the GLO and Amendment No. 1)

For purposes of this Exhibit K, "Subrecipient" shall also refer to "Contractor" and "GLO" shall also refer to the "City," as applicable.

The 2019 Subrecipient Agreement shall automatically terminate on the date HUD approves the eighth amendment to the State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery: Hurricane Harvey Round 1, as amended from time to time, found at https://www.recovery.texas.gov/action-plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html.

EXHIBIT K-1 GLO HARVEY CONTRACT

GLO CONTRACT NO. 21-134-000-C788

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY PROGRAM

NON-RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

HURRICANE HARVEY FUNDING

("2021 Subrecipient Agreement")

The 2021 Subrecipient Agreement to become effective to govern this Agreement on the date HUD approves the eighth amendment to the State of Texas Plan for Disaster Recovery:

Hurricane Harvey Round 1, as amended from time to time, found at https://www.recovery.texas.gov/action-plans/hurricane-harvey/index.html)

For purposes of this Exhibit K-1, "Subrecipient" shall also refer to "Contractor" and "GLO" shall also refer to the "City," as applicable.